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Life Science REIT plc is the UK’s first
listed property business focused on
the growing life science sector.

We target opportunities in the ‘Golden Triangle’
research and development hubs of Oxford, Cambridge
and London’s Knowledge Quarter. By investing
orimarily in a diversified portfolio of properties that
are leased, or intended to be leased, to occupiers

in the life science sector, we aim to generate capital
growth whiist also delivering growing income.

Our shares are traded on the Main Market of the
I ondon Stock Exchange, under the ticker L ABS.

Our vision:- We intend to become the property provider of choice for life
science companies in the UK, giving shareholders exposure to
a specific growth sector.
Qur Cultu re: « Open and collegiate - Combining freshness and
| = Purpose driven experience
+ Appropriately challenging * Innovative
Qur strategy: « |nvestment: acquire + Financial: optimise returns
. well-located assets where through appropriate financing
we can add value = Sustainability: committed
» Asset management: drive to class-leading performance
value and rents through active on ESG
management

Find us online
www lifesciencereit.co.uk
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Oxford Technoiogy Park,
Oxford

Read meore on pages 24 to 27

Rolling Stock Yard,
London Knowledge Quarter

Read more on pages 28 and 29
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STRATEGIC REPCRT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

We delivered a robust financial performance in 2022,
delivering on our IPO targets despite a challenging
Mmacroeconomic environment,

Financial highlights’
12 months to 31 December 2022

GROSS PROPERTY INCOME

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

IFRS (LOSS)/EARNINGS
PER SHARE

£13.1Tm

Period to 31 December 20212 £0.5m

EPRA EARNINGS/(LOSS)
PER SHARE

£(27.5)m

Perfod to 31 December 20212 £7.7m

ADJUSTED EARNINGS/(LOSS)
PER SHARE?

(7.9)p

Period to 31 December 20212 2.2p

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE*

0.4p

Period to 31 December 20212 (0.1)p

As at 31 December 2022

PORTFOLIO VALUATION

0.7p

Period to 31 December 20212 (O 1)p

IFRS NET ASSET VALUE (“NAV™)

4.0p

Period to 31 December 20217 n/a

IFRS NAV
PER SHARE

£387.6m

As at 31 December 2021 £192.2m

EPRA NET TANGIBLE ASSETS

£319.5m

As at 31 December 2021 £350.6m

EPRA NET TANGIBLE
ASSETS PER SHARE

91.3p

As at 31 December 2021: 100.2p

LOAN TO VALUE®

£315.1m

As at 31 December 2021 £350.6m

90.0p

As at 31 December 2021, 100.2p

16.8%

As at 31 December 2021 n/a

. The Group presents ZPRA Best Practces Recorrmerdatians as Alternat.ve Performance Measures ("APMs") to assist stakebolders in assessing perfarmance
alongside the Group's statJtory results reported under IFRS APMs are among the key performarce ingicators used by the Board to assess the Group's
performance and are used by research analysts cover.ng the Group EPRA Best Practices Recommendat:ons have beer disclased to facilitate comparison
vaitn the Group's pears tnrowgh cors stent reporting of key real estate specfic perfarmance measures However, these ara not interdea as 2 substitute for
iTRS measures Please see the unaucited sugplementary neies an pages “42 o 148 for furthier detals an APMs.

2. The comparative period is from 1 August 2021 to 31 December 2021

3. Ad;usted EPS exciudes excepticnal costs associated w th the Campany's mave from AlM to the Ma.n Marxket of tne Landen Stock Exchance There werg
no exceptional items 11 the perod to 31 Decermoer 2021,

4 Dividends paid and declared in respect of the year to 31 December 2322, including the second intenm dividend of 3 0 pence per share declared on
27 March 2023, ard duefur payment an 15 May 2023, Dividends paid curnrg the yvear to 31 Decemter 20272 totzllea 10 pence ner share (pernod to
31 Decempar 2021 nil}

5 Grass debt less cash, short-term depasits and hguid investments, divided by the aggregate value of properties ang Investments
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+ |PO proceeds fully invested within six months of IPO,
in line with plan

« Completed move from AIM o the Main Market of the
Londaon Stock £xchange, effective 1 December 2022

+ Paid or declared dividends totalling 4.0 pence per
share in respect of the period from Admission to
Z1 December 2022, meeting the Company's IPO target

+ Portfolio valued at £387.6 million as at 31 December
2022 with a revaluation loss of £31.3 million in the vear,
reflecting a 7.5% reduction on book value. The vast
majority of the fall is attributed to the 2022 transactions
where acquisitions and purchasers’ costs were the
main contributor. The remainder was on the like-for-like
portfolic where a 29 bps outward yield shift in the
vear was partly offset by a 4.7% like-for-like growth in
ERV reflecting the embedded value in the overall life
science sector

Life Sclence REIT pl¢ Annual Repart and Financial Statements 2022

IFRS net asset value of £312.5 million or 91.3 pence per
share at the year end, down 8.9% from 31 December 2021

Agreed £150.0 million debt faciity with HSEC, comprising
£75.0 million three-year term loan and £75.0 million
revolving credit facility, at 225 basis points over SONIA
Gross debt of £110.8 million at 31 December 2022,
including £35.8 milflon drawn on Oxford Technology

Park ("OTP") acquired facility resulting in a loan to value
C'LTV™") of 16.8%

Capped SONIA on the HSBC term loan at 2.0% and an
axisting SONIA cap acquired on the QTP facility at 0.75%,
resulting in interest rate protection at 94.1% of drawn debt
at year end

Cancelled the share premium account of £339.3 million,
to create substantial distnbutable reserves




STRATEGIC REPORT

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

We made good progress implementing our strategy, acquiring
further attractive assets, driving reversionary values in the existing
portfolio and delivering cur sustainability strategy.

Operational highlights
As at 31 December 20222

CONTRACTED RENT ROLL

ESTIMATED RENTAL VALUE

OCCUPANCY

£13.8m

As at 31 December 2021'2: £9.3m

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM
C"WAULT™) TO EXPIRY

£17.2m

As at 31 December 2021'Z £10.1m

WAULT TO FIRST BREAK

82.0%

As at 37 Decembear 20217%: 80.9%

NET REVERSIONARY YIELD

6.2 vears

4.5 years

5.2%

As at 31 December 20212 6.6 years As at 31 December 2021'2: 4,1 years As at 31 December 2021'2% 5.0%

= Acquired:

= OTP for £120.3 million, comprising two complete
multi-let office/lab buildings, an on-site hotel and a
forward-funded developrment site
= 7-NM Herbrand Street ("Herbrand Street™) for
£85.0 million, which is fully let as offices until 2026
and has excellent potential for lab convers.on
Made good progress with asset management plans,
including developing new space at OTP and starting a
project to repurpose empty space at Rolling Stock Yard
("RSY") as '‘plug and play’ laboratories, the latter of which
has now completed

Portfolic at the year end has gaod exposure to Oxford,
Cambridge and London Knowlsdge Quarter, and includes
income-producing assets and new-pbuild developments

Contracted rent roll increased from £9.3 million at

31 December 2021 ta £13.8 million at 31 Decemper 2022,
primarily as a result of the acguisitions

Significant potential in the investment portfolio, with the
estimated rental value ("ERV™) of £17.2 mill.an reflecting a
reversionary percentage of 8.7% on let space. Like-for-like
ERV growth In the year was 4.7%

WAULT to expiry has reduced by 0.4 years to 6.2 years
(31 December 2021 6.6 years), reflecting acquisitions and
the natural reduction of WAULT over time

Occupancy of 82.0% at the year end (31 December 2021
80.9%), with the 2022 acquisitions and lease up of OTP
driving an improvement on the prior year

1. Investment propernes only. Develooment properties and land have been excluded from the zbove metrcs,

2 The Group prasents EPRA Best Practices Recommendations as A'ternative Perfarmance Measures ("APMs") to assist stakeholders 10 a55835ng performance
alongside the Group's §7atutary results reparted under IFRS, APMs are amerg the key performance indicators used by the Board 1o assass the Group's
perforrmance and are used by research ana’ysts covering the Group. EYRA Best Practices Recommendat ons have been disciosed to facilitate cormparisan with
the Group's peers through cons.stent reoarting of key real estate specific performance measares. kowaver, thase are not intended a5 & substitute for IFRS
measures Please see the unauditec supolementary notes on cages 142 to 149 for furthar detalls an APMs

4
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Sustainability and corporate governance

- New sustainability strategy developed, combining
corporate-level and asset-type specific objectives

* First year of disclosing performance for carbon, energy,
waste and water for four of our six assets, m line with
EPRA, SECR and TCFD reguiremeants

Post year end highlights

« Completed letting te Oxford lonics on 4,887 sq ft of
space at OTP, at a rent of £28.5 per sq ft

« Completed letfing with a life science company backed by
Syncona on 7,322 sg ft at Rolling Stock Yard, at a rent of
£110.0 per sq ft

» Completed letting to Arcturis Data at OTP on 5,509 sq ft,
at a rent of £28.7 per sg ft

- The above lettings progress increasas occupancy to
88.6%, a 6.6% uplift on the year end position

Cambourne Business Park, Cambridge

Life Science REIT plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022

» Appointed Richard Mowell as a Non-Executive Director

and subsequently as Senior Independent Director and
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

Appointed Sally Ann Forsyth as the Board's Sustainability
Lead and Michagl Taylor as Chair of the Management
Engagement Committee

In February 2023 the OTP debt facility was refinanced
by drawing down £26.3 million from the Group's existing
F150.C million HSBC facility as well as utilising existing
cash resources

- The Board has declared a second interim dividend

of 3.0 pence per share in respect of the year ended

31 December 2022, in additian to the 1.0 pence tnterim
ordinary dividend paid on 31 October 2022, and has
therefore met the target dividend yield of 4.0% set at IPO.
This will be paid as an ordinary dividend on 15 May 2023,
with an ex-dividend date of 13 April 2023

Sustainability Committee farmed with Sally Ann Forsyth
as Chair




STRATEGIC REPCRT

AT A GLANCE

At the year end, our portfolio contained six assets
in key locations within the Golden Triangle.

Asset location by valuation

Cambridge

24.4%
Oxford London
33.3% 42.3%
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1 Rolling Stock Yard
London Knowledge

3 Oxford Technology

Park, Oxford

5 Cambourne Business
Park, Cambridge

Quarter
Area: 53,900 sqg ft Investrment: 104,300 sg ft Area: 231,700 sq ft
Type: Hybrid Development: 388,100 sq ft Type: Hybirid
Contracted rent: £3.5 million Total area: 492,400 sq ft Contracted rent:  £4.1 million
Valuation: £83.9 million Type: Hybrid Vajuation: £87.2 million
Acquisition date: December 2021 Contracted rent:  £1.4 millicn Acquisition date: December 2027
Investment: £43.8 millicn
Development:  £77.6 million
Total valuation: £121.4 million
Acquisition date: May 2022

2 /-1 Herbrand Street

4 Lumen House

6 The Merrifield Centre

London Knowiedge Harwell Campus Cambridge
Quarter Oxford
Area: 68,600 sg ft Area: 17,600 59 ft Area: 12,600 sg ft
Type: Office Type: Office Type: Laboratory
Contracted rent:  £4.0 million Contracted rent:  £0.4 million Contracted rent: £0.3 million
Valuation: £79.8 million Valuation: £7.8 million Valuation: £7.5 million
Acquisition date: May 2022 Acquisition date: November 2021 Acquisition date: November 2021

Life Science REIT plc Annua! Report and Financial Statements 2022




INVESTMENT CASE

As the first London-listed REIT specialising in life science
real estate, we provide investors with a unigue opportunity
to gain exposure to this exciting sub-sector.

We believe the following factors make our business a compelling proposition.

Strong and growing
demand for life science
space

The UK is at the forefront of life science in Eurcpe, with four of the top ten global
research universities and more than 6,500 businesses. Not only this, but it is first
globally on venture capital ("VvC™) funding per capita, followed by the US, Significant
private and public investment is helping to grow existing businesses and create new
ones, resulting in strong and growing demand for suitable life science real estate.
Even so, the market is relatively immature, with the Golden Triangle of Oxford,
Cambridge and London Knowledge Quarter having only a fraction of the purpose-built
laboratory stock of comparable locations in the USA. See pages 12 to 17,

Constrained supply has
driven rental growth and
yield compression

Existing life science real estate in the UK is typically at or beyond capacity. not
suitable or in the wrong locations. The resulting significant shortage of space s
driving rental growth, There 1s a significant opportunity for us to create new space
through forward-funding developments, change of use and developing new life
science hubs. In the Golden Triangle alone, an estimated 15 million sq ft of new space
for life science will be required over the next decade. See pages 12 to 17,

Highly experienced
management with a
proven track record

Qur Investment Adviser, lronstone Asset Management Limited (“lrcnstone”), has a
highly experienced team of senior professionals, who have built, operated and grown
companies in the UK real estate market for more than three decades The Investment
Adviser's excellent relationships with potential vendors, agents, banks, financial
institutions and others gives us the ability to source investment opportunities
off-market, in @ highly competitive environment. See pages 76 and /7.

Focus on sustainability

We are integrating sustainable practices into all aspects of our business. We have a
rigorous focus on minimising the environmental footprint of our assets, which aligns
with our occupiers, and create social value by providing space that enables scientific
activity to improve health and gquality of life. High-qguality workplaces support the
wellbeing of our occupiers’ employees and help them to meet the challenge of
attracting and retaiming top talent. See pages 38 ta 57.

A strategy for value
creation

We have significant potential to create value through active management of our
nortfolio, including developing new Ee science facilities, enabling us to drive
capital values and increase our rental income. We also see good praspects for
further acquisitions of both income-producing assets and forward funding or other
development opportunities. We therefore expect to deliver further capital and
incorme growth over the coming years, supporting our total return and dividend
targets. See pages 18 and 1.

Life Science REIT ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022




CHAIR’S STATEMENT

At the end of the Group's first full year, | am delighted to say
that we have delivered on the promises we set out at our IPO
in Novemizer 2021. We achieved our goal of fully deploying
the IPC proceeds within six months, completed cur move
from AIM to the Main Market and met our dividend target.
Our focus now is on executing our business plans for each

of the assets, to drive capital values and income growth.

An attractive and resilient market

In my previous reports, | have outlined the significant
attractions of our market. There is high occupier demand in
the Galden Triangle locations we are targeting, underpinnad
by long-term structural growth drivers, At the same time,
there is very little available space and a limited pipeline of
new developments, leading to robust rental growth. The life
science sector also has low exposure to consumer spending,
helping to insulate it from the broader economic cycle

These positive attributes proved their worth in the second
half of the year, as worsening economic conditions, high
interest rates and continued geopdolitical uncertainty
cantributed to a rapid expansion in yields in many real estate
sectors. While life science has not been immune, the strong
occupational market has helped to limit the impact on asset
valuations, with autward vield shifts being partly offset by
continued increases in estimated rental values.

Life Science REIT plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2027

£€3)

| AM DELIGHTED TO

REPORT THAT WE HAVE
DELIVERED ON OUR PO
PROMISES, DEVELOPED OUR
SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY,
AND ARE WELL PLACED FOR
FURTHER PROGRESS, WITH
SIGNIFICANT POTENTIAL FOR
VALUE CREATION IN THE
PORTFOLIO.

CI.LAIRE BOYLE
Chair

Successfully implementing the strategy

In the first half of the year, we acguired OTP, which was the
final asset in our (nitial pipeling, and Herbrand Street in the
Londeon Knowledge Guarter, which has excellent potential for
conversion to laboratories.

The portfolio offers significant near-term value creation
opportunities, including completing the development

site at OTP, repositioning Cambourre Business Park and
repurposing unlet space at Rolling Stock Yard as ‘plug and
play’' laboratories. We are making good progress with our
development programme at OTP, with a further two buildings
nearing completion and two more under way, We are in
discussions with a wide range of potential cccupiers at

OTP, including for space that has yet to complete, and have
announced new leases with Oxford onics and Arcturis Data
after the year end. We have also secured what we believe
to be a record rent for a lab in London at Rolling Stock
Yard, with our refit increasing rents from £65.0 per sqg ft to
£110.0 per sa ft on the new lab space.

In additicn to laboratories and offices, life science businesses
are increasingly focused on computing power and our
potential occupiers include data centre and quantum
computing companies We are also looking at production
space within our sites, with demand increasing as companies
re-shore manufacturing to ensure supply chain resilience.
increasingly, life science businesses want to have thelr head
office, R&D and production facilities within the UK and often
on the same site,




STRATEGIC REPORT

CHAIR’S STATEMENT conmnuen

Financial performance and dividends

The portfolio was independently valued at £387.6 million

at the year end, reflecting a 7.5% reduction on book value.
Market factors outlined above in addition to acguisition

and purchasers’ costs drove this decline, Like-for-like ERVS
increased by 4.7%, due to further market rental growth which
helped to partially offset the decline in values during the year.

The IFRS net asset value at 31 December 2022 was 91.3 pence
per share, an 8.9% reduction on the prior year after
accounting for the fall in portfolio valuations and the costs of
acquisitions in the year. tFRS earnings per share ("EPS") was
a loss of 7.9 pence, while EPRA EPS was 0.4 pence, Adjusted
EPS, which excludes the effect of one-off exceptional ¢osts,
was 0.7 pence.

AL IPO, we set a target dividend vield of 4.0%, based on the
issUe price of 10Q pence per share. After paying an interim
ordinary dividend of 1.0 pence per share on 31 October
2022, the Board has declared a second interim dividend

of 3.0 pence per share, to give a total for the period from
Admission ta 31 December 2022 of 4.0 pence, thereby
meeting our target. The second interim dividend will be paid
as an ordinary dividend on 15 May 2023, with an ex-dividend
date of 13 April 2023.
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A well-financed business

The business has a robust financial position, with the
resources we need to implement our asset management plans
and signtficant headroom in our facilities.

During the year we agreed our first debt financing, a

£150.0 million facility with HSBC, split equally between a term
loan and a revolving credit facility. At the year end, total net
borrowings stood at £65.2 million, giving us a loan to value
C"LTV") ratio of 16.8%. On a gross debt basis this was 28.6%;
we expect to maintain a LTV of 30%-40% in the longer term.

Given the sharp rise in interest rates in the second half of the
vear, we were pleased to have put in place hedging that caps
the SONIA rate on the term loan at 2.0% unti March 2035,
We also acquired an existing SONIA cap on the OTP facility
at 0.75%. As aresult, 94.1% of our drawn debt at the year end
was at a capped rate.

Since the year end we have refinanced the OTP debt facility
by drawing down £26.3 million from the existing HSBC facility
as well as utilising existing cash resources.

Move to the Main Market

At PO, we said we intended to move from AIM to the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange, which tock place on

1 December 2022. The benefits include access to a deeper
pool of capital and a broader range of shareholders, which will
help us to imolement our growth strategy and contribute to
increased liquidity in the shares. The move to the Main Market
also creates the potential for the Company to be incluced

in a braader range of equity indices in the futura, including
FTSE's EPRA and UK Index Series, which may further increase
dermand far the shares and their ilquidity. As at 17 March 2023
the Company was included in the FTSE UK All-Share and Small
Cap Indices. In addition, as a Main Market company, we now
comply with higher governance standards under the Listing
Rules, and related regulations and guidance. We therefore see
this as an important step tn our development.

Life Science REIT pl¢ Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022




Sustainability matters

Qur approach to value creation includes rigorously
managing ESG issues. We incorporate environmental
and social characteristics in our business processes and
management and already have a strong track-record,
including BREEAM-certified buildings and A or B rated
energy performance certificates ("EPCs"). We are now
challenging ourselves to go further.

In 2022, we measured our carban baseline, dafined

our sustainability strategy and undeartook a climate risk
assessment (see Sustainability section on pages 38 to

57 for further detalls). We are augmenting our existing

suite of management controls, KPls and tools with wider
environmental and social metrics, to ensure we maximise
opportunities to collaborate with cur occupiers, and that we
have a robust risk framework, including climate-related risks,
as part of our governance processes and business resilience.

From a governance perspective, we completed our first
evaluation of the Board and its Committees, which showed
that we are functioning well together (see page 79 for

more information). As previously reported, we appointad
Richard Howell as a Non-Executive Director in May 2022

and he subsequently became cur Senior Independent
Director and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee This has
allowed Sally Ann Forsyth to fecus on her role as the Board's
Sustainability Lead (and Chair of the Sustainability Committee
from 2023), while Michael Taylor has taken over as Chair of the
Management Engagement Committee.

Life Science REIT plc annual Report and Financial Statements 2022

Looking forward

Going into 2023, we expect the favourable conditions

In the occupational market ta continue, supporting our
leasing activity as we execute our asset management plans.
Our succass to date with leasing-up OTP and the substantial
rental uplift with the post year end letting at Rolling Stock
Yard demenstrate the portfolio’s potential to drive further
earnings growth and support our asset valuations, by
fulfilling the overwhelming demand in the Golden Triangle
for specifically designed lak space. We will continue aur
development programme at OTP, where we are targeting to
complete a further 388,100 sq ft of space by mid-2024.

Across the wider investment market, the potential for
further valuation declines in the first half of 2023 may create
interesting acquisition oppartunities for us in the second half
of the year

Growth in the immediate future will be focused around our
letting, asset rmanagement and development activities. We
believe the strong occupier demand and [imited supply of
space in the life science sector will continue to drive rental
growth in the future. In the short term we expect further
investment activity to be muted until the ecenomic outlook
becomes clearer but will continue to closely monitor the life
science investment market for any interesting acguisition
oppcrtunities.

Iafle

Claire Boyle
Chair

24 March 2023

N




STRATEGIC REPORT

MARKET OVERVIEW

We operate in a highly attractive market, characterised by
a variety of long-term structural drivers, which contribute to
unprecedented levels of public and private investment.

Supportive long-term structural drivers
The COVID-19 pandemic has accelerated trends that were already under way, like the increasing use of digital tools, spurring
a variety of public-private partnerships at the same time as reminding gavernments of the impartance of the science industry.

12
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Government puts science high on the national agenda

The British government has a set clear mission to ensure the UK is a globally recognised hub for the science industry, one of its
key pillars of economic growth. Recent announcements and objectives include:

Plans for largest ever R&D budget: Launched a £370m Science and Technology
£20.0 billion by 2024-25 (+30.0%) : Framework to boost investment in innovation
(March 2022) i (March 2023}

Plans to increase total R&D investment to Tax relief offer for companies that spend
2.4% of GDP by 2027 more than 40% of total expenditure on R&D
(March 2022) (March 2023)

Launch of a £119.0 million fund for overseas Proposal to set up a fast approval process for
research collaborations : the most cutting-edge medicines and devices
(December 2022} | (March 2023)

Proposed Plan B in lieu of access to funding
through Horizon
(January 2023)

Newly appointed Science, Innovation

and Technology Secretary given dedicated
seat at the Cabinet

(February 2023)

Creation of new Department for Science,
Innovation and Technology (“DSIT)
(February 2023)

B Proposed

1 Actioned

Life Science REIT ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022 13




STRATEGIC REPORT

MARKET OVERVIEW conminues

UK life science industry continues
venture capital ("VC") investment.

to attract substantial

VC funding into UK life science companies reached its second highest point in history at the end of 2022. Whilst funding was
lower than the record-breaking year in 2021, investment in 2022 was still 22% higher than 2020.

VC funding in UK life science companies’

1. Cushman & Wakefield Q4 2022 Research.

The types of life science reat estate
The life science markat offers a range of potential buliding
types that we can invest in. These include:

« ‘wet’ [abs, where drugs, chemicals and other types of
biological matter can be analysed and tested;

» 'dry’labs, which focus on applied or computational
mathematical analyses;

write-up space, where people document thelr analysis
or come together and work in teams on developing and
analysing research;

« offices incubator space and co-working;

4

- manufacturing and prototyping facilities:

« facilities and amenities, which support interactions
between occupiers and ther employess’ wellbeing: and

» data centres, to enable the rapidly growing need for
computing power and data handling in life sciences.

We can also acquire existing buildings which can be

repurposed for life scignce, or land we can use for

developments.
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All assets strategically located in the UK’s Golden Triangle,
a life science hotspot which has shown unprecedented strength.

Life scignce is driven by like-minded and complementary companies clustering around knowledge hubs, such as major
universities and teaching hospitals. This helps themn to innovate, share knowledge and benefit from government incentives and
business synergies, creating what is known as 'Genius Loci’ within these ecosystems.

In the UK the established clusters include the Golden Triangle of Oxford, Cambridge and the London Knowledge Quarter, which
is our primary focus for investment. There are also emerging clusters in Birmingham, Newcastle, Edinburgh and Manchester.

'GENIUS LOCI, A PRIORITY

Most important science cluster
in Europe: 6,500 life science
businesses in the UK'

Global leader on VC funding per
capita: Cambridge led the ranking
and London and Oxford sat within
top five?

Lab vacancy rates at all-time
lows: 0.2% in Cambridge and 2.6%
in Oxford®

Supply shortage: 21 million sqg ft of
new space required in the UK for
life science over the next decade?

Take-up at record highs:

1.4 million sq ft recorded in the
Golden Triangle from life science
companies in 2022, the highest in
the last five years?

Strong lab rental growth forecasts:
4.4% p.a. in Cambridge until 20273

1. UK Government (34 2022 Research.
2. Savills Q4 2022 Research.
I Bidwells Q4 2022 Research.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

MARKET OVERVIEW conminuen

Lab demand exceeds offices for the first time ever
Lab requirements exceeded office requirements for the first time ever across the Oxford to Cambridge Arc ("Arc™) in 2022,
with 1.9 million sq ft take-up recorded in the Arc from life science companies in 2022, the highest ever recorded.

Unparalleled leasing and rental growth recorded in 2022

The demand for lab space continues to run clase to recaord levels with the ongoing growth of science and tech businesses.
For example, Cambridge laboratory requirements stood almost four times ahead of the pre-pandemic level, pushing demand
to its highest point since AstraZeneca's 2015 reguirement.

In addition, rents rose to new highs with 10%-20% year-on-year growth recarded across the Golden Triangle.

Valuations reducing and yields experiencing an ocutward shift

In the second half of 2022, high inflation, political uncertainty, the sharp increase 'n interest rates post the ‘'mini budaget’, the
prospect of a recession and the ongoing war in Ukraine combined to significantly reduce asset values and expand vyields in
many sectors of the UK real estate market.

1 B.dwells Q4 2022 Research,
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H2 2022 absolute movement in valuation’

1. CBRE Monthly Index Q4 2022 Intelligence.
?. The Group's partfoia.

While life science property has not been immune to these
pressures, valuations in the sector have held up well. The
valuation of our assets declined by 6.3% in the second half,
while industrial, retail and office asset valuations fell by an
average of 28.6%. 14.5% and 14.1% respectively. The healthy
performance of life science assets reflects the attractive
occupational market, rising rents and lack of dependency
of life science companies on consumer spending trends.

Whean it comes to yvields, both prime lab and office vields
experienced an outward shift following the increase in
interest rates throughout 2022; primes yields in Cambridge
and Oxford stood at 4.5% and 5.0% for lab and offices
respectively.

Take-up in the next ten years to notably exceed pipeline
When it comes to the outlook for the life science industry, take-up in the Golden Triangle for the next ten years is expected
to exceed the pineline by ¢.3 million sq ft. In addition, up to £15.0 billion of live capital is looking for a home in UK life sciences

real estate,

Take-up forecast up to 2031 (2022-2031)

1. Savills Q2 2022 Resparch.
2 JLL G4 2022 inteligence.
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Pipeline up to 2030 (2022-2030)
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STRATEGIC REPORT

BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model is designed to create long-term value
for our shareholders and our other key stakeholders.

RESOURCES AND

RELATIONSHIPS CUR VALUE CREATION MODEL

Qur business model utilises
the following tangible and
intangikle assets to create
value:

Physical assets

We are constructing a diversified
portfolio of real estate assets for life
science occupiers, with a primary
focus on the Golden Triangle.

Skilled and experienced
people

Our model allows us to benefit from
the skills and experience of the
Investment Adviser's team, as well
as our other professional service
providers.

Specialist knowledge

Our exclusive focus on life science
real estate makes us attractive to
both occupiers and vendors, We
draw on the specialist knowledge
of the Investment Adviser's team to
implement our strategy.

Relationships

Ironstone's strong relationships in the
sactor including with vendors, agents
and other key market participants,
helps us to source acquisitions
off-market and to attract new
occupiers for our developmeants and
repositioned assets,

Financial assets

We finance the business using
shareholders’ equity and a prudent
level of bank debt, with an LTV target
of 30-40% in the long term.

18

Identify
investment
opportunities

The Investment Adviser's knowledge
and relationships are key sources of
competitive advantage for us, when
identifying potential iInvestments. See
page 20 for our investrent strategy
When developing new assets, we seek 10
mitigate any development risk through
forward funding or similar arrangements.
For speculative development, we use
best-in-class advisers, fixed-price
construction centracts, and seek pre-lets
where practical.

ESG

We are supported by sustainability
experts and have appointed a head of ESG
to embed the newly formed sustainabitity
strategy across future investments and
the portfolio,

THE VALUE WE CREATE

Economic value

Complete
due diligence :

and purchase

When suitable investment opportunities
arise, the Investment Adviser carries
out thorough due diligence, including
physically inspecting the asset. The
Investment Adviser then negotiates
terms with the vendor, after which the
transaction is subject to approval by
the Investment Adviser's investment
commitiee, the AIFM and, for transactions
greater than 20% of gross asset value,
the Baard.

ESG

Ervironmental and chmate-ralated due
diligence highlight opportunities and risks
toc be considered during the acguisition
process

By carefully selecting investments and implementing our asset management
plans, we benefit from nsing rents and support the capital values of aur assets,
leading to attractive dividends and total returns far shareholders.

Asa REIT wea do not pay corporaton tax on profits and capital gains from our
qualifying property rental business, which supports our ability to pay dividends.
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Add value

through asset
management

Through the Investment Adviser, we build
close relaticnships with our occupiers,

5o we understand thar businesses and
property raguirements, which supports
our asset management. Our acquisition
due diligence identifies value creation
cpportunities, alang with an associated
business case and execution plan. For
information on our asset management
strategy, see page 21.

ESG

We drive decarbonisation and social
value through eur connection with
occupiers, understanding environmental
performance at asset level and our
sustainability strategy.

Cur climate impact assessment enables us
to form strategies to mitigate risks

Social value

Monitor :
investments :

The Investrment Adviser reviews 2ach
property In the portfolio at least monthly,
with a particular focus on tracking
octupancy rates, rental values and rant
collections. The Investment Adviser also
visits each asset at least twice a year.
Monitaring the rmarket and building
valuation databases ensures we are in a
position to take advantage of potential
investment and occupiar apporiunities.

ESG

Our specialist advisers provide regular
updates on the rapidly evolving
regulatory environment, occupier and
other stakeholder expectations for ESG
performance

The Sustainability Committee ensures
accountabllity for progress on our
sustainability targets

Hold or

divest

We intend to be long-term holders of
our assets. This makes us an attractive
landlord to life science occupiers who
often have high barriers to exiting a
bullding, as the cost of the fit out, the
complexity of their equipment and the
timing of long-term projects can make
moving difficult and expensive.
However, we expect to opportunistically
and strategically dispose of selected
assets, following which we will tyipically
reinvest the proceeds into new investment
opportunities.

ESG

Driving towards decarbonisation, meeting
stringent environmental regulations and
climate-related issues may result in sorme
assets ne longer meeting those high
standards

We create social value in a number of ways, in particular by providing real estate that underpins life science research
into globally sianificant problems. In turn, we support job creation and economic activity in the communities surrounding

Qur assets.

Through our sustainability strategy (see page 44), we have a clear focus on protecting the environment and providing

spaces and amenities that benefit the wellbeing of the people who work in them.

Life Science REIT plc Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGY

Our investment objective remains focused on providing
shareholders with an attractive level of total return, with a focus
on capital growth, whilst also providing a growing level of income.

QUR
STRATEGY

1 INVESTMENT
STRATEGY

To achieve our objectives, we are implementing the
strategy set out on the next two pages:

CGur objectives
We aim to provide shareholders with an attractive
total return, underpinned by secure income.

Total accounting return

Our target s in excess of 10.0% per annum,
through a combination of dividends and growth in
NAV,

Qutcome in 2022

The total accounting return for the year was -9.1%
(see page 149).

Plan for 2023

2022 transaction costs and macromarket
conditions drove a revaluation loss in 2022 being
the key contributor to the -9.1% total accounting
return. However, we remain committed to
targeting a return of at least 10.0% per annum by
continuing to implement our strategy set out over
the next two pages.

We aim to construct a portfolio diversified by property type and
occupler. We predominantly buy properties where we can add
value through active asset management and may acquire individual
buildings, groups of buildings or entire science parks (see page 31
for the types of property we consider)

We primarily target the Goiden Triangle (see page 6) and may
consider opportunities in other emerging clusters around the UK.
We address the demand-supply imbalance for space in our target
locations by forward-funding developments and acguiring land

to develop.

Progress

Dividends

Qur target for the pericd from Admission to
31 December 2022 was a total dividend of
4.Q pence per share, representing a yield of
4.0% on the IPC price of 100 pence per share.

Cutcome in 2022
We declared total dividends in respect of the
period of 4.0 pence per share.

Plan for 2023
Qur target dividend for 2023 remains at
4.0 pence per share.

20

- Acquired two assets in the yaar:

- Herbrard Street for £85.0 million, which is fully let as offices
until 2026 and has excellent potential for lab conversion.
See page 30 for more information: and

« OTP far £120.3 million, camprising two complete multi-let
office/lab buildings, an on-site hotal and a forward-funded
develooment site. See page 30 for more information.
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2 ASSET MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

3 FINANCING
STRATEGY

We invest in our properties to enhance their appeal to life science
occupiers and increase capital values and rents. This may include
extensions to buildings, refurbishments, change of use and fitting
aut space as laboratories. We may use any periods of vacancy
(for example on lease expiry) to carry out this investment,

Our strategy also includes enhancing our buildings’ sustainability
and engaging with occupiers to identify mutual agendas.

See pages 44 and 45 for our sustainability strategy.

Progress

We finance our business using shareholders’ equity, along with a
prudent level of debt. We may alse dispose of assets from time to
time, which will generate funds for reinvestment.

In the longer term, we expect to maintain a loan to value ratio of
30%-40%. Qur approach to debt financing may include hedging.
We also intend to implement a Green Finance framework policy, so
we can access applicable schemes offered by financial institutions.

Progress

« Made good progress with our programme, including:

= nearing completion for two buildings at OTP and starting work

on two others;
= developing our plans to rebrand Cambourne Business Park
during M1 2023; and
starting the refit of vacant space at Rolling Stock Yard
as laboratories.

« See sustainabiity section for strategy progress, pages 44 and 45.

+ Since the year end we have agreed two new leases at OTP
and secured a recerd rent of £110.0 per sq ft for Londoen lab
space, on part of the rapurposed space at Rolling Stock Yard,
showcasing the benefits of our asset managemeant.

Oxford Technology Park
Oxford

Read more on pages 24 to 27
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+ Agreed £150.0 million debt facility with HSBC, comprising a term
loan and revolving credit facility of E75.0 millien each.

+ Hedged the interest rate on the term loan by capping the SONIA
rate at 2.0%.
94 1% of drawn debt was hedged at the yvear end agalnst rising
interest rates.

* In February 2023 the OTP debt facility was refinanced
by drawing down E26.3 million from the Group’s existing
£150.0 million HSBC facility as well as utilising existing cash
resources.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We use the following key performance indicators ("KPIs”)
to monitor our performance and strategic progress.

OCCUPANCY LIKE-FOR-LIKE LIKE-FOR-LIKE LIKE-FOR-LIKE
RENTAL INCOME VALUATION CARBON INTENSITY
MOVEMENT MOVEMENT
o (o) o)
82.0% 1.2% (1.8)% n/a
2021. 80.9% 2021: n/a 2021: n/fa 2021 n/a

Description

Total open mariet rental
value of the unuts leased
divided by total open market
rental value, exciuding
developrnent property and
land, and equivalent to one

minus the EPRA vacancy rafte,

Description

The increase/decrease in
contracted rent of units
owned throughout the period,
expressed as a percantage

of the contracted rent at the
start of the period, excluding
development property and
land and units undergoing
refurbishment.

Description

The increase/decrease in

the valuation of properties
owned throughout the period
under review, expressed as a
percentage of the valuation
at the start of the peried, and
net of capital expenditure.

Description

The like-for-like change in
landlard procured energy
consumption by area
rmeasured in MWh/m?.

Reievance to

our strategy

Shows our ability to retain
occupiers at renewal and to
let vacant space, balanced
with tha need for vacancy to
carry out asset management
initiatives.

Relevance to

our strategy

Shows cur ability to identify
and acquire attractive
properties and grow rents
over time.

Relevance to

our strategy

A high-gualty portfolo and
an active asset management
programme will help us

to increase asset values In
favourable market conditions
and will help to suppeort our
valuations when market
conditions are unfavourable

Relevance to

our strategy

The sustainakility strategy
targets for decarbonisation
will be setin 2023 This will
be a kay measure of this
commitment going forward.

Performance

At 31 December 2022,
accupancy across the
investment porifolio was
82.0% (31 December 2027
80.9%), with the 2022
acquisitions and lease up of
OTP driving an improvement
on the prior year.

Performance

AL 31 December 2022,
like-for-like rental income

was an increase of 1.2%, driven
by a rent review that settledin
the second half of the vear

Performance

The portfolio valuation
decreased by 18% ona
like-far-like bas's, as a result
of the investrnent marke?
conditions described on
pages 16 and 17.

Performance

Will be reported on from

31 December 2023 when there
are two full years of data.

Link to strategy

O

Link to strategy

O

Link to strategy

L 2@

Link to strategy

e O

@ nvestment strategy O Asset management strateqy ¢ Financing sirategy

Link to strategy key:
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TOTAL COST
RATIO

EPRA NET TANGIBLE
ASSETS PER SHARE
(“NTAPS™)

LOAN TO
VALUE RATIO

DIVIDENDS
(PENCE PER SHARE)

58.9%

2021:163.5%

90.0p

2021:100.2p

16.8%

2021: n/a

4.0p

2021: n/a

Description

EPRA cost ratio including
direct vacancy costs but
exciuding one-off costs,

The EPRA cost ratio is the
sum of property expenses and
administration expenses, as

a percentage of gross rental
inceme.

Description

This net asset value measure
assumes entities buy and sell
assets, thereby crystallising
certain levels of deferred tax
liability. Adjustments are also
made for the fair value of
certain financial denvatives.

Description

Gross debt less cash,
short-term deposits and liguid
investments, divided by the
aggregate value of properties
and investments.

Description

The total amount of dividends
paid or declared in respect of
the financial year divided by
the number of shares in issue
in the period.

Relevance to

our strategy

Shows our ability to
effectively control our cost
base, which in turn suppeorts
dividend payments to
shareholders.

Relevance to

our strategy

Reflects our ability to add
value by acquiring well and
through asset management,
which in turn increases our
resilience during market
downturns.

Relevance to

our strategy

Shows our ability to balance
the additicnal portfolio
diversification and returns
that come from using debt,
with the need to manage risk
through prudent financing.

Relevance to

our strategy

Shows our ability to construct
a portfolic that delivers a
secure and growing income,
which underpins dividend
payments to shareholders.

Performance

The total cost ratio was

58.9% for 2022, This ratic

is expected to continue to
decrease as the buildinas

at OTP cornplete and we
repurpose assets to iab space.

Performance

At 31 December 2022, the
EPRA NTA was 90.0 pence
per share (31 December 2021
100.2 pence), driven by 2022
transaction costs and the
macroeconomic impact on
real estate valuations in the
second half of the year.

Performance

The LTV at 31 December 2022
was 16.8%. We expect the ratio
to be 30%-40% longer term.

Performance

The total dividend in respect
of the year was 4.0 pence per
share {paid plus declared).
This is in line with our target
at IPO.

Link to strategy

O

Link to strategy

® O

Link to strategy

o

Link to strategy
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STRATEGIC REPORT

STRATEGY IN ACTION

Creating the next
generation of life
science buildings

Oxford Technology Park

Key statistics

CBRE valuation:

£121.4m

31 December 2022

Occupancy of
completed buildings:

72.5%

31 December 2022

% complete by area:

21.2%

31 December 2022

Costs to complete:

£58.9m

31 December 2022

Target contracted rent:

£10.0m

Estimated completion:

H1 2024

Buildings on
completion:

11

Total area on
completion:

492,400 sq ft

24

£33

We are delighted to have
completed the lease on Bullding 1
which is intended to be a
stepping stone whilst we await
the delivery of our larger space
on the park. Quantum computing
will revolutionise life sciences,
frorn enabiling design of better
catalysts througn to moving drug
discovery from experimentation
in test tubes to real-time
simulation on computers Oxford
lonics will be actively targeting
life science sector customers as a
future revenue source,

Chris Ballance
Oxford lonics
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What is it?

OTP is & 20-acre science and technology park in a key lecation
in the Golden Triangle. It 1S less than two miles from Oxford
University’'s Begbroke Science Park campus, seven miles north
of Oxford city centre and adjacent to Oxford Airport.

On acquisition in May 2022, OTP comprised two completed
buildings and a fully let hotei, and a development site for
eight further buildings, to give a total of more than 490,000
sq ft of hybrid life science space and amenities, 104,300 sa
f1 (21.2%) of which was completed. OTP will offer a unigue
corbination of space, with unit sizes ranging from 6 000 to
50,000 sq ft and the flexibihty for laboratory, production and
office uses. The buildings differ in purpose, with Building 1 for
example being a headquarters-style office and Buildings 43
and 4b comprising an 11-Uhit Innovation Quarter, catering to
life science SMEs.

Existing occupiers include The Native Antigen Group, which

has signed a ten-year lease at a headline rent of £15.0 per sq
ft. It is part of LGC Group, a global leader in life scienceas. The
hotel 1s let to Premier 'nn until 2045.

Headline rents for remaining and future space are targeted at
£20.0 - £25.0 per sq ft for hybrid lettings and £28.5 per sqg ft
for offices.

What have we done since purchase?

Since acquisition, the deveiopment has progressed well.
Buildings 4a, 4b, and 5 are due to complete by the end of
H1 2023 and buildings 6 and 7 are expected to complete
during H2 2023,
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A detailed planning application for Buildings 8 to 11is
ready to be submitted and we are expecting to start on-site
during 2023,

We are seeing strong occupier interest in both the standing
units and those still in development. In the second half, we
agreed a pre-let with Williams Advanced Engineering ("WAE™
an 56,500 sg ft in Buiiding 5, st an initial rent of £18.8 per

sq ft, rising to £20.32 per sq ft after 18 months. WAE offers
leading-edge technology to companies focusing on green
energy and medical engineering.

Since the end of the year, wa have completed two leases in
Building 1. Arcturis Data on 5,509 sq ft at a rent of £28.7 per
sq ft for ten years with a break and rent review after five years
and Gxford lonics on 4,887 sg ft at a rent of £28.5 per sq ft for
two vears, with a break clause at the end of the first yvear. This
gives Oxford lonfcs Initial accommodation, while it prepares

to occupy larger long-term space on the park. These lettings
increased occupancy of the completed space at OTP by 13.8%
to 86.3%

What is the future?

We will continue to progress our development programme at
QTP with the aim of completing the remaining 388,100 sg ft
of space by mid-2024. At the same time, we will secure further
lettings, with discussions ongoing with a range of potential
cccupiers. In addition, we are in talks with potential operators
to provide high-class amenities cn-site, including a café,
break-out space, meeting rooms and a gym.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

Bespoke buildings
which suit all
configurations

Oxford Technology Park

Current development

Development progress as at 24 March 2023

Completed: 90 '3 )
Under construction:. @ D O O ©
Phase 3: O00DPO oxfordtechnologypark.com
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Building 3

Sustainability features
= Amenity space will help stimulate collaboration and
knowledge exchange between occupiers

« New units being constructed to a standard that meets
MEES EPC rating of A or B, and a target BREEAM
certification of Excellent

= Featuresinclude:

- LED fittings with dimmable controls and presence
detection

- Environmentally friendly heating and comfort cooling,
with building sealed in excess of Building Regulations
- Energy monitoring systems and secondary metering EV charger
- Electrical installations, with a capped gas supply
- Recycling facilities to reduce waste to landfill
- Sustainable Drainage System ("SuD$") with
attenuation
- We intend to install photovoltaic panels on all new buildings,
providing renewable energy sources, reducing energy
consumption and increasing attractiveness of buildings with
the potential to increase rents and valuations
- Supporting sustainable transport via cycle shelters and
electric vehicle charging points with future-procfing
ductwaork far additional provision

Building 1
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STRATEGIC REPORT

STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

Realising
reversionary rent
potential

Rolling Stock Yard

Key statistics at 31 December 2022

CBRE valuation: Area:

£83.9m 53,900 sq ft
Contracted rent: Occupancy:
£3.5m 66.7%

WAULT to expiry: NIY/NRY:

6.5 years 3.9%/4.6%

Sustainability features
- BREEAM Excelilent and EPC A ratings

« All existing furniture has been repurposed or reused
and new furniture is sustainably sourced, long-lasting,
easily repairable and recyclable

« Building has LED lighting throughout
+ 110 cycle spaces

= Reception area will offer ethically sourced coffee

£

We are pleased to fease further
space at Raoliing Stock Yard and
continue our relationship with a
cluster which has a number of
distinct advantages for early-stage
Iife sciences companies. We place
great importance in ensuring that our
portfolio cornparnies have access to
modern facilities in attractive areas,
and we have seen previously with
Gyroscope Therapeutics that Rolling
Stock Yard has the key ingredients
that we believe are essential for
success in early-stage blotech.

Michael Kyriakides

Investment Partner at Syncona
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What is it?

Rolling Stock Yard is a nine-storey building in the vibrant
development area north of King's Cross and St Pancras
statians, in the heart of London’s Knowledge Quarter. (t offers
53.900 sq ft of high-quality office and laboratory space. The
building has been constructed to high sustainability standards
and was completed In March 2020.

On acquisition, Ralling Stock Yard was 66 7% cccupied and
had already attracted life science companies as occupiers,
including Gyroscope Therapeutics and Pacific Biosciences.
The first and second fltoors were both vacant, giving us the
scope tc add value through asset management.

What have we done since purchase?

We saw an opportunity ta refit the first and second floors
to create a combination of office space and 'plug and play’
laboratorias. The refit began in the second half of 2022 and
completed during Q1 2023,

The fab space is highly flexible, with mobile benching and the
ability ta sub-divide into smaller rooms, and has features such
as a changing lobby for cleanrliness. The office space inciudes
meeting rooms, break-out areas and other features allowing
occupiers to set up rapidly.
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The capital cost for the lab refit was around £2.0 million or
£158.5 per sa ft.

Since the year end, we have anncunced a lease with a life
science company backed by Syncona on the second floor at
£110.0 per sq ft for 7,322 sq ft of space, up from £65.0 per

sq ft before the refit. The lease is for five years with a tenant
break at year three and increases occupancy at the building to
86.4%.

The reception area provides important communal space but
we identified that it needed redesigning to make it a truly
attractive place for occupiers to collaborate with each other.
The new layout includes a ‘Co-Lab’ space with lounge seating
and a high-end coffee machine, while the mezzanine floor
offers a seating area with booths for meetings and work.

What is the future?
We are seeing accupier interest in the vacant first floor and
will continue to market it to life science companies.

The redesigned reception area is an ideal space for events and
exhibitions, and we hope these will become a regular feature
at Rolling Stock Yard.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

INVESTMENT ADVISER’S REPORT

Implementing the
investment strategy

We continued to implement the Group's investment strategy
during the year, with the Group acquiring two further assets
for the portfolio.

7-11 Herbrand Street

On 6 May 2022, the Group acguired Herbrand Properties
Limited, which owned the freehold to Herbrand Street, for
£85.0 millicn at a net initial vield of 4.4%. The entire building
is let until October 2026 to Thought Machine, ore of the UK's
ieading fintech companies, at a contracted rent of £4.0 million
per annum

The asset isin London's Knowledge Quarter, which includes
many innovative companies and major academic institutions
and healthcare crganisations such as University College
London, University College Hospital, the Francis Crick Institute
and the Oriel project, a future world-leading eye hospital,
research and education centre due to openin 2027

30

£6£3)

WE MADE GOOD PROGRESS
WITH ALL ASPECTS OF

THE GROUP'S STRATEGY,
WITH OUR DEVELOPMENT
AND ASSET MANAGEMENT
ACTIVITIES ADDING TO
INCOME AND SUPPORTING
CAPITAL VALUES.

SIMON FARNSWORTH
Managing Director

The iconic Art Deco building currently comprises Grade A
office space, with a net internal area of around 68,600 sq ft
on four floors with a partial basement. It represents an ideal
opportunity for development as a major life science asset,
with our feasibility study confirming it has great potential for
lab conversion, glven its substantial floor-to-celling heights,
structural slab and large, column-free floor plates.

Oxford Technology Park (“OTP")

On 13 May 2022, the Group acquired OTP through the
nurchase of Oxford Technology Park Hotdings Limited and
its subsidiaries, for £120 3 million (before rental guarantees
and other small adjustments) at a net initial vield on
purchase of 4.8%.

The acquisition included OTP’s debt of £33.6 million and the
Group will provide up to £67.3 million of forward funding

to complete the park’'s build-out, which is continuing to be
managed by the developer until practical completian.

Maore infarmation on OTP can be found in the case study on
pages 24 to 27.
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Types of real estate in the portfolio

Manufacturing

and prototyping
facilities

The portfolio

The Group's portfolio at 31 December 2022 was as follows:

Valuation WAULT WAULT Contracted rent’
£ per Area Occupancy to break to expiry NY NRY
sq ft s5¢ ft % Years Years £m p.a. £ PSF % %
376

7005 80.1

5 41 221

58

1,558 53,8002 66.7°
7-1 Herbrand Streget 79.8 1163 68,6008 100.0 — 3.8 4.0 58.5 4.7 5.0
OTP - Investments 438 420 104,300 72.5 141 15.3 1.4 7.9 30 51
Lumen House 7.8 446 17,600 100.0 - 0.4 Q4 24.5 51 7.0
The Merrifield Centre 75 595 12,600 1C0.0 4.0 9.0 0.3 231 36 55
Investment assets 310.0 634 488,700 82.0 4.5 6.2 13.8 331 4.2 5.2
OTP - Developmants 776 200 388,004 — - - - — - 4.8¢
Development assets 776 200 388,100 — - - e - - 4.8
Total 387.6 442 876,800 82.0 4.5 6.2 13.8 331 4,2 4.8
1. Restated from 31 December 2021 to exclude rental guaranteeas not held in escrow
2 Restated fram 31 Decamber 2021 to exclude the reception area
3. Restated from 31 December 2021 to be calculated as a percentage of ERV.
4. Full build-out area.
5. Restated in-iine with measured survay.
6 Development property only, excludes development land.

The contracted rent roll for the investment assets at the year end was E13.8 million (31 December 2021 £9.3 million), up 48.4%.
The portfolio has strong reversicnary potential, with the estimated rental value of the investment assets at 31 Decembear 2022
being £17.2 million (3t December 202t £10.1 million). This is some 24,6% above the contracted rent of the investment assets,
with the let area having a reversionary percentage of 8.7%. Our asset management programme aims to unlock this potential
income growth over time. Overall occupancy at the year end has improved by 1.1% to 82.0% (31 December 2021: 80.9%) driven
by 2022 acqguisiticns and the lease up of OTP.

Development assets consist of OTP buildings which are currently being constructed and the remaining development land.
As the bulldings practically complete they will be transferred into iInvestment properties above, The 388,100 sq ft area shown
in the table above is the expected area of the developrment assets once practically complete.

All of the assets are located within the Golden Triangle. The portfolio primarily comprises office and hybrid (office and laboratory)
space. The charts on the next page show the split of assets by locstion and type, based on their vaiuation, as well as by life science
occupier at 31 Dacember 2022.
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The portfolio continued

Asset location by valuation

Asset type by valuation!

Life science occupier
area by floor type?

B London 42.3%
B Oxford 33.3%
H Cambridge 24.4%

1. Includes full OTP scheme

B Hybrid & labs 77.4%
B Office 22.6%

2. 25% of portfolio area (incl vacant space) currently let out to ife science occuplers

3 Manufacturning and prototyping.

Labs (wet & dry) 36.8%
Office 28.5%

Write-up 26.6%

M&P? 7.1%

The table below shows the Group's top ten occupiers at the year end. We expect companies that are not in the life science
sactor to exit the list in the coming years, as leases expire and we reposition the assets for life science occupiers.

Contracted

rent p.a.
No. Name Asset’ (Em) % of total
1 Thought Machine? MS 40 29%
2 Gyroscope ‘RsY s 1%
.:’.) Car| Ze;ss R — CBp e e 7%
4 )‘em(UK) s e e e+ i o e+ , RSY ‘ L 5%
_.6 MTK ere‘ess N 07 5%
7 Premierinn 07 5%
& NatveAntigen o Cos 4%
3 Pecific Biosclences o RSY 05 4%
10 Janet : * H o4 3%
Subtotal - top ten 10.7 78%
Remaining? 31 22%
13.8 100%

Total

1 HS - Herbbrand Street; RSY - Roiling Stock Yard, CBP - CambBourne Business Park, OTP - Oxford Technology Park, LH - Lurmen House
2 Includes rantal guarantees at Rolling Siock Yard provided by the vendor
3. The Group's Investment policy mits any one tenant to no mare than 30% of the higher of gross caniracted rents or tre valuer's ERY of the Group’s portfoiio,

nciuding develogments ander forward-funding agreements As we build aut and .ease up QTR the rent roll will cantinue to diversify and recuce the proporeigr of

total rents com ng from indiv dual tenants
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Implementing the asset
management strategy

The portfalio presents a range of differant oppartunities ta
grow capital values and income, while positioning the assets
to meet occupier needs and enhancing their ESG credentials.
We made good progress with onr asset management nlans
during the year, in particular with developing new space at
OTP and repositioning existing space at other assets to appeal
to life sciehce occupters. As part of our new sustainability
strategy, we have developed long-term goals for the Group's
assels, see pages 44 and 45 for more detalls.

Cambourne Business Park

The Group acquired Cambourne Business Park with the goal

of repositioning it as the premier science park to the west of
Cambridge. We progressed our rebranding project during 2022
and intend to refaunch the park under its new brand in H1 2023.

We have made a good start te attracting new occupiers, and
since the year end have 5,000 sq ft under offer to an accupier
wha will fit out the space as a dry lab.

In addition, we are working up a scherme to convert around
20,000 sq ft to 'plug and play’ laboratory space. This has the
potential to increase rents to £40.0-£50.0 per sq ft, compared
with the current £23.0 per sq ft, while remaining highly
competitive against rents for similar space at other parks
around Cambridge.

The EPC rating at Cambourne Business Park was reassessed
during the first half of the vear, resulting in an improvement
from a D to a C rating, in line with our current target for the
Group’s assets. Qur asset management programme wiil further
enhance the site’s enviranmental credentials and EPC rating.

Rolling Stock Yard
Information on our asset management activities at Rolling
Stock Yard can be found in the case study on pages 28 and 29.

Rolling Stock Yard, London Knowledge Quarter
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7-11 Herbrand Street

The lease at Herbrand Street runs until Q4 2026. We continue
to engage with the occupier and our base case is that they will
stay until expiry. We are working up our plans for repositioning
the building for life science use, once the Group can secure
vacant possession.

Oxford Technology Park
Information on our asset management activities at OTP can
be found in the case study on pages 24 to 27,

Lumen House

During the year, we agreed a rent review on Lumen House,
which increased the contracted rent by £0.1 million per
annum from February 2022, in excess of our business plan
at acquisition.

The current lease at Lumen House expires in the second
quarter of 2023, We are working on plans to put forward

a comprehensive redevelopment of the asset, to make it

a highly attractive proposition for fife sclence occuplers.
While we progress these plans, including carrying cut a
feasibility study and securing planning permission, we are
Iin discussions with the current cccupier about a short-term
extension to the jease.

The Merrifield Centre

The occupier at the Merrifield Centre has completed a
comprehensive refurbishment of the building, including new
laboratories, offices and meeting rooms. The Group has
contributed to the installation of electric vehicle charging
points and the occupler has upgraded the lighting to LEDs.
The refurbishment demaonstrates the occupier's commitment
to the asset and we are expecting a significant improvement
to the current EPC rating of D. A new EPC rating will be
obtained in H1 2023,
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Financial review

Comparative figures

The comparative period for this set of results is from 1 August
to 31 December 20271, The Group cnly began to construct its
portfolio following the IPC on 19 November 2021, which meant
it was in operation for less than six weeks in that period. As

a result, it is not meaaningful to compare the Group's financial
performance in 2022 against the comparative period and the
discussion below focuses on 2022 on a standalone basis.

Financia! performance

Total gross property income in the year was £131 miltion
(2021 £0.5 million). Total revenue, which includes service
charge income, was £15.7 million (31 December 2021:
£0.5 million).

Property operating expenses including the gross up of
service charge expanditure were £4.8 miillion (2021: £nil),
resulting in net rental income of £10.9 million. Property
operating expenses are primarily void costs on vacant units,
and provisions for doubtful debts, ¢.50% of which related to
historic arrears that were inherited on acquisition.

Adrinistration costs comprise the Investment Adviser's fee,
other professional fees, including audit and valuation, the
Directors’ fees, and a range of other costs such as insurance
Administration costs before exceptional one-off costs totalled
£5.6 million (2021: £0.8 million).

The Company incurrad one-off costs in the year of

£1.0 million, in relation to its move from trading on AiIM to the
Main Market of the London Stock Exchange. There were no
one-off costs in the period tc 31 December 2021,

The total cost ratio for 2022 was 58.9% (31 December 2021
163.5%). This ratio is expected to improve with net rental
income continuing to grow, as the buildings at OTP practically
complete and lease up, and we repurpose our portfolio to
laboratory space, realising the reversionary rent potential.
Operating profit before the change in fair value of investrment
properties was £4.4 million (2021 £0 .3 million loss).

The unrealised loss on revaluation of investment properties
was £31.3 milhon (2021; £8.0 million gain), see the valuation
and net asset value section in this report for a full explanation
of the key drivers

The net finance charge for the year was £0.5 million (2021
£nil), which was made up of finance costs of £5.6 milllon,
finance income of £3.3 million, and £1.8 million of interest
capitalised, relating to the development of OTP.
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As a REIT, the Group is not subject to corporation tax onits
property rental business and is estimated to incur a small
level of tax onits residual business of £0.1 million. The IFRS
loss after tax for the year was therefore £27.6 million

(31 December 2027: IFRS profit after tax of £7.7 million).
This resulted in an IFRS loss per share of 7.9 pence

{31 December 2021: 2.2 pence earnings per share) and
EPRA EPS of 0.4 pence (31 December 2021: O.1 pence loss
per share). Adjusted EPS, which is EPRA ERS excluding
the impact of exceptional one-off casts, was 0.7 pence

(31 Decamber 2021- 0.1 pence loss per share).

Dividends

The Company paid an interim ordinary dividend of 1.0 pence
per share on 31 October 2022, in respect of the period froem
Adrmission to 30 June 2022,

At 1RO, the Company set a target dividend yield of 4.0%,
based on the issue price of 100 pence per share. After paying
an interim dividend of 1.0 pence per share on 31 October
2022, the Board has declared a second interim dividend

of 3.0 pence per share, to give a total for the period from
Admission to 31 December 2022 of 4.0 pence, thereby
meeting the dividend target. The second interim dividend
will be paid as an ordinary dividend on 15 May 2023, with an
ex-dividend date of 13 April 2023,

The cash cost of the second interim dividend for the pericd

is £10.5 million. At 31 December 2022, the Group had
distributable reserves of £337.1 million, the majority being in
the Company following the cancellation of the share premium
account in the year.

Valuation and net asset value

The portfolio was independently valued by CBRE as at

31 December 2022, in accordance with the internationally
accepted RICS Valuation - Professional Standards

{the "Red Book").

The portfolio valuation was £387.6 miliion (31 December 2027
£192.2 million), a £195 4 million increase since 2021,

The increase in the year was driven by acqguisitions of

£213.4 million and ongoing development and repurposing
capital expenditure of £1C.2 million. This was partially offset
by revaluation losses of £31.3 millicn {31 December 2021

£8.0 million gainy, resultng in a 7.5% reduction on a book
value basis. £27.0 million of this loss can be attributed to
assets acquired in 2022 whilst the remaining £4.3 million is
driven by the remaining portfolio, a 1.8% like-for-like reduction

Tre kay drivers of the £270 milhon revaluation loss were
acauisition costs of £168.2 million and full costs being reflected
within tne valuations in addition to some outward yield shift in
H2 2022
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Movement in NTAPS

The like-for-like portfelic £4.3 million ioss can be split as
follows; £11.6 million is attributable to a year-on-year 28 hasis
points outward yield shift driven by declining market
conditicns in H2 2022, offset by £7.3 million primarily due

to 4.7% like-for-like ERV growth as we continue to develop
our assets.

The let portfolic has a reversionary percentage of 87%
which will help the portfolic to withstand any further market
outward yield shifts as we continue to deliver on our asset
management strategy.

As a result of the revaluation loss, the IFRS NAV was

91.3 pence per share, down from 100.2 pence per share
at 31 December 2021. The EPRA NTA at the year end was
90.0 pence per share (31 Decernber 2021 100.2 pence
per sharea),

The chart above reconciles the movement in the NTA per
share over the year ("NTAPS™). The portfolio revaluation loss
was the largest single contributor to the movement.

Debt financing

in March 2022, the Group agreed a £150.0 million debt facility
with HSBC, comprising a £75.0 million three-year term loan
and a £75.0 million revolving credit facility ("RCF"), The
interest rate on the facility is 225 basis points over SONA.
The facility has market normal covenants on L TV and interest,
cover. It gives the Group additional financial rescurces to
deliver its strategy and the flexibility to add new properties to
the security pool, to reach the Group's optimal gearing target
as it acquires new assets.

Life Science REIT ple aAnnual Repert and Financial Statements 2022

At 31 Decernber 2022, the Group had drawn £75.0 million
against the term loan and £nil against the RCF, In August
2022, the Group secured additional protection against
future interest rate nses, by capping the SONIA rate on
the £75.0 million term loan at 2.0% until 31 March 2025,
The premium for the cap was £2.3 million.

in addition to the HSBC facility, the Group acguired a debt

facility as part of the OTP transaction, which had £35.8 millian
drawn against it at 31 December 2022 and is shown in current
lisbilities at the year end, as it was due to mature in June 2023,

In February 2023 the OTP debt facility was refinanced
by drawing down £26.3 million from the Group's existing
£150.0 million HSBC facility as well as utilsing existing
cash resources.

The facility acquired as part of the OTP transaction also has
protection in place, capping SONIA at 0.75% for £22.3 million
of the drawn debt. As a result, 94.1% of the Group's drawn
debt was hedged at the year end and the average cost of
debt was 4.0%.

At the year end, the Group had cash and cash equivalents

of £45.6 million (31 December 2021: £166.0 million), with the
reduction primarily reflecting the acquisitions made during the
year, as well as our werk to develop and reposition the assets
in the portfolio.

The LTV ratio as 31 December 2022 was 16.8%. On a gross
debt hasis this was 28 6% we continue to believe that a range
of 30%-40% will be optimal in the longer term.
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Cancellation of the share premium account

On 12 April 2022, the share premiurn account of £239.3 million
was cancelled in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and transferred to a capital reduction
reserve, to create distributable reserves.

Resourcing for growth

We have continued to expand our team to ensure we have
the skills and capacity to secure the opportunities we see for
the Group. During the year, we recruited a Director of Asset
Management, a Senior Asset Manager, a General Counsel,
strengthened our finance team and employed a research
analyst with a background in life sciences, which will enhance
our knowledge of the market, help us to identify growth
opportunities and inform our due diligence on potential
Qccupiers.

We are committed to employing a gender diverse team.
having rolled out training on this subject in 2022. Qur gender
ratio as at 31 December 2022 was 46% female and 54% male
(including consulting staff).
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Post period end events
Since the year end, we have:

+ completed letting te Oxford lonics on 4,887 sg ft of space
at CTPR, at a rent of £28.5 per sq ft;

» completed letting with a life science company backed by
Syncona on 7.327 sq ft at Rolling Stock Yard, at a rent of
£NC.0 persg ft

» completed letting to Arcturis Data at OTP on 5,509 sq ft,
at a rent of £28.7 per sq ft;

« the above lettings progress increases occupancy of our
investment properties to 88.6%, a 6.6% uplift on the
year end position;

- the Board has declared a second interim dividend

of 3.0 pence per share in respect of the vear ended

21 December 2022, in addition to the 1.0 pence interim

ordinary dividend paid on 31 Qctober 2022, and has

therefore met the target dividend yield of 4.0% set at [PO.

This will be paid as an ardinary dividend on 16 May 2023,

with an ex-dividend date of 13 April 2C23;

Sustainabllity Committee formed with Sally Ann Forsyth

as Chair; and

= in February 2023 the OTP debt facility was refinanced
by drawing down £26 .3 miilion from the Group's existing
£150.0 milllion HSBC facility as well as utilising existing
cash resources.
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Compliance with the investment policy

The Group’s Investrment policy is set out in full on pages 15t te 153. The key elements of the policy are summarised below,

We complied with the policy throughout the year:

POLICY ELEMENT

= Invastin a diversified portfolio of properties across the UK which are typically
leased or intended to be lcased to tensnts aperating i, ur roviding a benerit to,
the life science sectar {Mlife science properties”).

= Examnples of the assets the Group can acquire: wet and dry laboratories, offices,
incubators and co-working space, manufacturing and testing facilities. and data
centres.

* The Group can acauire individual buildings, a group of buildings across a single
science park or the entirety of a sclence park. This may include purchasing or
developing buildings that are leased or intended to be leased to tenants providing
ancillary services to employees of companies operating in, or providing a benefit to,
the life sclence sector.

= The Group will typically invest in iIncome-producing assets, consistent with
providing capital growth and growing income.

= Any asset management or development opportunities will minimise any
development Hisk, typically through forward funding or similar arrangements.

= The maximum exposure to developments or land without a forward-funding
arrangement is 15% of gross asset vatua (“GAV™).

No individual buliding will represent more than 35% of GAV, reducing to 25% of GAY
by 31 December 2023,

+ The Group targets a portfolio with no one terant accounting for more than 20%.
(but subject te a maximum of 30%) of the higher of either (i) gross contracted
rents or (I the valuer's ERV of the Group’s portfolic including developments under
forward-funding agreements, as calculated at the time of investing or leasing

« The aggregate maximum exposure to assets under development, including
forward fundings, will not exceed 50% of GAV, reducing to 30% of GAV by
31 December 2023.

+ No more than 10% of GAV will be invested in properties that are not life
science properties.

= The Group will not invest mare than 10% of GAV in other alternative investment
funds or ¢losed-ended investment companies.

Alternative Investment Fund Manager (“AlIFM”)

COMPLIANCE IN THE PERIOD

Yes. All the properties are in the Golden
Iriangle and are either leased or intended to
be leased to life science organisations.

Yes. The assets acquired were a mix of
laboratory and office space.

Yes. We have acquired both individual assets
and a scrence park.

Yas. All the assets we acquired were income
producing (other than the development at
OTP) and offer potential for capital growth
and rising income through asset management.

Yas, We are farward funding the development
programme at OTP and have a fixed-price
contract for each building with the developer

Yes. There are no developments or land
without a forward-funding arrangement

Yes, no bullding exceeds these thresholds.

One tenant exceaeds 20% but remains
below the 30% threshold. This percentage
is expected to fall as OTR continues to be
daeveloped and leased up.

Yeas, 20% of assats are currently in
development,

Yes, maore than 20% of assets ara currentiy
classified as life science properties.

Yes. The Company has no investments of
this type.

G10 Capital Limited ("G10™") is the Company's AIFM, for the purposes of the UK AIFM Regime, with lronstone providing advisory

services to both G10 and the Company.

Ironstone Asset Management Limited
Investment Adviser

24 March 2023
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ENsuring we

grow and manage
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Oxford Technology Park, Oxford
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We are committed to:

Green and healthy certified buildings

Environmental performance certificates
(“EPC”) ratings of A or B for all nhew buildings

Robust benchmark data to enable us to build
a net zero carbon pathway

Biodiversity net gain

Zero waste to landfill
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Introduction from our Sustainability Lead
and Chair of Sustainability Committee

The Group is commutted to being a class-leading performer
on ESG matters. As regulations and stakeholder expectations
continue to rapidly advance, we aim to be an early adopter
of new best practices and to continue to engage with our
occuUpiers and other stakeholders, to understand and support
their evolving sustainability objectives.

In May 2022 | became the Board's Sustainability Lead, with
overall responsibility for sustainability. In this role, | regularly
meet the Investment Adviser's Head of ESG and have overseen
and supported the development of the Company's sustainability
strategy during 2022, To define our approach, we have drawn
on our engagemeant with occupiers and the Investment Advisar's
team, and a review of peer group practices, as well as taking
account of Article 8 of the Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Regulation aspirational for the Group, currently classified as
Article 6 and our expectations of future legislation

The strategy we have developed is multi-faceted, setting
out our sustainability obiectives at a corporate level, as

well as more granular initiatives and targets for our existing
assets, and the minimum standards we need to meet for our
developments and future acguisitions.
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£6£J)

OUR OCCUPIERS' FOCUS IS
TO HELP MAKE THE LIVES

OF MILLIONS BETTER; OUR
MISSION IS TO REDUCE THE
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT OF
THE REAL ESTATE WHILST
GIVING OCCUPIERS THE BEST
ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH

TO THRIVE.

DR SALLY ANN FORSYTH OBE

Sustainability Lead and Chair of Sustainability Committee

Specifically, we are committed to achieving:

- green and healthy certified buiidings;

« environmental performance certificates ("EPC") ratings
of A or B for all new buildings;

- robust benchmark data to enable us to build a net zero
carbon pathway,

-~ biodiversity net gain; and

- zero waste to landfill.

You can find more information about our strategy,
how we developed it and the targets we have set
on the following pages.

We have also established a Sustainability Committee that

| chalr, which includes members of the Board, the Head of
ESG and representatives of the Investrment Adviser's asset
management and finance teams. The Committee’'s main remit
is to oversee and review the formulation, implernentation

and effectiveness of the sustainability strategy, as well as to
manage climate-related risks and opportunities. We held our
first meeting In February 2023.

Having deone much preparation work during 2022, we have
now entered the implementation phase of our strategy, as we
work towards our targets with the support of cur tnird-party
experts. In doirg so, we will facus on bringing all cur
stakenolders along with us or the journey.
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Sustainability highlights

SCOPES 1 AND 2 GHG EMISSIONS DISCLOSURE

247.1 tonnes CO e

WASTE DIVERTED FROM LANDFILL

100%

A-CEPC RATED PROPERTIES IN THE PORTFOLIO

83%

Since our inception, we have taken our environmental
responsibilities seriously. Over the last vear we have
implemented our core strategy, deploying our capital across a
number of assets. As we progress into the next phase we will
widen our sustainability ambition, enhancing our assets across
a breadth of environmeantal and socizl issues.

We recognise the impact of climate change on both society
and the built environment, indeead over the vear we have seen
the impacts first hand with the summer heatwave impacting
across the UK.

For the Group this heightens the importance of action, so our
priority this year has been to understand the environmental,

social and governance 1ssueas that are specific to our business,
fundamental to our stakeholders and deliver long-term value.

During 2022 we reassessed the EPCs at Cambourne Business
Park, which brings our total A-C ratings to a healthy 83%,
With the stringent MEES regulations proposed over the
coming vears, we are well placed to meet the targets of

C rated buildings by 2027 and B rated buildings by 2030,
seizing the cpportunity of green premiurns attached to

more anerqgy efficient buildings.
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ESG
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

See more on page 45

ASSET LEVEL
CLIMATE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

See more on page 48

SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGY
DEVELOPED

See more on page 42

EPC ratings by area
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Sustainability strategy
development

Life science facilities are fundamental to enabling life scientists
to salve global environmental problems. This includes

issues such as disease; feeding the burgeoning population;
combatting pollution; and facilitating weliness of ageing
populations.

We recognise that collaboration and engagement is central
to the life science sector and are committed to creating
innovative hubs that enable life science businesses to
engage with one another and to build environrments that
are conducive to solving global problems.

Sustainability roadmap

®-

Qur vision is to create environmental, social and economic
value for our shareholders and wider stakeholders by
integrating sustainability into the way we grow and manage
our partfolio. The Group 1s committed to achieving exemplary
environmental and social perfaormance across all our
operations, and to underpinning our commitment through

a robust governance structure.

Current achievements

2021

Q3 2022

The London Plan
+ On-site energy reduction of

Integrated ESG risks into corporate
risk register

35% beyond current Building
Regulation Part L

« Whoie-life carbon assessments
reguired

o— @

@

Q22022

Q4 2022

SFDR analysis

Sustainability strategy developed

angagement

ESG stakehalder mapping and

Climate impact assessment
and TCFD reporting

Key:
The Group's future
The Group's achievements to date

JK Government

E

Annual Reportincluding ESG
integration
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In 2022, we partnered with a specialist consultant

Sqguare Gamn Limited {"Square Gain®), to help develop our
sustainability strategy. Our approach included detailed
stakeholder mapping and engagement, in addition to a review
of current and future regulation, and a peer review. This
informed a materiality assessment which was developed into
our sustainability strategy in alignment with the Sustainable
Finance Disclosure Regulations ("SFDR™).

Future aims

Q12023

EPC A

BREEAM

Fitwel

Asset-by-asset plan

The Group's sustainability strategy incorporates corporate
commitments in addiion to specific initiatives across our
existing portfolio and minimum standards for new acguisitions
and new around-up construction. Specific and measurable
targets will be set this coming year so progress towards our
long-term goals can be reported.

2050

Net zero UK

2025

The Future Buildings Standard.
No new gas boilers

Embodied carbon - Part Z
{(proposed)

oo &

L @ @

Q4 2023 2024

Zero waste to landfill

portfolio

Supporting local charities

Biodiversity net gain across entire

Date to be determined

Net zero carbon for direct

Biodiversity strategy on all projects

Net zero pathway for Scope 1 and
2 emissions
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(Scope1and 2) carbon emissions

Net zero carbon for indirect
(Scepe 3) carbon emissions
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Sustainability strategy

Environment

Reducing our impact onh the environment,
reducing carbon emissions and waste, and
enhancing biodiversity.

Long-term goals

Net zero carbon pathway
Data driven carbon reduction targets

BREEAM certifications and ‘best-in-class' EPC ratings
across our portfolio

Bicdiversity strategy on all projects with external space
and achieva biodiversity net gain

Encourage circdlar economy

Zero non-hazardous waste to landfill

l

Social value

Providing buildings that enhance wellbeing,
enccourage collaboration and enable a healthy
workforce for our occupiers.

i Long-term goals

Providing healthy buildings, using the Fitwe! standard as
the basis far certified builldings

Encouraging active travel and providing cyclist facilities
Partnering with our occupiers on the journey to
achieving net zero carbon and a healthy workforce
Providing space in our buildings to enable occupiers to
collaborate

Supporting and engaging with charitable organisations
in the areas in which we work

Governance

Setting the highest standards of corporate
governance.
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‘ Long-term goals
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Sustainable governance that meets stakeholders
expectations

Oversight of ESG risks and opportunities

ldertifyirg climate-related risks to influence strategy
and investments

Communication via transparent disclosure and
participation in investor benchmarks and indices



Key metrics

= Carbon emissions (CO,e)

» Energy intensity (kWh)

= Asset carborn inlensily

« Water and waste usage

« % of renewable energy procured

« Waste to landfill

+ Number of biodiversity plans in place
» Number of building certification

Achievements to date

= First publication of environmental perfermance data
» Energy disclosures (see ESG disclosures on pages 52 to 57);
+ 2471 tonnes CO.e - Scopes 1and 2 GHG emissions

= 155 0 MWh of electricity generated from the solar
PV panels installed at Cambourne Business Park and
consurned on-site
= 100% waste was diverted from landfill

« Roiling Stock Yard and Oxford Technology Park Unit 1 -~
BREEAM ‘Excellent’

- EPCratings have improved significantly, A-C rated
properties are 83% of the portfolic compared to 31%
in December 2021

Key metrics

Achievements to date

» Number of Fitwel certifications
« Employee satisfaction survey results
= Active transport plans in place

« Number of cccupier engagements/collaboration on
ESGissues

* Number of suppliers engaged on environmental and
soclial issues

« ESG stakeholder engagement with our staff, occupiers
and Beoard to identify areas of mutual importance

+ The lnvestment Adviser has sponsored the Cambourne
10km run and committed to a donation of £15000 to a
local charity mear OTP

- Cambaourne Business Park feasibility study included a
local needs analysis

Key metrics

Achievements to date

« Number of Sustainabllity Committee meetings held

« Use of refurbishment, development and acguisiticn
standards

+ Board meetings where ESG is specifically discussed
» Progress of mitigation measures for climate-related risks

* Benchmarking and indices results e.g. GRESB, EPRA,
MSCI
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» Robust, fully functioning governance which underpins
our business and facilitates integrity and transparency

+ Formed Sustainability Committee post year end, chaired
by Sally Ann Forsyth. Further details are set out on
page 85

« Integration of climate-related risks into the risk
framework

v+ A climate impact assessment was undertaken by our
specialist consultant, the results of which are set out in
the TCFD section below

» First TCFD reporting
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TCFD reporting

The Group discloses its algnment with the Task Farce

on Climate-related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD")
recommeandations for the first time this year. The Group

is exempt from the disclosure requirement as Listing Rule
2.8 .6R(8) explicitly excludes ciosed-ended investment
companies. However, we fully support the recommendations
and wish to demonstrate our alignment from the start.

I this report we will share our current response to climate
change and detail the considerations that we have made in
the past yvear in assessing the potential impact to our business,
The report will show our approach to assessing both the
transitional and physical risks that it may pose to our business,
along with consideration of the cpportunities it will bring.

Some elements of these disclosures are addressed elsewhere
in the report and signposting is indicated below

Compliance statement

The Groug has chosen to commit o the TCFD disclosure
raquirements (even though it is exempt) reporting on nine out

of the 11 TCFD requirernents. The Group 15 not compliant with

the following recormmendations:

Strategy: Describe the impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities on the organisation’s businesses, strategy and
financial planning.

Metrics and targets: Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if appropriate,
Scope 3 greenhouse gas ("GHG™) emissions, and the related risks,

Over the course of 2023 the Group will continue te embed best

practice as per the recommendations, with a view to maturing our

disclosuras. By way of explanation, we are currentiy not compliant

with the bwo requirements because:

= Climate-related risks and oppartunities have been identfied,
and the financeal timpact of these risks and opportunities will be
calculated in detail during 2023 to inform business strategy and
financial planning.

Scope 1 and 2 GHGs are calculated and disclosed, and the Group
has commenced engagement with our occupiers to identify
their emissions, which form part of our Scope 3 emissions.

This data will be used to Inform haw we can best support our
accupiars to reduce these emissions, for example through the
provision of energy efficient buildings that promote active and
low-carbon travel.

ElLLAR J TCFD RECOMMENDATION J LSECTION NAME PAGE

GOVERNANCE 3. Board oversight Governance 72

b. Managemenst role Investment Adviser's 30 to 37

report
STRATEGY a. Risk igentfication and assessment Risk managerean: 6210 69
process

b. Risk management process

<. Integration into overall risk management
RISK a. Risks and opportunities Strategy 20and 21
MANAGEMENT b. Impact on arganisation Governance 72

<. Resilience of strategy
METRICS 2 Climate-related metrics Sustanability I8to 57
AND TARGETS b Scopel, 2 and 3 GHG emissians

c. Chimate-related targes
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Governance

Board oversight of climate-related risks

and opportunities

The Buard is responsible for the Group's risk management.
The Board reviews risks and opportunities within existing
reparting and governance structure and has established a
Sustainability Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee
reviews the risks at each meeting and provides updates to
the Board.

In May 2022, Sally Ann Forsyth was appointed as
Sustainability Lead with overall responsibility for the
sustainability strategy. Sally Ann and the Investment Adviser's
appointed Head of ESG have regular meetings to discuss

the three areas of sustainabiiity, £, S and G. A Sustainability
Committee has been formed post year end, with members
from the Board, the Investment Adviser’s Head of ESG, Asset
Management and Finance. The Committee will meet twice a
year, with the first meeting being held in February 2023,

The Sustainability Committee monitors progress against
strategy targets which includes climate-related risk mitigation.
This review forms the basis of a paper included in the
quarterly Board meetings.

The Board will be given quarterly updates of our progress
against our sustainability strategy at Board meetings.

An analysis of the Group’s climate-related risks and
cpportunities has been undertaken, by our specialist adviser,
with the results reviewed at Board level, and incorporated
into the corporate risk register. All risks and opportunities are
reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Investment Adviser and
then by the Audit and Risk Committee, which is ultimately
responsible for overseeing the climate-related risks and
opportunities. For full details of our Risk Management
Framework see page 62.

The Investment Adviser recommends acquisitions to the
Group: during this process environmental due diligence

15 undertaken focused on flooding risk, geclogy and

EPC of the property. It 1s our intention to broaden these
cansiderations further so we understand the costs of meeting
new regulations such as MEES regulations and planning
restrictions. in 2023 we will be producing a sustainability
guide as part of the process on acguisitions.
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Management’s role in assessing

and managing risks and opportunities

The Group's Risk Management Framework, which is approved
by the Beard, sets ocut how we identify, evaluate and report
on our risks, The Investment Adviser has identified climate
change as one of our principal risks and it is therefore
incorporated into our risk framework (further detail of the
Risk Management Framework can be found on page 62).

The Investment Adviser reviews and updates the risk register
and reports quarterly to the Audit and Risk Committee.

The Investment Adviser's appointed Head of ESG has been
working closely with Square Gain to design and implement

a challenging and relevant sustainability strategy. A key part
of the work undertaken by Square Gain was a climate impact
assassment of our assets. The results are shown on page 49.
The output from the analysis was reviewed and discussed at
the first Investment Adviser risk review meeting of 2023.

Implemeantation and management of the sustainakility
strategy is delegated to the tnvestment Adviser. The Head of
ESG ensures that the strategy and targets are communicated
to the Investment Adviser's team and meets with the broader
team monthly to implement the action plan and drive
progress,

The specialist consultant has held a workshep with our
Investment Adviser to give an independent review of
climate-related risks and opportunities across our business.
The results of which fed into the sustainability strategy and
the risk register. The Audit and Risk Committee will review
these climate-related risks and opportunities to ensure the
assessment is accurate and mitigating action is appropriate.

For full detalls of our Risk Management Framework see
page 62.
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TCFD reporting continuad
Strategy

Our approach

Over the last year under the stewardship of our Board, we
have identified the climate-related risks and opportunities
over the short (present), medium (2030) and long (2050)
term, as set out In the section below.

This saction will detail firstly our appreach to the climate
impact assessment and defining matenal risks and
oppoertunities, secondly the material risks identified, thirdly
the impact of these risks and our organisational response,
and lastly haw we incorporate resilience to climate change
intc our organisation,

We understand that climate risk i1s both material risk
associated with rapidly changing weather events (physical
risk) and the resulting market shifts due to regulatory and
policy responses to overcome the impacts (transition risk).

Climate-related risks and opportunities

Climate impact assessment

An assessment analysis has been undertaken across the
Group's portfolio, on an asset-by-asset basis, examining 2030
and 2050 time horizons. Both of these time horizons assess the
physical climate risks posed by future climate change, and also
the risks that arise as we transition towards a net zero carbon
economy.

Buildings have lang design lifespans and climate-related
issues often manifest themselves over the medium and longer
term (as stated in TCFD implementation Guide). The Group’s
approach incorporates the short-term time horizon as the
present, with medium term being 2030 and long term being
2050. Our approach to identifying and managing current
climate-related risks and opportunities is as per our risk
management process and material climate-related risks are
incorporated in our corporate risk register.

Methodofogy

To take account of the diverse range of climate futures, we
incarporate three of the Intergovernmentat Pane! on Climate
Change's ("IPCC") representative concentration pathways
("RCPs") measuring average global warming.

RCP 2.6:09-2 3°C
* RCP 4.517-32°C
» RCPG.0:20-37°C
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The pathways describe different climate futures, all of which
are considered passible depending on the volume of GHGs
emitfed in the years to come. The climate scenaric model
used is MAGICCE. MAGICC (Model for the Assessment of
Greenhouse Gas Induced Climate Change) is the climate
carbon cycle model, which has been continually developed
since its inception over 20 years ago.

tt is a prime reduced-complexity model, often used by IPCC,
for key scientific publications and by a number of intagrated
assessment models,

Using location data for each site our tool shows how the
severity of a broad range of climate impacts will change over
time, at different levels of global warming, which depend on
how rapidly governments cut their GHG emissions.

Defining a ‘material’ risk or opportunity

The Group defines a ‘material’ risk or opportunity In ine with
the likelihood impact thresholds of our Risk Management
Framework.

The potential Impact of climate change 1s one of our
principal risks, as we seel to both reduce our impact on
the environment and the impact of climate change on our
activities, portfolio and finances.

We have developed a separate climate-related risk register,
to help us identify, consider and mitigate both physical and
transitional risks.

Key risks included within the climate-related risk register are:

« occupler demand changes seeking more sustainable
options;

« decarbonisation pathway;

« stranded assets;

e flooding - impacting on cccuplers and asset values, and

inability to access Green Finance options.

Opportunities include:

* ocecupier demand for sustainable space results in a ‘green
premium’;

« lower cost of cepital as market transitions towards green
econcmy; and

= ooportunity to acquire discounted ‘browr’ assets and
transform to sustamnable asset through re-purposing.

Refer to page 63 in the risk section which shows how we
envisage the potential change over time for these risks.
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Impact of climate risks and our response

We have completed a climate impact assessment for medium
and long-term impacts and have committed toc undertake
robust climate risk and vulnerability assessments on all our
assets, with solutions Toplemented to reduce material risks.

The Group's plan for transitioning to a low-carbon economy
is in formation. Last yvear. our first full year of operations,
was focused on identifying and measuring our Scope 1and 2
carbon emissions baseline. 2023 s working towards defining
how we transition te a low-carbon economy and setting
targets to measure progress, Qur approach will be through
occupier engagement, developing refurbishment standards
and investigating renewable opticns.

« Risk 1: Occupier demand for sustainable space results
in a 'brown discount’ to rents at iess sustainable assets.
To manage this risk, we target BREEAM certification with
at least a "Very Good' rating and EPC rating of at least B
(transition risk).

Climate impact assessment results

« Risk 2: Stranded assets - building inopearability due to

significant fluctuation in air temperature, and an inability to
meet required operating temperatures. This risk is managed
across our acguisition and asset management activities,

by undertaking climate risk analysis, to ensure that we can
enhance the asset’s climate resilience when acquiring new
buildings and when undertaking works to refurbish and
repurpose the asset to life science use (transition risk).

Risk 3: Flooding and/or building damage due to surface
water or river discharge. We have rapped our existing
portfolio against flood risks using the Environment
Agency database, and also incorperate this as part of cur
due diligence process when acquiring new buildings. Most
assets are ¢lassified as having very [ow risk of flooding
{physical risk).

Risk 4: Compliance costs to meet minimum EPC standards.
This risk is managed on acquisition via an environmental
assessment as part of the due diligence process to ensure that
the building has an EPC rating of at least B or we understand
the investment to meet the future Minimum Energy Efficiency
Standards ("MEES") regulations (transition risk).

RISK/FACTOR VULNERABILITY SCENARIO IMPACT MEDIUM IMPACT LONG
TERM 2030 TERM 2050
Change in precipitation Flooding RCP 26
i Lo
n % RCP 4.5
RCPB.O
Change in wind speed Building damage RCP 26
in % RCP 4.5
RCP B.0
Change in maximum Building darnage RCP 256
of daily river discharge RCP 45
in %
RCP 6.0
Change in daily Building RCF 26
maximum air inoperability, heat RCE 4.5
temperature in °C stress
RCP 6.0
Change In daily Building RCP 26
minirnum air . inoperability RCP 4.5
temperature in °C
RCP 6.0
Key
Low impact High impact
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TCFD reporting continued

Strategy continued

« Risk 5: Increasing price of carbon offsets, Our strategy s to
reduce carbon emissions aligned with the carbon hierarchy,
with offsetting as a last resort towards our goal of achieving
net zerc carbon for our direct emissions {transition risk).

« Risk 6: [ncreased cost of capital 85 markats transition to
a green economy. This risk is managed by our drive to
ensure that all portfolic assets are classified as 'green’ and
our aim to align with the EU Taxonomy whearever possible
(transition risk).

Resilience of the Group’s strategy

The baseline that we have set over the last year enables us
to further understand our assets and our strategies. The
impact assessment, climate-reiated risks and opportunities
will be incorporated into the Board and management team’s
2023 future strategy day. This in turn will define the Group’s
strategic direction.

The Group's sustainakility strategy takes into consideration
different chimate-related scenarios, including a 2°C or lower
scenario, and uses RCP 2.6, RCP 4.5 and RCP 6.0, to ensure
our business operations have resilience in cach of these
scenarios

We mitigate physical climate-related risks on an asset-level
hasis. by assessing each asset in our portfolio against physical
climate-related risk, and have [dentified these risks to be (ow
to medium risk for all assets, against all iIndicators for RCP 2.6
and RCP 4.5 For RCP 6.0 the risk of bullding inoperability due
to higher maximum temperatures 1s a more significant risk.
We will manage, minimise and mitigate this risk through the
incorporation of a sustainability checklist for use as part of our
due diligence process when acquiring new assets, including
climate-related risk assessment,

We will mitigate our climate impacts by implementing a range
of measures, including tha use of BREEAM certification,
achieving A or B rated EPCs and enhancing biodiversity,

When acquiring new buildings, we also undertake an
environmental assessmeant and climate risk analysis as part
of the due diligence process. This helps to ensure that we
can enhance the asset’s cimate resilience when works are
undertaken to refurbish and repurpose the asset to life
science use

New leases include clauses designed to assist with delivering
our climate change ambitions, for example requiring any
building alterations to be of a type and quality that does not
impact negatively on the EPC rating.
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Risk management

Identifying and assessing climate-related risks
We have updated our risk framework with a new risk categary
“Climate-related risk ~ physical and transitional risks {o the
portfolio and the business, arising from climate change”.

We have overarching ESG and ciimate-related risks within the
corporate risk register, and have also, in conjunction with our
advisers, developed a separate climate-related risk register,
covering both physical and transitional risks. The impact

of chimate change remains identified as one of the top nine
principal risks for the Group which are identified by assessing
the impact and likelihood of the risk occurring. The same risk
assessment principals and terminology are applied to climate
risk as to our other types of risks.

Qur risk assessment process incorporates an assessment

of emerging regulatory reguirements, for example MEES
(Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards), and how these could
impact on our operations. Qur assessment has shown that cur
portfolio is resilient and that these risks are not material at the
present time

The Investment Adviser reviews and updates the risk register
on a guarterly basis, including both nhysical and transition
chimate-related risks, which are assessed on both a business
and an asset level. The Head of ESG attends these reviews
and provides insights and suggests updates, Furthermore, our
specialist cansultant wili be invited to attend one meeting a
year prior to the Audit and Risk Committee update.

For full details of our Risk Management Framework see
page 62 and consideration of emerging risks.

Managing climate-related risks

The risk register is presented at gach meeting of the Audit
and Risk Committee, highlighting any changes in risk, whether
emerging, additional or deleted risks, changes to the controls
in place, or changes to the evaluation of our exposure to

that risk.

The Sustainability Committes will review and update the
climate-related risks, as appropriate, prior to each Audit and
Risk Committee meeting

Integrating inta the Group’s overall risk
management

We have established the chimate-related risk identification,
assessment and managemant into our core Risk Management
Framework; see page 62.
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Metrics and targets

The metrics used by the Group to assess climate-related
risks and opportunities are aligned with our strategy and risk
management procass.

We believe that in order to have the positive impact that

we aspire to it is essential that we understand our carbon
footprint. This baseline allows us to set metrics and targets
against which to hold ourselves accountable on our journey to
net zero carban and wider sustainability achievements, As part
of our sustainability strategy, 2023 will see us gathering data to
inform the target date for achieving net zero carbon.

For a list of externally communicated metrics see page 45,

Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 GHG emissions,
and related risks

The Group is currently focused on robustly measuring Scope
1and 2 GHG emissions (see the following section EPRA sBPR
reporting for disclosure) and related risks, reporting externally
at a portfolio level and internally, at a granular detail per asset.

Targets

Currently, the Group is responsible for the majority of its
occuplers' energy procurernent and over 75.7% of the
landlord-procured energy was consumed by occupiers.

This will be used to identify cpportunities and to establish
further targets to reduce total energy use, energy intensity
and carbon emissions.

We are conscious that our occupiers’ energy use and carbon
emissions are significant and form a large part of our Scope 3
emissions. We are committed to supporting our accupiers to
minimise these impacts and related risks, We will make best
endeavours to coilect, coliate and measure robust Scope 3
data from our acccupiers, although we recognise that this is
not likely to ever be 100% accurate.

The Group is committed to engaging with the supply chain
to identify, measure and minimise Scope 3 carbon emissions.
This engagement will commence in 2023 and will help to
establish where we can assist key stakeholders, such as
occupiers, to reduce their own carbon emissions.

The Group uses a suite of targets to manage climate-related risks and opportunities and performance against targets

(see page 45 for achievements to date), including:

TARGET MANAGING RISK
Number of BREEAM certifications with Excellent rating 1&2

EPC ratings of A or B across the portfolio and targeting A rated

on new construction 1&2
Fitwel certification 1&2

The use of the Group’s sustainable refurbishment principles 1,2,3&4
Collate data to enable setting targets for GHG emissions, water

efficiency, energy intensity and carbon intensity 1&2
Zero waste to landfill 1&2
Engage with every occupier on ESG at least every vear {e.g. energy,

carbon, waste, bicdiversity and water, wellbeing and vitality) 1&2
Biodiversity assessments and achieving net gain on refurbishment and

new construction projects 1&2
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EPRA sBPR reporting

The Group recognises that its activities have both direct and
indirect environmental and social impacts and is committed

to aperating 1n a responsible and sustainable manner. One af
the Group's investment objectives is to provide shareholders
with an attractive level of total accounting return. The focus

is capital growth whilst also providing a growing level of
income by investing primarily in a diversified portfolio of UK
properties that are leased or intended to be leased to occupiers
operating in the life science sector, These key activities are
undertaken by the [nvestment Adviser. The Investment Adviser
has responsiblity for the day-to-day asset management

and implementation of the Group's sustainability strategy.

To maintain a high level of transparency of our sustainability
impacts, the Group reports against relevant ESG indicators

in accordance with the third edition of the Eurcpean Public
Real Estate Association ("EPRA") Sustainability Best Practice
Recommendations {"sBPR") and the Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting ("SECR”) requirements (see pages 52 to 57).
Corresponding GHG emissions are calculated in hne with the
GHG Pratocol Corparate Accounting and Reporting Standard
and the corresponding Scope 1 and Scope 2 guidance.

For the progress on implementing our sustainability strategy
and the detailed management approach of different material
sustainability topics, pleasa refer to the Sustainability section of
this Annual Report,

The Group's EPRA sBPR response has been split into the
foliowing four sections:

Reporting methodoelogy

Environmental performance measures

Social performance measures

Governance performance measures

Reporting methodology

Organisational boundaries

The Group's reporting boundary is based on the principle of
operaticnal control, meaning that asset-level performance
measures are accounted for where the Group has the
authority, via its managing agents, to introduce and implement
its operating policies and procedures. Uniess ofherwise stated,
all absolute performance measures relating to electricity, fuels
and associated GHG emissions relate to assets where the
Group procures utilities for commeon areas, shared services,
lettable areas (including vacant and occupied units) and those
properties that are vacant. Assets held by the Group are
excluded from the reporting boundary where there is limited
or no operational control Examples of this include instances
where occupiers are responsible for their own supply of
utilities, heating and waste disposal.
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As of 31 December 2022, the Group owned six assets either
directly or through 100% owned subsidiaries, all of which were
classified as life science real assets located in the UK. Two of
the six assets were acquired during the 2022 reporting year.
Using the aforementioned principle, four out of six assets fell
within the reporting boundary at the end of the reporting
period. This represents 25.1% of the Group's total investment
in real estate; Merrifield and Lumen House are excluded.

The remaining assets are single cccupancy assets with no
operational control, therefore the Group has no authority to
introduce or implement its operating policies and procedures.
The Group does not have any partially owned entities that fall
within the organisational boundary.

The Group is externally managed and does not occupy any
offices for its business activities, nor does It own or lease any
vehicles.

Reporting period

Performance measures of absolute and intensity metrics are
reported for the vear ended 31 December 2022, Performance
measures for like-for-like metrics are not reported due to
insufficient data for the prior year ending 31 December 2021,
given that the Company was incorporated on 27 July 2021,
consumptions before the incarporation were considerad

out of the reparting scope and initial acquisitions being n
late 2021,

Data estimation

The Group aims to report as complete and accurate data

as feasible and practicable. All data is based on invoices
and/or meter readings where available, Estimations have
been applied where invoices were not available at the time of
publication. Where data was anly partiaily available within the
reporting period, we have adopted the following approach for
data estimation:

1. estimate consumption data based on the most recent three
months of available actual data; or

2. estimate consumption data based on available actual data
from the same period in the previous reporting vear.

Following this rule of data estimation, the proportions of
astimated enargy. water and waste data for 2022 were
31.3%, 17.8% and 51.3% respectively. Since the Company was
incorparated on 27 July 2021 with mast of the assets being
acquired inlate 2021, environmental performance date for
202% is largely unavailable. As previcusly stated, like-for-like
comparison of the portfolio is inapplicable. Data avaifability,
auality and accuracy is expected to improve in the next
reporting year,
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Where data estimation was not feasible, assets with no data
were excluded from the report unless specified otherwise.
Please refer to 'disclosure coverage - number of assets' in
the performance measures tables on pages 54 to 57 for
information of our environmental Jela coverage.

GHG emissions calculation
The Group reports Scope 2 GHG emissions using location and
market-based methods.

Location-based emissions reflect the average emissions
intensity for energy production in a defined local or national
region. Scope 1and 2 GHG emissions were calculated using
the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting for the respective reporting periods.

Market-based Scope 2 GHG emissions were calculated using
the Eurcpean residual mixes factors (versions 2021 and 20223,
which are default emission factors representing the uniracked
or unclaimed energy and emissions, and the zero emissions
factor for both Renewable Energy Guarantees of Origin
("REGQO") backed electricity supplies and onsite renewable
energy generation from solar photovaltaic ("PV") panels.
Praportion from renewable sources is based on renewable
energy purchases plus renewakble electricity generated from
onsite solar PVs and directly consumed. Solar PVs are instalied
at two out of six assets (Cambourne Business Park and Rolling
Stock Yard). However, data for Rolling Stock Yard is currently
unavailable.

The intensity ratios for energy, water and GHG emissions are
expressed as landlord procured utility per net lettable floor
area. Only assets which were owned and managed during the
full 2022 raporting vear, with sufficiant data avalable, were
included in the calculation of intensity. Therefore, two assets
(Herbrand and OTP) are excluded from intensity calculations.

Segmental analysis of the Group by property type and
geography has not been included in the report considering
that all assets have the same classification (Iife science) and are
located in the same country (UK).

All environmental and social performance measures data
were externally reviewed and checked by Savills UK -
Sustainability Team.
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Environmental performance measures

in 2022, the Group procured 5,307.4 Mwh of energy for use
across its assets, of which 64.7% were electricity consumption
and 35.3% were gas consumption. The Cornpany is responsible
for the majority of its accupiers’ energy procurement and

over 75.7% of the landlord-procured energy was consumed by
occuplers. During the reporting year, 154.5 MWh of electricity
was also generated from the solar PV panels installed and
consumed con-site. Reported total water consumpticn

of the portfolio in 2022 was 3,438.5 m?>. However, water
consurmption data was available for only two out of four assets
with operational control and cannot fully reflact the actual
consurmption of the portfolic.

Total Scopes 1and 2 (location based) GHG emissions for the
reporting year was 2471 tonnes CO_e. split 16.6% Scope 1 and
83 4% Scope 2. Renewabte electricity accounted for 2.2%

of the totel electricity purchased and generated during the
year, resulting in a Scope 2 (market based) GHG emissions of
357.8 tonnes CO.e.

In 2022, total managed and reporied waste was 160.6 tonnes.
All waste was diverted from landfill, of which 46.5% was
re-used or recycled and 53.5% incinerated for energy recovery.

As previously stated, year-on-year analysis will be reported
on from 2023 onwards as we do not have full prior year to
compare to due to intial acquisitions being late 2021
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EPRA sBPR reporting continued

Environmental performance measures continued

The Group has also focused on developing life science facilities with reduced footprints to enhance the overall sustainability
performance of its portfolio. Some exampies of carbon saving initiatives that have been implementad in 2022 include LED
lighting replacements, installation of PIR sensors and the introduction of new waste streams for recycling.

All of our assets are in full compliance with the latest Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards ("MEES™) requirements. Rolling Stack
Yard and OTP Building 1 have obtained BREEAM 'Excellent’ as built and it is cur goal to obtain BREEAM certificates for all new
developments.

Greenhouse gas emissions (tCOe)

ABSOLUTE LIKE-FOR-LIKE
2021 2022 2021 2022 % CHANGE
Direct emissicns
GHG-Dir-Abs, GHG-Dir-LfL Seope T 0.7 4n
Scope 2 - location based? 206.0
2.2
Indirect emissions Scope 2 - market based?
GHG-Dir-Abs, GHG-Dir-LfL 36 3578
Like-for-like metrics are inapplicable
Scope 3 (Jandlord procured 433 758.9 due to the lack of data for two compiete
accupier consumption) i : consecutive reporting years
Scopes 1and 2* 2.8 247
Total direct and indirect Disci . _ ber
isciosure coverage - numbe Jofo dofa
of assets
GHG emissions intensity _
GHG-Int Scopes land 2, tonnes CO,e m? 0.001

1. Scope I Direct GHG emissions fram controlled cperations such as combustion in owned bollers,
2 Scope 2'Indirect GHEG emissions from the use of purchased electricity, heat or steam.
3. Scope 2, Location-based emissions are used for reparting total emissions and GHG emissions iNtensity.
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Energy consumption (MWh)

ABSOLUTE LIKE-FOR-LIKE
EPRA INDICATOR 2021 2022 2021 2022 % CHANGE
Total landlord procured n7.4 3.434.1
tL)andJordprocured. consumed 107.3 2.369.9
v occupiers
. Total on-site renewable
Electricity .
Elec-Abs, Elec-LFL electricity generated and 0.5 154.5
consumed
Proportion of procured
and on-site gene_ra_ted and 0.5% 9.29%
consumed glectricity from
renewable sources'
Total landlord procured 126.6 18734
Fuels Landlord procured, consumed 193.0 164811

Like-for-like metrics are inapplicable
due to the lack of data for two complete
Proportion of procured fuels consecutive reporting years

from renewable sources

Fueis-Abs, Fuels-LfL by occupiers

Total landlord procured 2447 5,307.4

Landlord procured. consumed

b ; 230.3 4,017.0

y occupiers

Total energy? Total landlord pracured and 244 6 5.462.0
generated
Proportion estimated 26.0% 31.3%
Disclosure coverage - number 2 oD 4of4
of assets

intensi
Energy intensity Landlord procured, MWh/m? n/a 0171

Energy-Int

1. Praportion from renewable scurces is based on renewable energy purchases and renewable energy generated and consumed an-site. Solar PV panels are
nstalled at two out of six assets (Cambourne Busmess Park and Ralling Stock Yard). However, such data was not avadable for Relhng Stock Yard, therefore only
Cambourne Business Park's data is included in this figure

2, There are no chstrict heating and cooling systems in place (excluding DH&C-Abs, DH&C-LFL).

Water consumption (m3)

ABSOLUTE LIKE-FOR-LIKE
EPRA INDICATOR 2021 2022 2021 2022 % CHANGE
Total landlord procured 397.1 3,438.5
Water Proportion estimated — 17.8%
Water-Abs, Water-LfL Like-for-tike metrics are inapplicable
Disclosure coverage - 20F2 2 ofd due to the lack of data for two complete

nurmber of assets consecutive reporting years

Water intensity

3 2
Water-Int Landlord procured, m3/m n/a 0.136
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STRATEGIC REPORT

SUSTAI NABILITY CONTINUED

EPRA sBPR reporting continued

Environmental performance measures continued

Waste management (tonnes)

ABSOLUTE LIKE-FOR-LIKE
EPRA INDICATOR 2021 2022 2021 2022 % CHANGE
Recycled or re-used 1 74.6
Incineration with energy 18 85.9
recovery
Total weight of waste by _ _
disposal route Sent to landfill
Waste-Abs
Waste-Lfl1 Total 2.8 160.6
Proportion estimated 32.5% 513% Like-for-iiie metrics are inapplcable

due to the lack of data for two complete
consecutive reporting years

Disclosure coverage -

number of assets 202 sofd
Recycled or re-used 37.5% 46.5%
Proportion of waste by
disposal route Incineration with energy g
Waste-Abs, recovery 62.5% 53.5%
Waste-LfL

Sent to landfill — —

1. Data for the proportion of waste disposed of by dispasal route according to type (non-hazardous and fhazardous) n tonnes or as a percentage s unavailable.

RBuilding certification

2022

EPRA INDICATOR RATING NUMBER OF CERT. % OF FLOOR AREA

A 3 274%

B i 8.1%
Energy Performance c ’ 49.4%
Certification (EPCs) Cert-Tot o 5 15.1%

E or below _ _

Total 13 100%

1 Inciugdes EPCs for twe units that are naot includes in tre EPRA raporing bouncary due o there being no fandlord control These wmits 'nciude Merrifiele Centre
and Lumen House.

2022
EPRA INDICATOR NUMBER OF UNITS % OF FLOOR AREA
Outstanding - —
Excellent 2 12.9%
Very Good — —
BREEAM Certificates Cert-Tot
Goad — —
Others — —
Total 2 12.9%

56 Life Science REIT pic Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022




Social performance measures

The Group reported on all applicable EPRA sBPR social performance metrics. Being an externally managed company
with no employees, this is limited to the Board of Directers’ gender diversity, asset health and safety, and community
engagement measures.

EPRA INDICATOR 2022
FEMALE 50%

GENDER DIVERSITY' BOARD OF

DIVERSITY EMP DIRECTORS MALE 50%

Employee metrics:

Gender diversity (Dlversity-Emp), Gender pay ratio (Diversity-Pay),
Employee training and development (Emp-Training}, Employeea
performance appraisals (Emp-Dev), New hires and turhover
(Emp-Turnover), Employee health and safety

The Group is an externally managed investment company. All of the
Group's day-to-day management and administrative functions are
audtsourced to third parties. The Company has no employees.

(H&S-Emp)
Asset health and safety assessments }

100%
HES-Asser Proportion of assets %
Asset health and safety compliance Number of incidents; unresolved within the -
H&5-Comp requirad timeframe
Community engagement, impact assessments and
developmeant programmes Proportion of assets -

COmty—Eng

1. Gender diversity ratio as at 31 December 2022.

Governance performance measures

Governance performance measures relate to the Board. For full background information on our governance performance
measuras, including a profile of the Board, a description of our nomination procedures, and pracesses for managing potential
confilcts of interest, please see pages 81 to 83.

Non-Executive Director Sally Ann Forsyth has significant experience relating to developing strategies to improve social and
environmental impacts in the life science industry. During her role in developing four internationally recognised science clusters,
and currently in her role as CEQ of Stevenage Bioscience Catalyst, she has experience in implementing sustainability strategies.

EPRA INDICATOR 2022
Number of executive Board members 100%
Number of independent/non-executive Board members 4

Compuosition of the highest

governance body

re on th rran 12.9

Gov-Board Average tenure on the governance body {months)

Number of independent/non-executive Board members with 1

competencies relating to environmental and social topics
Process for nominating and selecting the highest governance body See corporate governance section,
Gov-Selec pages 81to 83
Process for managing conflicts of interest Sae corporate governance section,
Gov-Col page 83
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

OCCUPIERS

Meeting the needs of our occupiers is fundamental to our
business, They rely on us to provide the space in which
they can operate and we in turn rely on them for timely
rental payments.

SHAREHOLDERS

To continue to grow our business, we need a supportive
shareholder base. To keep shareholders well informed, we
look to communicate with them regularly and openly, and
to provide high-quality corporate reporting.

Stakeholder interests

The suitability of our assets for life science purposes,
inciuding proximity to key life science clusters, their
sustainability credentials and their attractiveness as a
workplace for the talent occupiers need to attract

Rental levels, lease lengths and terms
Our knowledge and understanding of their businesses

Our asset management plans, including sustainability
enhancements

Our financial strength

Qur intentions regarding holding or disposing of the
asset they tease from us

Our sustainability strategy

Stakeholder interests

- Our ability to source accretive investrnents and add
value through asset management, to drive rental income,
capital values and our total return

« CQur financial and operational performance
- The security of our dividend

= Qur approach to environmental, social and governance
155Ues

= The skills and experience of the Beard

- The skills and experience of the investment Adviser
and its recruitment to support our growth plans

How we engage

The Investment Adviser 1s responsible for building and
maintaining relationships with current and potential
occupiers, and for reporting to the Board on occupier
issues

The Investment Adviser’'s asset managernent team conducts
site visits and meets key decision-makers at occupiers, to
learn about their businesses and space reqguirernents

The property managers alse engage with occupiers at
an operational leve!

The investment Adviser's Head of ESG and specialist
consultant engage separately with accupiers, to identify
mutual ESG-related targets

How we engage

» The senior tearn at the Investment Adviser takes the
lead in our investor relations programme and offers
meetings to major sharehglders and potential investors
after the announcement of our financial results, as well
as responding to requests for meetings at other times

- The Investment Adviser and our corporate broker
provide feedback to the Board following investor
meetings

= We glso engage through a range of other channels,
including reguiar news flow, the Group's website,
the Annual Report and the Annua! General Meeting

« If requested, we hold separate ESG conversations

QOutcomes

Started to engage with occupiers on £5G and therr input
informed our materiality assessment and sustainability
strategy

Provided our draft sustainability policy to occupiers and
gave verbal support for their decarbonisation actions

Outcomes
« Completed our move to the Main Market of the London
Stock Exchange

Delivered 4.0 pence per share dividend (paid and
declared)

.

ldentified shareholder interest in the guickly changing

ESG landscape and their desire to understand how we
keep up to date and what our plans are

- Engagement with shareholders on ESG is ongoing and
wea intend to highlight our approach to ESG in greater

aetall over the next 12 months
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SERVICE PROVIDERS

As an externally managed business, we are dependent
oh our service providers for our day-to-day operations.
In particular, the Investment Adviser has a key role in
implementing our strategy.

Please see IBC for full details of our service providers.

LENDERS

An appropriate amount of gearing is important for
generating higher returns. We therefore [ock to build
strong relationships with lenders, who will provide the
debt facilities needed to support our business growth.

Stakeholder interests
* The terrns of their engagernent

* Clarity of fees
= Open and two-way communication

= Prompt payment

Stakeholder interests
« The guality of the security we provide for our loans

= Qur abllity to meet our interest payments
= The strength and diversification of our income streams
= Hedging of interest rates where appropriate

« The suitability of our projects for Green Finance

How we engage

* The Board regularly engages with the Investment
Adviser, both formally and informally, with
representatives of the investment Adviser attending
Board and Committes meetings by invitation

* The Investment Adviser is primarily responsible for
day-to-day interaction with our other service providers
and keeps the Board informed as necessary

* The Management Engagement Committee oversees and
reviews service provider performance on the Board's
behalf (see pages 89 and 90)

How we engage

+ The Investment Adviser is primarily responsible for
engaging with lenders and keeps the Board informed as
necessary

Qutcomes

» The Investment Adviser holds calls with external service
providers at least quarterly

= Commitment to prompt payment

= Service providers deliver monthly meonitoring reporting
to the Investment Adviser

Qutcomes

« Agreed our initial debt facilities and a cap on the SONIA
rate (see page 125)

+ Maintained open communication with lenders

« Regular portfolic updates and covenant compliance
reporting provide comfort te lenders

= Ongoing review of hedging arrangements with the
lenders and other advisers

Other stakeholders

In addition to the key stakeholders listed above, we have othar stakeholders that are important to us. For exampie, local
councils may be significant stakeholders in relation to individua! asseats, where we may need planning permission for our

asset management or development plans.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

SECTION 172(1) STATEMENT

Under section 172(1) (a)-(f) of the Caompanies Act 2006, the Directors are required to take into account the matters set out
in the table below, and to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of 1ts members as a whole, In doing so, the
Directors must also consider the interests of key stakeholders and the environment in therr discussions and decision-making.

Set out below are the matters the Board is required to take into account under section 172(1).

TAKING ACCOUNT OF
STAKEHOLDER VIEWS

KEY BOARD DECISIONS

Information on stakeholder engagement,
including how the Board is kept Informed
about stakeholder views, can be found
on pages 58 and 59. This engagement

is an important Input inte the Board's
decision-rmaking The Directors keep the
methods for engaging with stakehalders
under review, to ensure they remain
effective.

The Board's key dacisions during the year included:
» approving the acquisitions of Herbrand Street and Oxford Technology Park:

= approving the first and second interim dividends in respect of the vear, tatalling 4.0 pence
per share;

= approving the Company’s move from AlM to the Main Market {(see case study below),
« appointing Richard Howell as a Non-Executive Director; and

* approving the £150.0 million debt facility with HSBC.

See pages 78 and 73 for further detalls

MATTER

RESPONSE

a) 1he likely censequence of any decision
in the loang term.

We intend to be long-term holders of our assets and therefore iook to acquire or develop
assets that will appeal to occupiers for many years to come Qur asset managemeant
activities also seek to future-proof our assets, for example by enhancing their sustainability
performance.

While generating income is an important consideration for us, we will not compromise on
aur investment criteria by acquiring weaker assets to increase income in the short term.
During the vear, the Board approved the acguisition of Herbrand Street in the knowledge
that the building can be readily converted to laboratory use at the end of the current
occupier's lease terrm in Q4 2026, and the location in London's Knowledge Quarter will be
very attractive to future life science occupiers (see page 30)

b) The interests of the Company's
employees

As an externally managed company, we do not have any employees, so this matter is not
applicable

<) The need to foster the Company’s
business relationships with suppliers,
custamers and athers

Qur relationships with our occupiers are central to our business model. The Investment
Adviser has a strong focus on building and maintaining these relationships and is supported
by the praperty managers. Far mare ‘nformation on engagement, see page 58.
Retfationships with our service providers are also key and are discussed on page 59

During the year, the Board appcinted Michael Taylor as Chair of the Management
Engagement Committee, which is respensible for overseeing relationships with cur key
serv'ce praviders (see pages 89 and 90).

d) The impact of the Company's
operations on the community and
environment.

As the day-to-day aperators of our assets, our occup’ers have primary responsibility for any
community impacts. Cur assets support aur occuplers’ ability to create jobs, benefiting lecal
communities. Mare broadly, we aim to offer real estate that provides the nght environmant for
adr occupiers to solve same of the world's pressing issues - see pages 44 and 45 for more on
aur social impact.

During the year, the Board appointed Sally Ann Forsyth as the Director to lead our approach
to sustainability She has reguarly engaged with the Investment Adviser's Head of ESG during
tne development of our new ESG strategy, as set out an pages 44 and 45.
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MATTER RESPONSE

&) The desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct.

A reputation for high standards of conduct s important to us. We need occupiers tao b
willing to sign multi-year leases with us and require long-term sources of debt and equity
capital to fund our strategy.

In 2022, we reviewed alt of aur policies and procedures in key areas as part of cur move to
the Main Market, to underpin aur approach to ethical business.

f) The need to act fairly between mernbers
of the Company.

The Company has a fully independent Board and no sharehalder or group of shareholders
has direct influence over the Board's decisions. The principals of the Investment Adviser

own shares in the Company valuad at approximately £2.3 million, which also aligns their
interests with those of shareholders as a whale.

CASE STUDY: OUR MOVE FROM AIM TO THE MAIN MARKET

Background

The Company's shares were initially traded on AIM, following
our PO in Novemnber 2021, As highlighted in the IPO
prospectus, our intention was always to move to the Main
Market of the London Stock Exchange within 12 months

of the 10, depending on the successful deployment of

the capital raised. Many institutional investors were unable
to invest in AIM shares or were only able to take limited
positions. Moving the Company’s listing to the Main Market
has made the shares available to a broader range of
investors, as well as providing eligibility for index and tracker
funds from inclusion in the FTSE All-Share and Smali Cap
Indices (effective from 17 March 2023). The new prospectus
issued cn 1 December 2022 also included a placement and
share issuance prograrnme.

Interested stakeholders

Shareholders: Existing and prospective shareholders will
henefit from our access to a larger pool of capital to support
our growth strategy, and increased liguidity in the shares.
The Company will continue to follow the AIC Code of
Carporate Governance, which incorporates the parts of the
UK Corporate Govarnance Cade relevant to investment
companies. We alsg note that standards of corporate
governance are typically higher for Main Market companies
than for AlM and our corporate governance has evolved to
ensure that we are meeting these standards.
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Qccupiers: Increased access to capital will enable us to
add new assets to the portfolio, progress our development
projects to create new lettable space and support our
continued investment in our existing portfolio. This will
benefit occupiers, who will benefit from greater choice of
high-guality lab space to lease from us.

Lenders: Cur ability to cantinue to grow the business
and further enhancements to our corporate governance
framework will irnprove our risk rating for lenders.

Service providers: Our service providers will benefit from
our continued growth and the opportunity to expand their
work with us.

Impact of the decision in the long term

We believe the move to the Main Market will have significant
long-term benefits, primarily ansing from the increase in
growth prospects, a broader shareholder base and greater
liguidity in the Company’s shares.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

To be successful in the long term, our decision-making must
be informed by a clear understanding of our business risks
and opportunities, and our appetite for those risks.

Responsibilities

The Board has overall responsibility for managing risl,
identifying principal risks that may affect the Group’s
objectives and determining the nature and extent of risk
exposure that the business is willing to take in pursuit of its
strategy. The audit and Risk Committee, on behalf of the
Board, oversees the Group’s frarmework for risk management.

Qur framework for risk management is approved by the
Beard. It sets out how we identify, evaluate and report on our
current and emerging risks, and incorporates the assessment
of the controls and mitigation strategies we have in place

for sach docurnented risk. We apply a consistent evaluation
framework to the assessment of risks, providing a clear

basis for considering threats and opportunities across our
activities. Changes to our risk profile, alongside sigrificant and
amerging risks, are escalated to and considered by the Audit
and Risk Comrittee.

Our financial and operationat performance and reputation are
subject to several risks and uncertainties. These risks could,
either separately or in combination, have a material impact on
our performance, occupiers, third-party service providers, the
environment and shareholder returns.

Risk Management Framework
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Our approach

Risk management is embedded in our business
decision-making processes. The Investment Adviser regularly
reviews and updates the corporate risk register, and this

i5 reported to each Audit and Risk Committee meeting,
hightighting any emerging, additional or deleted risks, changes
ta the controls in place or changes to aur exposure to that
risk. The Audit and Risk Committee reviews the risk register at
each meeting, with particular focus on the principal risks and
any emerging risks, and pravides updates to the Board,

The Audit and Risk Committee also monitors our risk
management processes and approves relevant disclosures.

It has responsipility for monitering financial reporting

and external audit plans and outputs, as well as providing
assurance to the Board in relation to financial, operational and
compliance controls, all of which are designed to manage our
exposure to nsk.

The Board has approved the delegated authority matrix
and key policies, which ensure that responsibility for making
key decisions such as asset acquisitions and disposals is
clearly defined and understood. The autharity matrix 1s
designed to ensure that these significant decisions are
taken at the appropriate level, taking into account the size
and complexity of the transaction, and 1ts significance to
our plans. Where appraopriate, we support our policies with
rigoreus guidance and documentation standards, such as our
Acquisition Pratocol, which provide further assurance that
decisions are properiy supported.
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Risk appetite and awareness

Risk awareness exists through our decision-making processes
and is embedded in our systems, policies, leadership,
governance and behaviours. We have a primarily outsourced
medel, so we are reliant on service providers, particularly

the Investment Adviser, to make decisions within agreed
parameters the Bosrd has approved.

The Investment Adviser has a clear understanding of our
appetite for risk, which is determined by the Board and
incorporated within the risk framewaork.

Risk appetite

We have no appetite for risks relating to compliance with
regulatory and environmental requirements, or the safety
and welfare our cceupiers, those working on our behalf,
and the wider community in which we work.

Our appetite for risks relating to climate change is low,
and we are actively focusing on identifying and mitigating
physical and transitional risks for the portfolic.

We will accept a reasonable level of risk in relation to
business activities focused on enhancing revenues,
portfolio values and increasing financial returns for
investors.

We seek to balance our risk pasition between:

= astrong focus on health, safety and regulatory compliance,
with our expectations agreed with service providers and
incorporated within contract documents, and monitored
through performance reviews by the Management
Engagement Carmmittee;

Key climate-

related risks 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

» the acquisition and management of a balanced asset
portfolio, being selective in our acguisition decisions, and
following a clear investment appraisal process;

= & focus on mitigating climate-related risks and opportunities
through our portfolio acquisition decisions, development
planning, capital expenditure plans, and cccupier
management and support activities; and

- generating profit and funds through activities, orimarily
from our investment and occupier appraisal processes,
and by the effective dealivery of activities by our third-party
service providers.

Environmental, social and governance
(“ESG™) risk

We have strengthened our approach to managing ESG risk
during the year. in particular, we have invested heavily in
understanding how we can best mitigate climate-related risks,

bringing in specialist support to assist in this area.

We have updated our risk framework to reflect this additional
emphasis, with a new risk category “Climate-Related Risk”,

covering physical and transitional risks to the portfolic and the

business, arising from climate change. We have overarching
ESG and climate-related risks within the corporate risk
register, and have also, In conjunction with our advisers,
developed a separate climate-related risk register, covering
both physical and transitional risks. This is reviewed by

the Investment Adviser and reported to the newly formed
Sustainability Committee, which has oversight of the Group’s
key risks.

Cur assessment of the potential change over time for our key
climate-related risks is set out below. For further details see
page 48,

Cccupier demand

Whilst our acquisition and development decision processes are designed to

changes seeking — ﬁ[} incorporate forecasting and respaonding to changes in cccupier demand, seme
more sustainable elements of this will be reactive, and this does present a potential increase in risk.
options
Decarbonisation b Meeting the challenges and targets set in our planned decarbonisation pathway
—
pathway — will reguire innovation and investment, which lead to an increase in risk.
Stranded assets ! N We consider that our acquisition protocol, and capital investment planning and
Y approval process will effectively mitigate the risk of stranded assets, ie assets that
occupiers will not wish to lease.
Flooding - We do not consider that our current partfolio is at significant risk of flooding
impacting on [ t’ and incorporate flood risk consideration in our investrnent decisions. As our

occupiers and
assef values

expertise in this area continues to develop we consider that the level of risk will
decrease further.

Inability to access
Green Finance
options

L

Our ability to access the benefits from green financing options will be linked
to the deiivery of plans and achievement of targets in areas such as energy
efficrency, emissians reduction, and dacarbonisation. We are investing in our

plans, which are being developed with the support of external specialists, and
considar that thair delivery will reduce our exposure to this risk.

Life Science REIT plc Annua! Report and Financial Statements 2022

63




STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES conminueo

Principal risks

The Board confirms that it has performed a robust assessment
of the Group's principal and emerging risks and considered
the long term in doing so. The tnvestment Adviser and the
Audit and Risk Committae regularly review the corporate risk
register in detail.

The Board considers its overarching risk to be that investment
objectives and performance become unattractive to investors,
leading to a widening share price discount to net asset value,
which hinders the abllity to raise funds and grow.

The Board has identified its principal risks based on that,
and those are summarised here, along with the current risk
management strategy, the assessment of exposure to each
risk, and any change in assessment since our last report.

Changes in risk, emerging risk

There are no additional principal risks, and we have not
remaoved any risks previously considered to be principal.
Where the evaluation of the risk has changed, an explanation
has been provided in the detailed section below.

During our regular reviews of the corporate risk register
during the year, we specifically consider amerging risks.
This has led to the addition of a small number of risks to the
register, none of which were considered to be principal risks,
and their addition was primarily to ensure that mitigations
and assurances could be formalised.

The heat map summarises the Group’s current principal risk exposures

BUSINESS RISKS

Poor returns on the portfolio

[]

[=]

Inability to identify or secure assets/sites for
acqguisition

Poor performance of the Investment Adviser or
other significant third-party provider

Inappropriate acguisition, or breach of investment
strategy

FINANCIAL RISKS

[5]
[¢]

Interest rate changes

Imability to attract investment, either equity or
debt funding

Breach of loan covenants, or prospectus
borrowing policy

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Loss of REIT status

CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS

EI Impact of climate change
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BUSINESS RISKS

Risk

Mitigations

POOR RETURNS
ON THE PORTFOLIO

Residual exposure:

O @ O

Medium

Change:

©

Achieving the targeted level of return

on our property portfolio over time is

fundamental to the success of the business.

The risk of a reduced return on the portfolio

colld he catsed hy A niimber of fartors,

including:

» reduced property valuations;

+ reduced rent levels;

+ aninappropriate balance of property
types within the portfolio;

- cost of capital increases, particularly as
interest rates rise;

+ higher than anticipated void rates, and
bad debts; and

+ increasing new tenancy costs (shorter
leases or significant works required to
attract occupiers.

In addition to these direct portfolio factors.
external macroeconomic challenges
reducing investment in the life sciences
sectar, subsequently reducing property
values and rent incomes, and in the medium
tor longer term this could also impact on the
number of potential occupiers locking fer
property

Our approach to the management of risk around the
portfolio follows three interlinked elements:

Asset value - we have a robust acquisition and
development process, with detailed modelling
undertalien to support acquisition decicions, and aur
plans to develop and fit out space, Cur investment
protocol reflects our delegated authority matrix,
ensuring that decisions are made at the right fevel,
and particularly significant decisions are referred to
the Board

we aim to have a balance between sites developed
with oceupiers, and the development of sites,
particularly with speciaiist facilities such as lab space,
in advance. This mix enables us to both meet potential
occupier requirements where these are very specific,
and also to attract potential cccupiers who are
looking for reduced fit out cost and time, This helps
to drive rents and reduces void lengths.

We also undertake specialist asset cpportunity
analysis to identify potential target occupiers to
approach proactively.

Qccupier quality - our occupier take on process
includes ensuring we fully understand cccupier
requirements and are confident that we can deliver
the asset functionality and quality reguired, and

also detailed evaluation of the potential occupiers
themselves, ta ensure that they have a business
rodel and financial plans that can suppoert the lease
and other property costs. Lease rates are flexed to
raflact the lease period, and we take rent guarantees
and rent deposits if appropriate.

Property management - our property manager is a
market leader in the field, with a depth and breadth of
resources across the range of management activities,
from rent collection, to asset maintenance and
tenancy management, to building and encouraging
sustainable and energy efficient operations within
our asset base. The property managers work closely
with the |nvestment Adviser's asset managers,

and together they provide regular perfermance
review and reports to the Board. Rent collection
perfarmance is also monitored by Link, who are
responsible for rent collection accounting and
maintenance of the debtor ledger.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES conmnuen

BUSINESS RISKS

Risk

Mitigations

E] INABILITY TO
IDENTIFY OR SECURE
ASSETS/SITES FOR
ACQUISITION

Residual exposure:

O @ O

tedium

Change:

©

There is a risk that we may lose investment
opportunities and/or potential occupiers

to competitors This could be driven by
aggressive competitors, the overall level

of competition in the market, insufficient
suitable available assets in the market,

ar acquisition prices that would make it
difficult for us to generate sufficient returns.

There is insufficient space available in the market to
meet demand at the moment, and this is a focus area
for growth and government initiatives, which gives
us confidence that occupiers’ need for appropriate
space will continue. Qur strategy includes acquiring
existing facilities, sites planned for new development,
and bulldings which can be converted to meet the
specialist requiremeants of the sector.

Our Investment Adviser has an experienced
management team and is supported by external
property management specialists, who have
extensive expertise in the life sciences market. The
Investrment Adviser regularly updates the Board on
the acquisition pipeline.

E;] POOR

PERFORMANCE OF
THE INVESTMENT
ADVISER OR OTHER
SIGNIFICANT
THIRD-PARTY
PROVIDER,
INCLUDING
INACCURATE

OR INCOMPLETE
REPORTING

Residual exposure:

O @ O

Medium

Change:

©

We operate an outsourced maodel and
depend on the performance of our
third-party service providers, particularly
the Investment Adviser, AIFM, Property
Manager and Fund Administrator,

Poor delivery from key providers could
result in poor decisions, reduced portfolio
returns ar regulatory compliance failures,
and could have a financial impact on
investors. This risk covers all operational
areas of the business:

= environmental;

+ health and safety,

+ portfelio changes;

« portfolio and property management, and
+ accounting and reparting

We rely on receving high-guality, accurate
and timely information from our service
praviders, and inaccurate or incomglete
informat.on could damage our finances,
properties, occuplers and reputation. [n
particular, inaccurate infarrmation could
increase our revenue risk, as we depend on
third parties to invoice, colect, bank and
record revenues

Our governance framework 1s designed to ensure
that the Board is involved with key decisions that are
material to the success of the business. There is an
approved delegated authority matrix and matters
reserved for the Board are defined.

Qur service providers are contracted, with clear terms
of service and our expectaticns clarified. We have
contracted with organisations which are recognised
as experts in their fields.

The principal third-party providers oversee and
review our activities, with the AIFM reviewing

and approving key transactions proposed by the
Investment Adviser, and the Investment Adviser
monitering the performance of the praperty
managers. Financial reports and information are
prepared by Link and checked by the Investment
Adviser’s Finance team, prior to reporting to the
Board

The Board and Investment Adviser work together,
with regular Board meetings and ongoing contact
between the forma! meetings. The Investment Adviser
has strengthened its team during the year, providing
additional resilience in the delivery of its services.

The Board members are experienced individuals,
appointed for their knowledge and their business and
commercial acumen In addition to their performance
reviaws and variance analysis as part of the normal
quarterly Board meetings, they formally review the
performance of kay third-party service praviders
thraugh the Management Zngagement Commities
The valuation of the portfolio is a key risk area for the
Group. The valuatior is undertaken by an ‘ndependent
valuer, which provides additional assurance for the
Board on the accuracy of key metrics reported by the
Investment Adviser
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BUSINESS RISKS

Risk

Mitigations

E] INAPPROPRIATE
ACQUISITION,
OR BREACH OF
INVESTMENT POLICY

Residual exposure:

® O O

Low

Change:

©

Acquiring assets or taking on occupfers
which are not in line with our investment
policy and objectives could have a

detrimental effect on our portfolic values,

finances or reputation, and could also
increase risk for occupiers, particularly in
multi-tenanted properties.

Our investment policy is supported by processes
designed to ensure that acquisitions meet our
requirements.

Our acquisition protocot includes robust due diligence
processes and assessment against clear investment
criteria, including portfolic mix, property type and
quality, legal issues, environmental requirements,
sector and guality of occupier.

The Investment Adviser considers all potential
acquisitions against the investment policy, before
approval or referral to the Board for approval, where
required by the size of the acquisition. Al acquisitions
and disposals are also approved by the AIFM, The
Beoard is informed of all acquisitions, whether its
approval is required or not.

The Investrmant Adviser and the Property Manager
pravide us with expert knowledge of the properties
and geographical locations which are best suited

to the life science market, and decisions are made
around the acquisition pipeline accordingly, ensuring
that our property portfolio is best sulted to the needs
of our target occupiers.

Wae also fully assess potential accupiers, ensuring that
they are clearly linked to the life science sector and
are of suitable financial stability and strength for the
iease concerned. These processes are designed to
ensure that our portfolic continues to be managed n
acgordance with the stated investment policy.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES connnue

FINANCIAL RISKS

Risk

Mitigations

INTEREST RATE
CHANGES

Residual exposure:

O 0 e

Interest rate rises may impact our ability 1o
utilise funding to execute our strategy, and
may also have an impact on the portfolio,
as occupiers may have reduced willingness
or ability to pay rents sufficient to make
properties profitable.

As we are unable te mitigate the potentiai for interest
rate risas, we focus on managing and mitigating

the canseguences. We have developed a financing
strategy, with the use of interest rate caps and hedges
considered by the Investment Adviser and the Board,
and implemented as agreed

High
Change:
Risk Mitigations
L?—l INABILITY There s a risk that we may be unable Our reputation for providing guality, well-managed
TO ATTRACT to attract new investars or increased and suitabie assets, in the right locations, will be key

INVESTMENT, EITHER
EQUITY OR DEBT
FUNDING

Residual exposure:

O 0O e

High

Change:

©

investrment from existing shareholders,
affecting our ability to grow and deliver our
strategic objectives

This risk has increased over the year,

as general economic conditions have
deteriorated, and the interest rate risk
referred to above may rmake it more difficult
to agree funding at appropriate rates or
with appropriate conditions.

to mitigating this risk. Qur performance has been
positive, with several attractive assets acquired, and a
clear acguisition strategy for the future.

We have an experienced Investment Adviser, with a
good reputaticn and excellent market knowledge.
Our Board mernbers have extensive experience
working within and for the life sciences sector, and
are key to our reputation in the market, through

theirr knowledge of the requirements and needs of
potential occupiers.

BREACH OF LOAN
COVENANTS, OR
PROSPECTUS
BORROWING POLICY

Residual exposure:

O @ O

Medium

Change:

©

We set out our expected and maximum
loan te value ratios in the prospectus, and
separately have a loan to value ratio agreed
within our bank funding facilities.

Breach of any of these ratios, or the terms
and conditions of the funding facility, could
have a sericus impact on the delivery of
our objectives, through cash shortages or
damage to our reputation

The Investment Adviser is responsible for monitoring
operations, financial transactions and performance,
and reviews the financial position continuously to
ensure that neither the loan to value ratio nor any
specific requirements of the funding facility are
breached

The Investment Adviser appties comprehensive
financial models to plan cash flows and funding
requirements. Cash ava’lability is built into the
investment decision-making process. All acquisitions
are approved by the AIFM and the Depasitary, and ali
significant acquisitions and capiial expenditure plans
are approved by the Board.

The cash position is reconciled maonthly to the records
produced by Link, and the bank statements, by the
Investment Adviser's Finance tea~r.
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COMPLIANCE RISKS

Risk

Mitigations

LOSS OF REIT
STATUS

Residual exposure:;

C @ O

Medium

Change:

©

Failing to comply with the REIT framework
would put our status as a REIT at risk,
resulting in a potentially significant impact
on our shareholders.

We have a detailed governance framewaork, with
clearly allocated responsibilities set out in the
delegated authority matrix, and in contracts with the
Imvestment Adviser and other key service providers.
Wa abtain advice ag neaded from the AIFM, cur
brokers and external legal support in relation to
governance compliance, FCA and listing rules

Qur position against the key requirements of the
REIT legisiaticn 1s reviewed by the Investment Adviser
each month, by Link quarterly, and is reported to

the Board. Cash and earnings cover for dividends

15 monitored through the comprehensive cash flow
forecasting process.

CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS

Risk

Mitigations

IMPACT OF CLIMATE
CHANGE

Residual exposure:

©C & O

Medium

Change:

@

The potential impact of climate change

is one of our principal risks, as we seek to

both reduce our impact on the environment

and the impact of climate change on cur
activities, portfolio and finances.

We have developed a separate climate risk

register, to help us identify, consider and

mitigate both physical and transitional risks.

Key risks documented in that register

include:

« change in occupiers’ reqguirements, as
they seek more sustainable property
options;

« inability to access green funding, leading
to higher financing costs:

» the potential for assets to be impacted
by extrerme weather events such as
prolonged extreme heat or flooding,
reducing occupiers' willingness to lease
properties, property rental values and
therefore the value of our portfolio; and

+ potential cost impacts from our
decarbonisation pathway.

We are already seeing the increasing impact of

climate change on our envircnment and we recognise

our responsibility to develop a portfolio and

associated working practices which will reduce our

environmental impact, while enabling us to deliver

rasults for our invesiors.

Further details are included in cur TCFD and

Sustainability reports (see pages 38 to 57), but

a summary of the acticns we have taken and

planned are:

« new developments to be BREEAM "Excellent’ or
“Very Good’ rated;

= environmental assessment of all potential
acquisitions, as part of the acquisition process;

« EPC plus reports are part of our standard process
for acquisitions, and we are now using them for all
buildings where appropriate tc provide a baseline
position. These reports are used to support our
decarbonisation plans;

< capital expenditure planning includas
consideration of climate-related risk, with
appropriate building standards being applied,
such as anargy efficient lighting and heating.
and a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions;

» external specialists have been appointed to assist
us with developing our sustainability roadmap and
route to carbon zero, and

+ our standard guarterly Board report pack includes

ESG and climate-related risk information, to ensure
that Board members are fully informed.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

Going concern

The Board rmonitors the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Specifically, at quarterly Board meetings, the Board
reviews summaries of the Group’s liquidity position and
compliance with lcan covenants, as well as forecast financial
parformance and cash fiows. Throughout the period, the
Board had been meeting frequently, in conjunction with the
Investment Adviser, {0 review cash resources and acqguisitions
of investrnent properties.

The Group ended the year with £45.6 million of unrestricted
cash and £92.6 million of headroom readily available under
Its debt facilities. The Group is cperating significantly
within its covenants and a sensitivity analysis has been
performed to identify the decrease in valuations and rental
income that would result in a breach of the LTV, or interest
cover covenants. For the HSBC facility, valuations would
need to fall by 43.9% or rents by 30.5%, when cormpared
with 31 December 20272, before these covenants would

be breached, which, based on available market data, is
considered highly unlikely.

As at 24 March 2023, 98.0% of rents inveiced in
December 2022 in relation to the quarter to 24 March 2023
were received.

As part of the going concern assessment, and taking the
above into consideration, the Directors reviewed a number
of scenarios which included extreme downside sensitivities
in relation to rental cash collection, making no acqguisitions
or discretionary capital expenditure, and minimum dividend
distributions under the REIT rules.

Based on this information, and in light of mitigating actions
avallable, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue
in business for a period of at least 12 months from the date

of approval of the Annual Report and Financia! Statements.
The Directors are also not aware of any material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt upon tne Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. They therefore have adopted the
going concern basis in the preparation of the Annual Report
and Financial Statements.

70

Assessment of viability

in accordance with the AIC Code of Corporate Governance,
the Directors have assessed the Group’s prospects over a
period greater than the 12 months considered by the going
concern provision. The Directors have conducted their
assessment over a three-year period to 31 December 2025,
allowing a reasonable level of accuracy given typical lease
terms and the cyclical nature of the UK property market.

The principal risks detailed on pages 62 to 69 summarise

the matters that could prevent the Group from delivering its
strategy. The Board seeks to ensure that risks are kept to a
minimum at alt times and, where appropriate, the potential
impact of such risks is modelled within its viability assessment.
The Group’s investment portfolic acquired to date delivers the
intended investment strategy of a diversified portfolio located
within the Golden Triangle of Oxford, Cambridge and London
located near major universities, hospitals and public and
commercial organisations where there is @ shortage of high
quality real estate space to support expanding life science
businesses This is expected to lead 1o low vacancy rates and
further rental and capital growth.

The Directors’ assessment takes into account forecast

cash flows, debt avallability, forecast covenant compliance,
dividend cover and REIT compliance. The model is then stress
tested for severe but plausible scenarios, individually and in
aggregate, along with consideration of potential mitigating
factors. The key sensitivities applied to the model are a
downturn in economic outlook and restricted availability of
finance, specifically:

+ Increased occupier turnover

+ Increased void costs

+ Increased interest rates

Taking into account mitigating actions, the results of the
sensitivity analysis and stress testing demonstrated that the
Group would have sufficient iquidity to rmeet its ongoing
llabilities as they fall due, maintain compliance with banking

covenants and maintain complance with the REIT regime
over the pericd of the assessment.
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Furthermore, the Board, in conjunction with the Audit and
Risk Committee, carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, strategy, future
performance, sclvency or liguidity over the three-year period.
The risk review process provided the Board with assurance
that the mitigations and management systems are operating
as intended. The Board believes that the Group is well
positicned to manage its principal risks and uncertainties and
the economic and political environment.

The Board's expectation is further supported by regular
briefings provided by the Investrment Adviser. These briefings
consider market conditions, opportunities, changes in the
regulatory landscape and the current economic and political
risks and uncertainties. These risks, and other potential

risks which may arise, continue to be closely monitored by
the Board.

Cambourne Business Park, Cambridge
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Viability statement

The period aver which the Directors consider it is feasible
and appropriate to report on the Group's viabllity is a

threa year period to December 2025, This period has been
selected because it is the period that is used for the Group's
medium-term business plan. Underpinning the plan is an
assessment of each unit, driving the letting and capital
expenditure assumptions. These in turn drive the financing
assumptions and other forecast cashflows.

Having considerad the forecast cash flows, covenant
compliance and the impact of sensitivities in combination, the
Directors confirm that, taking account of the Group's current
position and the principal risks set out in the strategic repert,
they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able
to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the three-year period of their assessment.

On behalf of the Board

ity

Claire Boyle
Chair

24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CHAIR’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

The importance of strong governance to a company’s success
is well establishead, as it provides a framework within which
we can effectively implement our strategy. We worked hard
before the IPQ to put a robust governance framework in place
and have made good progress since Admission, You can find
further details In the following pages.

Following sharehaolder approval, Life Science REIT plc

(the "Group") migrated its listing from the AlM market of

the London Stock Exchange to the premium segment of

the London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022 and is
therefore required to comply with the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance (the “AlC Code”) published by the Association of
Investment Companies and to state how it will comply with
that code.

The A!C Code addresses the principles and provisions set
out in the UK Corporate Governance Code as published by
the Financial Reporting Council {the "UK Code"), as well as
setting out additional principles and provisions on issues that
are of specific relevance to listed investment companies. The
Board considers that reporting against the principles and
reacommendations of the AIC Code will provide more relevant
information to its sharehoiders
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WE WORKED HARD TO PUT
A ROBUST GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK IN PLACE
BEFORE THE IPO AND HAVE
MADE FURTHER GOOD
PROGRESS WITH OUR
GOVERNANCE AGENDA
DURING 2022.

CLAIRE BOYLE
Chair and Non-Executive Director

During the year ended 31 December 2022, we made good
prograss with our governance agenda. Highlights included
the following: we successfully implemented our succession
planning prograrmme with the appaointment and induction of
Richard Howell as Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and
Senicr Independent Director; set up new Board Committees
and reorganised existing Director responsibilities accordingly;
waorked on our ESG and sustainability strategy framework,
appointing Sally Ann Forsyth as Sustainability Lead, reflecting
the importance we and our stakeholders place on ESG
considerations; ensured compliance with the applicable
principles and provisions of the AIC Cade following Admission
to the Main Market; reviewed all the acquisitions made in the
year and approved the purchase of assets in the investment
pipeline of the Group. We have also set agendas far the Board
for the year ahead including a separate strategy day that took
place in February 2023.

As part of good governance practice, the Board set up a
Nomination Committee and a Remuneration Committee
under the chairship of Sally Ann Forsyth and Michael Taylor
respectively post the migration of Company's listing to

the premium segment of the London Stock Exchange.

A Sustainabiity Committee has also recently bean set up with
Sally Ann Forsyth as the Char, with the first meeting being
held in February 2023
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The Directors are working well together and we have a
collegiate culture, with open discussions and appropriate
challenge. We are benefiting from our complementary
backgrounds, which include experience in life science real
estate, [Ife science organisations, finance and investment
trusts. As at the date of this report, 50% of the Board is female
and we will continue to consider diversity. including ethnicity,
in future appointments.

The Board's priorities for 2023 include supperting and
overseeing the Investment Adviser in the continued successful
implementation of our strategy. We will also continue to
embed the Group’s corporate governance framework and
further develop the Board's relationships with our other
service providers. As an externally managed business, our
service providers play an important part In our governance
arrangements and the Management Engagement Committee
chaired by Michael Taylor works with the Investment Adviser
to ensure they continue to function effectively.

e

Claire Boyle
Chair

24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists solely of independent Non-Executive
Directors. During the year under review, Richard Howell was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company.

Claire Bovle
Chair of the Board of Directors

Dr Sally Ann Forsyth OBE
Non-Executive Director and

Chair of the Nomination Committee
and Sustainability Committee

Appointed: 14 October 2021

Appointed: 14 October 2021

EEE]

EEEE(]

Clalre was appointed as a Director of the Company on

14 October 2021. Claire is a non-executive directar and chair of the
audit committee of Fidelity Special Values Plc and Aberdeen Japan
Investment Trust PLC and a nen-executive director of The Monks
Investrment Trust

She has over 20 years' experience working in financial services and
investment management, having qualified as a chartered accountan?
w'th Coopers and Lybrand, where she specialised in litigation support
and forensic accounting Ciaire then spent 13 years working in egquity
investment management for Robert Fleming Investment Management,
American Express Asset Management and latterly Oxburgh Partners,
where she was a partner with responsibility for their European
Hedge Fund.

Claire has a degree in Natural Sciences from Durham University

and is a Fellow of the Institute of Charteraed Accountants in Eng'and
and Wales.
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Sal'y Ann was appainted as a Director of the Company cn

14 October 2021 Sally Annis CEQ of the Stevenage Bioscience
Catalyst and is a picneer of the life science real estate industry with
16 years of experience In the dahvery of outstanding science parks.
She has been responsible for the strategy, growth and development
of four internationally recognised clusters including Harwell Oxford,
Colworth Science Park, Norwich Research Park and most recently
Stevenage Bloscience Catalyst, where she is CEO.

She began her career with Unilever where she had lead responsibility
for Scientific Strategic Alliarces and Oper Innovation and gained an
ins/ght into the needs of growing compan’es as part of the founding
team of Unilever Venwures. She ga'ned her property experience
shrough Goodman International where she was Director of Science
Parks respensible for the developrment and management of thelr

UK portfolio.

Sally &nn has a PhD in Malecular Biology from the University of
Cambridge, a certificate in Real Estate Economics and Finance from
LSE and is a qualified management accountant (CGMA). Sha was
awarded an OBE for services to Bus.ness and Science in 2021
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With effect from 24 June 2022, Richard took on the role
of Senior Independent Director of the Company and Chair

of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Michael Taylor

Non-Executive Director and

Chair of the Management Engagement Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Richard Howell
Senior Independent Directer and
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

Appointed: 14 Cctober 2021

Appointed: 3 May 2022

AEEEE{]

HEENE[]

Michael was appointed as a Director of the Company on
14 October 2021,

Michael is the Commercial Director for the British Heart Foundation
("BHF") which is the largest funder of life science research into heart
and cardio-vascular disease in the UK. Since joining the BHF in 2012 he
has overseen significant growth and diversification of their commercial
revenues across the extensive retail estate of over 700 retail shops,
new online channels and commercial health ventures, with annual
revenues how exceeding £200 millien p.a,

Prigr to joining BHF he spent aver 20 years working in senior roles ina
wide range of majar retailers with significant retail, [ogistic and office
property portfolios, and has been managing director of a number of
national retailers including Budgens, Londis and Whittard.

Michael has a degree in Economics from UEA.

Key to Committees:

W ~udit and Risk
Committee

W anagement
Engagament Committee
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W Nomination
Committee

Richard was appointed as a Rirector of the Company on 3 May 2022,

Richard is Chief Financial Officer of Primary Health Properties plc,
the FTSE 250 REIT and leading investar in flexible, modern primary
healthcare accommodation across the UK and Ireland.

Richard is a Chartered Accountant and has over 20 years' experience
working with London-listed commercial property companies, gained
principally with lLondonMetric Property plc and Brixton plc. Richard
was part of the senior managament team that led the rmerger of Metric
Property Investrments plc and London & Stamford Property Plc in

2013 to create LendonMaetric Property plc with a combined property
portfolio of £1.4 billion.

Richard has extensive finance experience, having previously held senor
accounting positions within listed property companies operating across
the UK. whilst working for LondonMetric Property plc and Brixton plc,
he has been involved in aver £ billion of property transactions.

W Remuneration
Committee

D Sustainability
Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INVESTMENT ADVISER

The Board has appointed Ironstone Asset Management
Limited to provide day-to-day investment advisory and
asset management services to the Group.

Stephen Barrow
Chair (Non-Executive Director)

Simon Farnsworth
Managing Director

lan Harris
Director of Asset Management

Stephen has over 30 years’ experience
setting up and managing funds. Starting as
an investment analyst at Morgan Grenfell,
Stephean managed the £5 billion UK Equity
Exempt Fund in the 1990s combined

with the role of Head of Glecbal Research.
Stephen then set up the successful Global
Equity Select strategy at Morgan Grenfell

in 2002. Leaving Morgan Grenfell in 2005,
Stephean buillt a successful tearn at lronBricge
Internaticnal and. as founding CIO, uftimately
managed over $7 billion for a range of UK
and overseas clients. Since 2012, Stephen
has been investing in a range of property
vehicles alongside colleague Simon Hope,
notably Warehouse REIT Stephen has an MA
in Economic History from the University of
St Andrews.
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Simon is an experienced fund manager and
charterad surveyor with over 30 years of
experience in the UK real estate market.
Previously he was a Managing Director of

the UK Funds business of CERE Global
Investors and a member of their UK Executive
Committee and Investment Committee.

Prior to that he was a Business Develocpment
Directer at GE Capital Real Estate. Latterly,
Simon was a founding director of Westmount
Real Estate, a boutigue real estate investment
advisory and asset management business
advising an acquisitions, asset management
and financing across all UK sectars. He

has considerabie experience in sourcing,
managing and financing across many real
estate asset classes along with developments,
farward fundings and corporate transacrions.
He has a BS¢ in Land Management from the
University of Reading.

lan is a qualifiad chartered surveyar with
over 30 years' experience in the UK raal
estate market. His asset management career
began at Imry Holdings where he was
respeonsible for the £200 million Halogic
Portfolio in joint venture with GE Real Estate.
He moved on to become Director of Frame
Investments Limited, a privately owned
property investment and asset management
company specialising in multi-tet value-add
portfalios in the UK with financial partners
including PRICOA and Portfolio Holdings
Limited. He was then appointed Director of
Asset Management for the Strategic Partners
series of UK value-add funds at CBRE Global
Investors with assets under management

of £1bilhon. Subsequently, ne went on to
co-found Westmount Real Estate Ltd, a
boutique investment advisory and asset
management business acting for 3 wide range
of domestic and international investors. lan
has a BSc in Land Management from the
University of Reading and is 2 Member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
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Please see pages 30 to 37 for the
Investment Adviser’s report.

Simon Hope
Vice-Chair (Non-Executive Director)

David Lewis
Finance Director

Simon is a Senior Adviser at Savills UK, with
aver 35 years' tenure at the company. From
2004 to 2021 he was Global Head of Capital
Markets specialising in portfolio investment
construction, acquisitions and disposals.

He was a founding director of the Charities
Property Fund which is now £1,5 hillion in
size. He chaired Grosvenor Hill Ventures
until 2007, which was Savills' proprietary
trading and investment arm for property.

In 2013 he became chairman of Tistone
Partners Limited, which is the investment
adviser to Warehouse REIT ple, and isa
nan-executive director of Warehouse REIT
plc, an AlM-quoted real estate investment
trust which was launched in 2017 and which
has a market cap of more than £650 millian.
Sirnon was the executive sponsor of Savills’
Life Science practice which incorporates

a multi-disciplinary team of over 18

professionals. He studied Estate Management
at the Royal Agricultural College, Cirencester

and is a RICS Fellow He also holds an MBA
frorm Reading University.

David has over 30 years’ commercial and
financial glabal experience, most recently
with Round Hill Capital, & real estate private
equity firm. He has held senior executive
positions with Campus Living Villages,
Balfour Beatty Investments and Lend Lease
Infrastructure and was the European CFO of
Babcock & Brown, the investment manager
who established the now FTSE 250 listed
company International Public Partnerships.
Previously David was a Technical Director
with Ernst & Young in Australia and is a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
England & Wales. David has a BSc in Fuel and
Energy and Management Studies from the
University of Leeds
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This report explains the key features of
the Group’s governance structure.

Statement of compliance

As highlighted in the Chair's statement on page 9 the
Company migrated the listing of its ordinary shares from

the AIM market of London Stock Exchange to the premium
segment of the London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022
The UK Listing Rules require listed companies to disclose
how they have applied the principles and complied with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The Board has considered the principles and provisions of
the AIC Code of Corporate Governance published by the
Asscciation of Investment Companies (the "AlIC Code").

The AIC Code addresses the provisions set out in the UK
Corporate Governance Code as published by the Financial
Reporting Council (the "UK Corporate Governance Code™),
as well as setting out additional provisions on issues that are
of specific relevance to listed investment companies. The
Board considers that reporting against the principtes and
recommendations of the AIC Code will provide more relevant
information to its shareholders,

The Company compligs with the AIC Code which complements
the UK Corporate Governance Code and provides a framework
of best practice for listed investment companies.

Key Board activities during the year

As an externally managed investment company with no
executive directors, employees or internal operations, all

of its ongeing management and administration functions
are delegated to the Investment Adviser and other service
providers, and as such the Board does not consider that
the above provisions are relevant to the Company. We have
therefore not reported further on these provisions.

In accordance with the AIC Code, the Company established an
Audit and Risk Committee and a Management Engagement
Committee. Following the migration of the Company's
ordinary shares to the premium segment of the London Stock
Exchange, the Board agreed te establish separate Nomination
and Remuneration Committees under the chairship of

Sally Ann Forsyth and Michael Taylor respectively.

The Board undertakes an annual review of its comphance
with the principles and recommendations of the AlIC Code of
Caorporate Govarnance. A copy of the AIC Code, which was
last updated in 2019, can be obtained via the AIC welbsite,
www.theaic.co.uk.

Board of Directors

Under the leadership of the Chair, the Board of Directors is
collectively responsible for the long-term sustainable success
of the Company, generating value for shareholders and
contributing o wider society,

At each quarterly Board meeting a report from both the AIFM and the Investment Adviser is reviewed, which includes relevant
matters to highlight since the previous meeting and details of portfolic activity, the pipeline and health and safety matters.

O

January - March 2022

April - June 2022

External debt facility approved
Updates from Managerment Engagement Committee
and Audit and Risk Committee Chairs

Review of investment policy and Matters reserved
for Board
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Acquisition of Herbrand Street approved
Acquisition of OTP approved

Approval of Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Approval of policy regarding responsibilities of
the Chair

Annual General Meeting
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It establishes the purpose, values and strategic aims of the

Group and satisfies itself that these and its culture are aligned.

The Board ensures that the necessary resources are in place
for the Group to meet Its objectives and fulfil its obligations
to shareholders within a framework of high standards

of corporate governance and effective internal controls.
The Directors are responsible for the determination of the
Group's investment policy and strategy and have the overall
responsibility for the Group's activities, including the control
and supervision of the AIFM and Investment Adviser.

The Board consists entirely of independent Non-Executive
Directors. The Directors passess a wide range of relevant
business and financial expertise and brief biographies,
including detalls of therr significant commitments, can be
found on pages 74 and 75. The Directors consider that they
are able to commit sufficient time to the Group's affairs.

None of the Directors has a service contract. letters of
appointment set out the terms of their appecintment and
copies are available on reguest from the Company Secretary
at LABS_CoSec@Llinkgroup.co.uk and will be avaitable at

the AGM. The Directors are not entitled to any compensation
for toss of office. Under the Company’s Articles and in
accordance with the AIC Code, Directors are required to retire
at each AGM and seek annual re-election.

The Company has established an induction procedure for
new Directors, including the provision of an induction pack
containing information about the Group, its processes and
procedures. New appointees would also meet the Chair, the
wider Board and relevant personnel at lronstone.

The Board receives and reviews a guarterly share register analysis, as well as a report from the Company Secretary including

regulatory and governance updates.

— Uy - September 2022

= October - December 2022

= Approval of 2022 Interim Report
= Approval of interim 2022 dividend

- Consideration of move to Main Market listing

Life Science REIT pic Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022

= Approved move from AlIM to Main Market listing
» Financial year 2023 budget approval

« Review of Directors’ performance evaluation for the
year ended 31 December 2022
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Structure of the Board

Management
Audit and Risk Normination Remuneratian Sustainability Engagement Independent/
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Non-independent Gender
Claire Boyle! [ | [ | | D [ independent Female
Sally Ann Forsyth? || [ | | [ [ | Ind |

Michael Taylor? || | ||

[ R

Independent Male

Richard Howells | || n

Independent Male

1. Chair of the Beard during the year and Charr of the Management Engagement Cornmittee until 11 March 2022
2. Chair of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 December 2022 and Sustainability Lead during the year, Chair of the Audit and Risk Cornmittee until

24 June 2022,

3. Chair of the Management Engagement Committee witn effect from 11 March 2022 and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 Cecember 2027,
4. Appointed 3 May 2022, Senior Indepandent Diractar and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee with effect from 24 June 2022,

Chair and Senior Independent Director

The Chair, Claire Boyle, and the Senior Independent Director,
Richard Howell were deemed by their fellow independent
Board members to have been independent on appointment
and to have no conflicting relationships.

The role and responsibilities of the Chair are outlined below
and clearly defined and set out in writing, a copy of which is
available on the Group’s website at www.lifesciencereit.co.uk
The Senior Independent Director acts as a scunding oard
for the Chair and as an intermediary for other Directars

when necessary. He lgads the annual appraisal of the Chair’s
performance, takes responsibility for an orderly succession
process and is also available to shareholders to discuss any
concerns they may have.

Purpose and culture

The Group's purpose is to own and manage life sciences raal
estate across the UK, providing the space its occupiers need
for their businesses to thrive Furthar information about the
purpose of the Group can be found in the strategic report
at page 8.

The Chair leads the Board and is responsible for its overall
effectivaness in directing the Group. She demonstrates
objective judgement, promotes a culture of openness and
debate, and facilitates effective contributions by all Directors.
In laison with the Company Secretary, she ensures that the
Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information.

The Directors are required to act with integrity, lead by
example and promote this culture within the Group.

20

The Board seeks to ensure the alignment of the Group’s
purpose, values and strategy with the culture of openness,
debate and integrity through ongoing dialogue and
engagement with the AIFM, Investment Adviser and the
Group's other service providers. The culture of the Board will
be considered as part of the annual performance evaluation
process which 1s undertaken by each Director. The culture

of the Group's service providers is also considered by the
Board during the annual review of their performance and
while considering their continuing appointment. This includes
assassing therr approach to significant ethical 1ssues such as
modern slavery, The Company's Modern Slavery Statement,
reviewed by the Board each year, is available from its website
www lifesciencereit.co.uk.

Nomination Committee

As noted on page 85, following the Company's migration

of the listing of its ordinary shares to the premium segment
of the London Stock Exchange, the Board has established

a separate Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee consists of the whole Board and 15 chaired by
Sally Ann Forsyth. The Committee meets at least annually
and terms of reference are in place which include reviewing
the Board's size, structure and diversity, succession planning
and training. Potential new Directors are identified against the
reguirements of the Group's business and the need to have
a balanced Board. The Company is committed tq ensuring
that any vacancies arising are filled by the most qualified
candidates,
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Recruitment and succession planning activities
Prior to establishment of the Nomination Committee, the
Board lead the process for appointments of new Directors

to the Board and its Committees, and ensured plans were in
place for orderly succession and oversaw the development

of a diverse pipeline for succession. Furthermaore, the Board
was responsible for ensuring that there was a formal, rigorous
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new
Directors to the Board, including a review of other significant
commitments Directors may have.

During the year, the Board engaged in a search for a fourth
Non-Executive Director with assistance from the executive
search firm Odgers Berndtson. The Beard confirms that
Qdgers Berndtson 1s independent of the Company and each
of its Directors as of the date of this report.

The Board identified for this search that any one of the
following attributes were important for the successful
candidate to be able to contribute to the Board, and would
further be considered during the Company’s ongoing
suCcession planning:
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« recent and relevant financial experience;

+ transacticnal experience in the area of property
acguisitions;

« exposure to commaercial real astate and/or real estate
assel management; and

= board experience from a plc envirocnment.

Following a consideration of the desired background and

expertise of the new Director in order to complement the

skills already on the Board as stated above, a shortlist of

potential candidates was then provided by Odgers Berndtson,

The Directors met with a nurmber of these candidates,

following which Richard Howell was appointed to the Beard

on 3 May 2022, Please see page 75 for Richard Howell's

biography.

The Nomination Committee will hold its first meeting in
2023, at which the Board plans that a skills matrix will be
created and discussed to identify current strengths and areas
of weakness for the Board to consider during its angoing
succession planning activities
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Diversity and inclusion

In accordance with the AIC Code, the Board is comprised of
a group of individuals who have an appropriate balance of
skills and experience to meet the future opportunities and
challenges facing the Group. Appointments are made first
and foremost on the basis of merit and taking into account
the recegnised benefits of all types of diversity. The Board
ensures that diversity is an important consideration and part
of the selection criteria used to assess candidates to achieve a
balanced Beoard.

In April 2022, the FCA anncunced additional diversity targets
for FTSE listed companies on a 'comply or explain’ basis, the
reporting of which Is to be effective for financial accounting
periods commencing 1 April 2022 onwards. Whilst this is not
applicable to the Company for this year’s annual report, the
Board supports the introduction of the new rules and the
Group will report its compliance against this new requirernent
in the Annual Report for the vear ending 31 December 2023.

The Board is currently comprised of a 50:50 male to
female ratio.

Tenure

In accordance with the AIC Code, the Directors are required to
retire at the first AGM following their appointment. Thereafter,
at each AGM, all Directers, including the Chair of the Board,
will seek annual re-election (see page 83) The Board has not
stipulated a maximum tarm of any directorship, except that
subject to ensuring business continuity, all Non-Executive
Directors will remain on the Beoard for 2 maximum period of
nine years in accordance with the AIC Code.

Engaging with our stakeholders

Details of how we engaged with our key stakeholders during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the strategic
report on pages 58 and 59.

Board operation

The Directors meet at regular Board meetings, held at least
four times a year, with additional meetings arranged as
necessary. Board members are notified between meetings of
any material events including, but not mited to, significant
transactions, litigation, mergers and acquisitions, and changes
in capital structure. There is regular contact between Board
members and the Investment Adviser, in addition to the formal

Board mestings.

The table below sets out the Directors’ attendance at both
regular and ad hoc Board and Cormmittee meetings' during
the year ended 31 December 2022, against the number of
meetings each Beard member was eligible to attend:

Management

Audit and Risk Engagement

Board Committee Committee

Claire Boyle 4/4 4/4 2/2
Sally Ann Forsyth 4/4 4/4 2/2
Michael Taylor 4/4 4/4 2/2
Richard Howell? 3/3 /3 i1

1. Following the Company's AdmMission to AIM on 19 Novernber 2021
2 Appainted as a Director on 3 May 2022

The Board has formal arrangements for the Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, to take independent professional advice
at the Company’'s expense. The Company has also taken out & Directors’ and Officers’ liabihity insurance policy and is referred to

on page 99
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Board and Committee evaluation

Towards the end of 2022 the Board conducted an evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board itself, its Committees, the
Chair and the Directors. It Is the Board's current intention to
arrange an externally facilitated evaluation at least every three
years in accordance with the A(C Code.

The 2022 evaluation was an internal performance evaluation
by way of questionnaires comgleted by the Directors. The
results were collated and a report detailing the responses
was considered by the Board. This process was facilitated
by the Company Secretary. The scope of the questionnaire
was designed to cover all aspects of the Board's operation,
including the management of meetings, the strengths

and independence of the Board and the Chair, individual
Directors and the performance of its Cormmittees, each
Director's perspective on the Board's future pricrities, training
requirements, and the way the Board works as a team.

The Board concluded that the evaluation demonstrated that
the compaositicn of the Board continued to be appropriate and
it provided adequate supervision, oversight and challenge.

Independence of Directors

The Board has reviewed the independance of each Director
and the Board as a whole. The whole Board is independent of
the Investment Adviser and free from any business or other
retationships that could materially interfere with the exercise
of the Directors’ independent judgement.

The Board considers that all Directors are independent of the
investment Adviser in both character and judgement.
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Conflicts of interest

The Articles of Asscciation permit the Board to consider and,
if it deems fit, to authorise situations where a Director has

an interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the
Group's interests. The Board has a formal system to consider
such conflicts, with the Directars wha have no interest in the
matter deciding whether to authorise the conflict and any
conditions to attach to such authorisation. Any such confiicted
Director would not be present during Board discussions
regarding the conflicting matter to ensure that the debate
remains unkiased and cbjective. A register of potential
conflicts of interests Is maintained by the Cormpany Secretary
and presented to the meeting for information at each Board
meeting. As at 24 March 2023, being the latest practicable
date of this report, no such conflicts were identified.

Election/re-election of Directors

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, Directors are
required to stand for election at the first AGM after their
appointment and each AGM thereafter for re-election. This is
also in accordance with the AIC Code therefeore, each Director
will stand for election at the forthcoming AGM. The Board
cansiders that both during the year ended 31 December

2022 and from the end of the period to 24 March 2023,

being the latest practicable date of this report. each Director
has performed effectively and demonstrated excelient
commitment te their role at this early and important stage of
the Company's development. it therefore believes that it is in
the best interests of shareholders that each Director is elected
at the AGM.
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Beoard responsibilities and relationship

with the Investment Adviser

The Board's main roles are to lead the Group and ensure

its long-term sustainable success, generating value for
shareholders and contributing to wider society, and to
approve the Group's purpose, values and strategic objectives
and satisfy itself that these and its culture are aligned. The
Board annually maintains and reviews its schedule of matters
reserved for the Board of Directors which details its specific
responsibilities. Its responsibilities include:

- approving the Group's investment and business strategy;

- approving the gearing policy;

» overseeing cash rmanagement;

+ approving the Annual and Half-yearly Reports and Financial

Statements and accounting policies, prospectuses, circulars
and other shareholder communications;

« approving acguisitions and disposals which are within
the investment policy but have a value of 20% or maore of
the GAY of the Group's portfolio, and any acquisitions or
disposals cutside the investment policy;

- raising new capital and approving major financing facilities;

« approving the valuation of the Group's portfolio;

+ approving and recommending dividends;

« approving Board appointments and removals;

+ appoimnting or removing the Group’s external Auditor

following the recommendation of the Audit and Risk
Committee;

+ appointing or removing the AIFM, Investment Adviser,
Depositary, Auditor, Company Secretary and other
service providers following the recommendation of the
Management Engagement Committes; and

+ ensuring a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders and
other key stakeholders.

A caopy of the schedule of matters reserved for the Board of
Directors is available on the Company's website at
www.lifesciencereit.co.uk.
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The Board has delegated its day-to-day functions to a number
of service providers, each engaged under separate legal
agreements. in particular, portfolio management and risk
management of the Group's assets has been delegated to the
AIEM. The Investment Adviser provides recommendations to
the AIFM's investment committee, These recommendations
cover acguisitions and sales of Group assets (where this
would be inline with the Group’s objectives and investment
policy), and recommendations on where the Group should
incur borrowings and give guarantees and securities (subject
to certain investment restrictions imposed by the Board and
the Board's overall control and supervision). The Board. the
AIFM and the Investment Adviser operate in a fully supportive,
co-operative and open environment.

At each Board meeting, the Directors follow a formal
agenda, which is circulated in advance by the Company
Secretary following its approval by the Chair. The Company
Secretary and Investment Adviser regularly provide financial
nformation, together with hriefing notes and papers in
relation to changes in the Group's economic and financial
environment, statutory and regulatory changes and corporate
governance best practice to the Board. Representatives from
the Investment Adviser and the AIFM attend each Board
meeting and communicate with the Board between format
meetings.

Board Committees

The Board has five Committees: the Audit and Risk
Committee, the Management Engagement Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committes and the
Sustainability Committee,

The Committees’ terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website at www.lifesciencereit.co.uk.
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Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee comprised Richard Howell
(Chairy, Sally Ann Farsyth, Claire Boyle and Michael Tayior.
The members of the Audit and Risk Committee consider
that thay collectively have the requisite skilis and experience
to fulfil the Committee's respensibilities and competence
relevant to the REIT sector. Richard Howell is a qualified
accountant, as is Claire Boyle,

As part of the planned succession process, Sally Ann Forsyth
stepped down as the Chair of the Audit and Risk Comrnittee
and was replaced by Richard Howell on 24 June 2022,

Infermation about the composition, responsibility and
activities of the Audit and Risk Committee is set out in the
report from the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee on
pages 91to 93,

Management Engagement Committee

The Management Engagement Committee during the year
comprised of Michael Taylor (Chair), Claire Boyle, Sally Ann
Forsyth and Richard Howell, all of whom are independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Chair of the Board was also the
Chair of the Committee until 11 March 2022 when she stepped
down and was replaced by Michael Taylor,

A report from the Chair of the Management Engagement
Committee is set out on pages 89 and 90.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established during the year,
following the Company's migration fram AIM to the premium
segment of the London Stock Exchange on 1 December 2022,
Membership consists of the whole Board and the Committes
is chaired by Sally Ann Forsyth.

There were no meetings of the Nomination Committee during
ithe year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee was established during

the year, following the Company's migration from AiM to

the premium segmaent of the London Stock Exchange.
Membearship consists of the whole Board and the Committee
is chaired by Michael Taylor.

There were no meetings of the Remuneraticn Committee
riring the year

Sustainability Committee

This committee was set up post year end, the first meeting
being held in February 2023, The full Beard sits on

the Committee, with Sally Ann Forsyth being appointed Chaur.
The Committee will meet a minimum of twice a year to cover
the following main duties:

- approval and oversight of the implementation of the
sustainability strategy;

- tracking progress and effectiveness of the strategy; and

» review of ESG risks (including climate-related risks and

opportunities) to recommend updates to the Audit and
Risk Committee as appropriate.

Company Secretary

The Board has direct access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, Link Company Matters Limited, which

is responsible for ensuring that the Board and Committee
procedures are followed and that applicable regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary is also responsible

to the Board for ensuring timely delivery of informaticn and
reports and for ensuring that the Company meets its statutory
obligations.

How governance supports the delivery of the
Group’s strategy

As noted on page 84, the approval of the strategy and
overseeing its implemeantation is one of the Board's care
responsibilities. Set out on the next page are the Board's
activities in respect of each element of the strategy set out
on pages 20 to 21 of this report.
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I Strategy Board governance role Board key activities during the year
Investment Overseeing the selection of acquisitions, Reviewed acquisition pipeline tracker at each
strategy against the backdrop of current market and quarterly meeting.

1

economic conditions.

Approving acquisitions which are within the
investment policy but have a value of 20%
or more of the Group's GAV.

Approving any acquisitions outside the
investment policy.

Reviewed and approved acquisitions of
Herbrand Street and QTR in M1 2022,

Read more about the acquisitions in the year in
the Investment Adviser's report on page 30.

Asset
management
strategy

2

Owverseseing the partfolio.

Overseeing the Investment Adviser’s asset
managemeant activities.

Approving disposals of 20% or more of the
GAV of the Group's portfolio.

Approving any disposals cutside the
investmeant policy.

Reaviewed quarterly portfolio updates from
the Investment Adviser, including lease events,
capital expenditure waorks and development
updates,

Approved the annual budget for the vear
ended 31 December 2023,

Read more about asset managernent during
the year in the Investment Adviser's report
on page 33.

Financial
strategy

3

Approving any changes to the Group’s capital
structure.

Approving the Group's gearing policy,
dividend pelicy and treasury policy.

Approved external debt facility with HSBC
N H1 2022,

Monitored the Group's debt levels and interest
rate hedging.

Read more about financing activity during the
year in the Investment Adviser's report on page
35
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Internal controls
The Directors are responsible for the Group's system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.

Internal control systemns are designed to manage, but not to
eliminate, the risk of failure of the Group to meet its business
objectives, and as such, only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The key components designed to provide effective internal
contrel are outlined below:

= the Group has a clearly defined organisational structure;

= the Group has policies and procedures for internal controls
of key matiers;

- an annual budgeting process is in place;
» detailed quarterly reporting occurs;

» the Directors intend to implement a whistleblowing policy
where any concerns are reported directly to the Chair of the
Board to deal with any issues should they arise,

- the Directors have considered the Bribery Act and will
implement an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy in 2023;

» at least annually the Board conducts a review of the
effectivenass of the Group’s internal controls, covering ali
material controls:

« the Directors actively respond to any external audit
recommendations on internal control deficiencies and
demcnstrate how they are actioned. A follow-up process
is in place for actions arising from audits and the risk
management process, which ensures that actions are
imnlemented effectively;

- adelegated authority matrix has been developed to cover
key commercial and financial activitigs, investment and
disposal transactions, and management of disputes or legal
challenges; and

= the Directors have documented key controls which mitigate
risk of inaccurate reporting.

The Audit and Risk Committee undertakes the annual review
of the effectiveness of internal controls and reports the results
of this to the Board for consideration. The Audit and Risk
Committee also receives reports fram the Investment Adviser,
AlIFM and the external Auditor concerning the system of
internal control and any material control weaknesses, It may
also seek external reviews and advice. Any significant issues
identified are to be referred to the Board for consideration.
Where any material control deficiencies are identified,
remedial actions are agreed and implemented, and the Board
updated on its progress.
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Risk management

The Group has a Risk Management Framework, which is
approved by the Board and subject to annual review (as

a minimum) by the Audit and Risk Committee. A detailed

risk register has been compiled, identifying key risks and
mitigations, and evaluating the exposure for each risk, using
a standardised evaluation matrix. The investment Adviser
regularly reviews the risk register, and it is provided to the
Audit and Risk Committee for discussion at each meeting.
The framework is included on page 62 of the strategic report.

Internal audit

The Group is not considered sufficient in size or complexity
to warrant the estabhshment of an internal audit function.
The Audit and Risk Committee reviews the reguirement for
an internal audit function at least annually. if that threshold
has been attained, the Audit and Risk Committee wiil
approach the Board of Directors to request approval for the
establishrment or outsource of an internal audit function.

Equally, if the Group’s Investment Adviser or AIFM determines
that it is appropriate to establish an internal audit function,
they will approach the Board of Directors for approval to
establish, or outsource, an internal audit function.

To gain assurance over the control environment of the Group
without an internal audit function, the Group has regular
infermal contact with the Investment Adviser, will review
Board papers which are received in a timely manner, seek
information from the external Auditor, review the risk register
and progress with any actions arising.

wWhere relevant, the Board reviews controls reports provided
by third-party service providers and receives summaries of
those reports fram the Investment Adviser.

External audit scope

The Group is subject to an annual audit of its consclidated
financial statements and its component entities by its external
Auditor, Deloitte LLP. The Group produces its consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS.
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Segregation of duties and authorisation limits

As occurs with other organisations of its size and which have
a similar business, the Group faces challenges inimplementing
segregation of duties. The Group operates an outsourced
model of suppliers and has no direct employees.

The Group has considered the risk around segregation of
duties within the processing of payments and transactions
and has identified and put in place a delegated authority
matrix for acquisitions, disposals, property and occupier
related activities and capital expenditure. in addition, the
following authorisation controls are in place for the processing
of payments:

» the payments themselves are made by the Administrator
of the Group, based upon the approvals received from the
Investrment Adviser, with a primary authorised signatory and
secondary authorised signatories;

- each payment ar transaction is signed off by one signatory,
up to a total of £100.000. Payments or transactions above
this figure require authorisation by two signatories and to
be in line with the Group's delegated authority matrix and
acquisition/disposal protocols (as applicabie) as approved
by the Board; and

+ the Administrator has a clearly defined set of processes
in place to manage payment risks. It produces an ISAE
3402 controls report to the Investment Adviser, providing
assurance over the adeguacy and operation of key controls

Insider information and Market Abuse Regulation
The Company has an Insider Dealing Policy and a Share
Dealing Protocol. The Board and the Investment Adviser are
responsible for ensuring that information is properly assessed
to ascertain whether it is market sensitive, and advice is
sought in complex areas.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that open
and closed periods are recognised and communicated to all
PDMRs and insiders of the Company. In accordance with the
Share Dealing Protocol, all share dealings for bath Directors of
the Company and employees of the Investment Adviser must
be approved in advance.
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Whistleblowing

The Group has no empioyees, being wholly supported by
third-party service providers. However, it has a Whistlehlowing
Policy setting out the procedures that any third party could
follow to raise any concerns, Third-party service providers are
expected to comply with all the relevant laws and regulations
as a contractual requirement, and adequate whistleblowing
pracedures are included within that expectation. In particular,
the Investment Adviser Whistleblowing Policy offers staff, or
others raising concerns, the opportunity to raise them direct
with the Chair of the Group.

Principal and emerging risks
The principal and emerging risks that the Board has identified
are set ouf on pages 64 to 69

Shareholder relations

Communication with shareholders is a high priority for both
the Board and the Investment Adviser, and the Directors are
available to discuss the Group’s progress and performance
with shareholders. The Investment Adviser, in conjunction
with its joint Corporate Brokers, Panmure Gordon and Jeffries
International, are in regular contact with the major institutionat
investors and regularly report the results of meetings and the
views of those sharehclders to the Board. The Chair and the
other Directors are available to attend these meetings with
shareholders if required.

All shareholders are encouraged to attend and vote at

the AGM, during which the Chair of the Board, the Chair

of each respective Committee, the Board as a whole and
representatives of the Investment Adviser will be available to
discuss 1ssues affecting the Groun and answer any guestions.
Shareholders wishing to communicate directly with the
Board or to lodge a guestion 1n advance of the AGM should
contact the Company Secretary at the address on the inner
back caver. The Company makes sure to always respond to
correspondence from its shareholders.

For more information on the Group's approach to
stakeholder engagement please see pages 58 and 59 of the
strategic report,

The Board and its advisers will prepare the Group's Annual
and Half-yearly Reports to present a full and readily
understandable review of the Group’s performance.

Coples will be released through a Regulatory News

Service, dispatched to sharehoiders depending on their
communication preference and made available from the
Company Secretary or by downloading from the Company's
website at www.lifesciencereit.co.uk,
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MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT

COMMITTEE REPORT

Committee members:

Name Attendance
Michzel Taylor (Chair) o
Claire Boyle HE
Sally Ann Farsyth HE
Echard Howell' Om

1. With effect from 3 May 2022,
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THE MANAGEMENT
ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE
REVIEWS THE PERFORMANCE
AND ONGOING APPOINTMENT
OF THIRD PARTY SERVICE
PROVIDERS TO ENSURE

THEY ARE OPERATING IN

THE SHAREHOLDERS BEST
INTERESTS.

MICHAEL TAYLOR

Chair of the Management Engagement Committee

The Committee is comprised of all the Directors of the
Cormpany and chaired by Michael Taylor.

The Committee is responsible for evaluating the performance
of the Group's key service providers and satisfying itself that
the continuation of such service provider appointments are in
the best interests of shareholders as a whole.

The Committee reviews the Investment Adviser and AIFM's
agreements including the methodalogy used for calculating
fees, to ensura that the terms remain fair and in the best
interests of shareholders.

The Committee is required to meet at least once a year
and met twice during the yvear ended 31 December 2022
to perform its duties as detailed in the activities section on
the next page.
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MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT
COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Role of the Management Engagement
Committee

The Committee operates within defined terms of reference,
which are regularly reviewed and at least on an annual
basis, to ensure they remain fit for purpose. The terms

of reference are available on the Company’s website at
www_lifesciencereit.co.uk. The Committee’s primary
responsibilities are to:

- keep under raview the performance of all service providers
with the exception of the Auditor;

= reasonably satisfy itself that the Investment Management
Agreement is fair and that the terms remain competitive;

« satisfy itself that the systerns put in place by the AIFM,
Investment Adviser, Administrator and Depositary meet
legal and regulatory requirements;

« satisfy itself that matters of compliance are under proper
review, including access to the Company’s AlFM;

» consider whether continued employment of the Investment
Adviser is in the interests of shareholders as a whole; and

« produce an annual report of the Committee’s activities to be
included 1in the Annual Report.

g0

Activities
The Committee's activities during the year ended
31 Decemper 2022 were as follows:

Investment Adviser and AIFM

The Committee considered the performance of the
Investment Adviser and AIFM against their obligations under
the Investment Advisory and AIFM Agreements during the
year, and whether it was appropriate to recommend the
continuing appointments of the Investrnent Adviser and AIFM
to the Board.

In reaching its recommendation to the Board, the Committee’s
deliberations included consideration of:

» the investment advisaory and AIFM fees as detailed
on page 98,

« whether the terms of the agreements remained fair,
complied with all regulatory requirements, conformed
with market and industry practice and were in the best
interests of shareholders; and

« the execution of the Group's Investment strategy by the
Investment Adviser during the year.

Following the review, the Committee agreed that the

Investment Adviser and AlFM had performed their duties

to a high standard and recommended to the Board that the

caontinuing appointments of the Investment Adviser and AIFM
was in the best interests of the shareholders.

Other key service providers
The Cormmittee reviewed the ongeoing parformance and the
continuing appointment of the Group's other key service
providers, including the Administrator, Auditor, Corporate
Broker, Financial PR & Investor Relations Adviser, Legal
Adviser, Property Manager, Registrar, Company Secretary,
Depositary, and Valuer. The Committee recognises that
ensuring excellent support and performance by service
providers is critical for the Group’s continuing operation
as an externally managed Real Estate Investment Trust.

il

i

wr “-a.-,

!
Michael Taylor
Chair of the Management Engagernent Committee

24 March 2023
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Committee members:

Name Attendance
Richard Howell (Chair) HENR
Claire Boyle NMEENE
Michael Taylor EEEN
Sally Ann Forsyth HEEER

T With effect from 3 May 2022,

Introduction and composition of the Committee
The Committee is chaired by Richard Howell, who is a
qualified chartered accountant, has a degree in Accounting
and Finance frorn Kingston University, as well as having
recent and relevant financial experierice, Given the size of the
Board, it is considerad both proporticnate and practical for
all Directors to be members The Chair of the Board is also a
member of the Audit and Risk Committee, as permitted by the
AIC Code. This is considered appropriate given Claire Boyle
is a Fellow of the ICAEW, has a diverse background in equity
investment, and her recent and relevant financial experience,
having chaired audit committees herself. All members of

the Committee are considered indepaendent Non-Uxecutive
Directors by the Board on appointment.
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THE AUDIT AND RISK
COMMITTEE (THE
"COMMITTEE") PLAYS A
KEY ROLE IN THE GROUP'S
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK AND | WAS
PLEASED TO BECOME
COMMITTEE CHAIR

DURING 2022.

RICHARD HOWELL
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

The Committee as a whole has competence relevant to the
sector in which the Group operates. For more information on
the individual background of each Committee member, please
see pages 74 and 75 to view their biographies.

Role of the Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for the
affectiveness of internal control, risk management and
auditing processes,

The Committee’s primary responsibilities are to:

« consider the appointment, compensation, terms of
engagement cf, iIndependence and chjectivity, resignation
or dismissal of the external Auditor;

« meet and discuss with the external Auditor the nature and
scope of the audit, the findings from the audit, including
accounting and internal controls;

- review the independence of the Auditor and provide
recommendations to the Board with regard to audit
engagernent terms;

- review the Group's financial statements, annual accounts
and accompanying reports to shareholders and
announcements relating to financial information;

- review the Group's internal financial controls, the policies
and overall process for identifying and assessing business
risks;

« review the Group's risk register, in particular with regard to
the potential impact of principal and emerging risks;
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT covmnuen

Role of the Audit and Risk Committee continued
+ review, on an annual basis, whether there should be an
internal audit function;

= review the procedures for whistleblowing, detecting
fraud and prevention of bribery of the outsourced service
providers; and
* produce an annual report of the Committee’s activities to be
included in the Annual Report.
The Committee has direct access to the Group's Auditor,
Delgitte LLP, and provides a forum through which the Auditor
reports to the Board. Representatives of the Auditor attend
Committee meetings at least annually.

The Committee operates within defined terms of reference,
which are regularly reviewed and updated as necessary.
The terms of reference are available on the Company's
website.

Activities
The Committee met four times during the year under review,
Al the meetings. the Committee has:

« reviewed the internal controls and risk management
systems of the Group and its third-party service providers;

= agreed the audit plan with the Auditor, including the
principal areas of focus, and agreed the audit fee;

« received and discussed with the Auditor its report on the
rasults of the audit;

- reviewead the Group's interirm and annual financal
statements and discussed the appropriateness of the
accounting policies adopted;

+ reviewed the valuation of the Group's investment properties
and recommended this tc the Board;

+ reviewed the performance of the Group's auditors; and

- reviewed the Company’'s compiiance with the AIC Ceode.

During the year, the Committee has reviewed and updated,
where appropriate, the corporate risk register. This will

ba completed at least half-yearly, in conjunction with the
Investment Adviser and AIFM. During the year, the addition
of new risks to the register and, more recently, minor changes
to the principal risks which demonstrated the strength of the
business, are described on pages 62 to 69.
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The Committee reviewed the requirement for an internal

audit function following the year end and concluded that

this would provide minimal added comfort at considerable
extra cost to the Group. The Committee receives reports on
internal controls and compliance from the Investment Adviser
in conjunction with a third-party risk and internal audit adviser
and discusses these with the Investrment Adviser. This report
also covers the internal controls of the Group's other key
service providers. No significant matters of concern were
identifled.

The Committee monitors and reviews the effectiveness of
the external audit process for the Annual Report, including a
detailed review of the audit plan and the audit results report.
This review takes into account the experience and tenure of
the audit partner and team, the nature and level of services
provided, and confirmation that the Auditor has complied
with independence standards. The Committee met with the
external auditor twice during the year. Any concerns with the
effectiveness of the external audit process would be reported
to the Board. No concerns were raised in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022

Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

The Committee reviewed drafts of this Annual Report and
Financial Statements to consider whether it is fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business
model and strategy. The Committee also gained assurance
that there is a robust process of review and chatlenge at
different levels within the Group to ensure balance and
consistency.

Following the consideration of the above matters and its
detailed review, the Committee was of the opinion that the
Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a wholg,
is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
positicn and performance, business madel and strategy.

Look ahead to 2023

The Committee has agreed several areas of focus, including:

- ensuring continued integrity and balance in the Group's
fimancial reporting;

+ to review the documentation and evidence around key
procedures and processes;

- monitoring proposals for UK Corpaorate Governance reform
and consider appropriate processes;

« consideration of new and emerging risks; and

+ looking at specific implications of the current UK economic
downturn on the Group’s portfolio value including macro
and life science industry specific impacts and assessing
resulting financial impacts.
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Significant issues

The Committee considared the following key issues in relation to the Group's financial statements during the year:

Valuation of
investment

property:
appropriate.

The Committee considered and discussed the valuation of the Group's investment properties as
at 31 December 2022. The valuer attended the Committee meeting in March 2023 to enable a full
discussion of the valuation and underlying assumptions and to enable the Directors to challenge as

Maintenance of
REIT status:

The UK REIT regime affords the Group a beneficial tax treatment for income and capital gains.
provided certain criteria are met, There is a risk that these REIT conditions may not be met and
additional tax becomes payable by the Group. The Committee therefore monitored the Group's
compliance status and considered each of the requirements for the maintenance of the REIT status
throughout the year ended 31 December Z022.

Going concern
and long-term
viabhility:

The Committee considered the Group'’s financial reguirements for the next 12 months and
concluded that it has sufficient resourcas te meet its commitments and any outstanding financing
covenants. Consequently, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

The Committee also considered the l[ong-term viabHity statement within the annual report, for
the three year period to 31 December 2025, and the underlying factors and assumptions which
contributed to the Committee concluding that three years was an appropriate length of time to
consider the Group's long-term viability.

The Group’s going concern and viability statement can be found on pages 70 and 71,

Internal controls
Please see page 87 for an overview of the internal controls of
the Group.

Audit fees and non-audit services

An audit fee of £177.000 has been agreed in respect of the
audit for the year ended 31 December 2022 (period ended
31 December 2021 £130,000) for auditing the Annual Report
and consolidated financial statements.

Total fees for the year ended 31 December 2022, in
consideration of both the audit fee and non-audit services,
were £177.000 (period ended 31 December 2021: £301,000).
Further information on the fees paid to the Auditor is set out
n note 6 to the financial statements on page 118.

Auditor independence and objectivity

The Committee has considered the Auditor’s independence
and objectivity and reviewed the non-audit services which
the Auditor provided during the vear. The Committee is
required to pre-approve all non-audit services prior to any
work commencing and considers the safeguards in place
to maintain their independence, such as the use of separate
teams to mitigate the risk of any self-review, are effective.
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The Committee alss receives an annual assurance from the
Auditor that its independence is not compromised by the
provision of such non-audit services.

The Committee is satisfied that the Auditor’s objectivity and
independence has not been impaired in the performance of
these non-audit services and that the Auditor has fulfilled its
obligations to the Group and the Company's sharehalders.

Deloitte LLP has been the Auditor since the Company's launch
in November 2021. The Committee will regularly consider

the need to put the audit out to tender, the Auditor’s fees

and independence, and the matters raised during each audit.
Siobhan Durcan, the current audit partner, has served for a
tenure of ane vear and will step down as audit partner after
they have served for five years.

Re-appointment of the Auditor

The Committee has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Deloitte LLP as Auditor to the Group.
The approval of Deloitte LLP as the Group’s Auditor will
be put to shareholders as an ordinary resolution at the
forthcorning AGM,

AL

Richard Howell
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

The Board has prepared this report in accordance with the
requirements of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups {(Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations
2013, As the Company has migrated its listing from the

AlM market of London Stock Exchange plc to the premium
segment of the London Stock Exchange, the Company

is required to put the Directors’ remuneration report te
shareholders for approval in order to allow sharehaolder input
on the Company’s remuneration arrangernents. An ordinary
resolution to approve the Directors’ remuneration report will
therefore be put to sharehaolders at the forthcoming AGM.

Statement from the Chair

Following the migration of the Company's ordinary shares
from AIM to premium listing of the Landon Stock Exchange,
the Board established a Remuneration Committes chaired by
Michael Taylor and comprising all Directors on the Board. The
Board consists entirely of Non-Executive Directors and the
Group has no employeess. We have not, therefore, reported
on those aspects of remuneration that relate to Executive
Directors. Furthermore, the Company intends to report on
Remuneration disclosures in line with the listing rules in its
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Board/Remuneration Committee sets the levels of
remuneration for its Non-Executive Directors, including the
Chair, and remuneration is considered in reflection of the ume
commitment and raesponsibilities of the role. Remuneratian for
all Non-Executive Directors does not include share options

ar any other performance-related or variable elements. No
Director, including myself in my role as Chair, is involved in
setting their own levels of remuneration.

Directors’ fees are set at a level of £55,0C0 per annum for
the Chair and £40,000 per annum for the independent
Non-Executive Directors, The Chair of the Audit and Risk
Committee will receive an additicnal £5,000 per annum.
The Beard reviewed the Directors’ fees during the year

and does not recommend any increase for the year ended
31 December 2023, The Directors are also entitled to
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the proper performance
of their dutres.

Directors are not eligible for bonuses, share options or
long-term incentive schemes or other performance-related
benefits, as the Board does nct believe that this is appropriate
for Non-Executive Directors. There are no pension
arrangements in place for the Directors.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy {(the "Policy”), detailed
below, is put to shareholders’ vote at least once every three
vears and in any year if there is to be a change in Policy.

In determining the Policy, the Board takes into account

all factors which it deems necessary including relevant

legal and regulatory requirements and the provisions and
recommendations of the AIC Code. The appropriateness and
relevancy of the Policy is reviewed annually, particularly to
ensure that the Policy supports the long-term success of the
Group. As a binding vote on the Policy is necessary avery
three years, an ordinary resolution to approve the Policy will
next be put to shareholders at the 2025 AGM. The Board does
not propose to make any changes to the existing Policy, which
is set out below.

The Company has no employees other than its Directors, who
are all non-executive and independent of lronstong Asset
Management Limited.

The remuneration of the Directors Is determined within the
limits set out within the Company’s Articles of Association
and the total aggregate annual fees payable to the Directors
in respect of any financial period shall not exceed £400,000,
subject to shareholders' approval at the next AGM
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Remuneration report

Directors’ fees received for the year

The Directors who served in the year to 31 December 2022 receaived the following emoluments (gross of any tax or National
Insurance contributions):

Yaar ended Period ended

31 Pecember 31 December

2022 202

Fees Total Fees Total

£000 £'000 £E'GOC £'000

Claire Boyle 55 55 12 12
Sally Ann Forsyth' 42 42 1¢ 10
Michae! Taylor 40 40 8 8
Richard Howell? 29 29 — -
Total 166 166 30 20

1. Sally Ann was Chair of the Audit and Risk Commttee until 23 June 2022, receiving a pro rata share of the £5.000 per annum fee,
2. Richard joined the Soard as g Director an 3 May 2022, receiving his pro rata share of the £40.000 per annum fee. In addition he became Chair of the Audit and Risk
Committee on 24 June 2022, receiving his pro rata share of the £5,000 per annum fee.

Directors’ beneficial and family interests
There is no reqguirement under the Company’s Articles of Association for Directors to hold shares in the Company.

The interests of the Directors and any connacted persons in the ordinary shares of the Ccmpany are set out below:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Number Number

of shares of shares

Claire Boyle 30,000 30.000
Sally Ann Forsyth 20,342 20,000
Michael Taylor 20,000 20,0600
Richard Howell' 30,000 -

1 Appointed as a Director on 3 May 2022
There have been no changes to these holdings between 31 Decamber 2022 and the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
- b
Sy i ‘{

Michael Taylor
Chair of the Remuneration Cammittee

24 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present the Annual Report and Financial
Statements of Life Science REIT pic (the "Company™)
(registered number 13532483) for the year ended

31 December 2022, The carporate governance report forms
part of this Directors’ report and can be found at page 78,
Please refer to the Chair's statement on pages 9 to 11 and the
Investment Adviser's report on pages 30 to 37 for information
about future developments and important events that have
occurred since the year end. For further information on the
going cancern and longer term viability of the Group please
see pages 70 and 71

Status of Life Science REIT plc

The Company is an investment company, as defined in sectien
833 of the Companies Act 2008, and qualifies as a UK Real
Estate Investment Trust ("REIT") as defined under section
527(2) of the Corporation Tax Act 2010.

Investment portfolio

A comprehensive analysis of the property portfolio can
be found at page 31 and a summary of the valuation of the
property portfolio can be found in note 13 an page 122

The investment policy can be found at page 151.

Directors
Bicgraphies of each Director appointed to the Company can
be found at peges 74 and 75.

Directors’ authority to purchase own shares
The Company did not purchase any of its own shares during
the year.

The Company will seek the authority to make market
purchases of up to 14.99% of the issued ordinary share capital
at the 2023 AGM via resolution 13 as included in the Notice

of Meeating.
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Current share capital

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of the report, there
were 350,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.011n issue, none of
which were held in treasury. The share capital comprises one
class of ordinary shares.

Results and dividends

A summary cf the Group's performance during the year and
the outlook for the coming year is set out in the strategic
repart on pages 20 and 21.

In respect of the year enged 31 December 2022,

a second interm dividend of 3.0 pence (period ended

21 December 2021: nil pence) per ordinary share has been
declared, with a payment date of 15 May 2023. This is in line
with the Group’s obligation as @ REIT to distribute 20.0% of
the Group’s aggregate UK preperty rental business profits as
calculated for tax purposes that the Group receives during the
vear. The Company paid a first interim dividend of 1.0 pence
per ordinary share in respect of the six-month period to

30 June 2022 on 31 Qctober 2022

The Group’s dividend policy can be found at page 20 of the
strategic report.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 Dacember 2022, the following shareholders had notified the Company of their sharaholdings under their DTR 5 obligations:

Percentage

Ordinary of voting

Shareholder shares held' rights (%)
Investac Wealth & Investment Limited 49,605,405 14.2
SarasmandparmersLLp et ot o e ettt e s st e i 2 34]931,933 R o
:C; Chro(:mr S[;LC s e i e+ < 2 ettt S o et 30'2 13 ’720 [ 35
Hazelview Investments Inc. 23,504,655 67
Cemocaplta] Part merSLL 5 e s 4 R B B 5 e 1 17'293,200 e 49
The London and Amsterdarn Trast 15,800,000 4.5

1. As st date of notification to the Company.

Interests disciosed to the Company occurring between the year end and 24 March 2023, being the |atest practicable date:

Percentage

Ordinary of voting

Shareholder shares held’ rights (%)
Connar Broadley Limited 1,046,044 0.3

1. As 2t date of nobfication to the Company.

Powers of the Board of Directors

The pawers of the Directors are set out in the Articles of
Association of the Company at section 104. This section states
that the business of the Group shall be managed by the Board,
which may exercise all the powers of the Group, whether
relating to the management of the business or not, subject to
any limitations imposed by legislation, the Articles and/or any
directions given by special resolution of the sharehoiders of
the Company.
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Management arrangements
The Company and the AIFM have appointed Ironstone as
Investment Adviser to the Group.

The Company is an alternative investment fund for the
purpaoses of the UK AIFM Regime and, as such, is required

to have an AIFM who is duly authorised to undertake that
rote. Pursuant to an agreement dated 21 October 2021

(the "Alternative Investment Fund Management Agreement”),
the Company appointed G10 Capital Limited as its AIFM. G10
Capital Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authonty with firm referance number 648953.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT conminuen

The AlIFM is responsible for overall portfelic management,
risk management and compliance with the Group's
investment policy and the requirements of the UK AIFM
Regime that apply to the Group. The Investrment Adviser is
an Appointed Repraesentative of the AIFM. As an Appointed
Representative, the Investment Adviser is responsible for
working with and advising the Group and the AIFM in respect
of sourcing investment cpportunities which meet the Group's
investment policy.

As an appointed representative, lronstone is exempt from the
reguirement to be authorised by the FCA as a pre-requisite to
giving Investment advice and arranging deals in investments.
ronstone is also respansible for managing the underlying real
estate assets within the Group's investment portfolio, which
does not constitute a regulated activity.

The AIFM has, and shall maintain, the necessary expertise

and resource to supervise the delegated tasks effectively.
Under the terms of the Investment Advisary Agreement, the
investment Adviser is entitied to a fee pavable quarterly in
arrears calculated at the rate of one quarter of 11% per quarter
on that part of the NAV up to and including £500 million; one
guarter of 0.9% per quarter on that part of the NAV in excess
of £500 million and up to £1 bilion; and cne guarter of 0.75%
par guarter an NAY in excess of £1 billion.

The Investment Advisory Agreement is terminable on 24
months’ notice in writing by either party and also by the AIFM,
with the consent of the Company,; such notice not to be given
prior to the four-year anniversary of the date of Admission.

The Alternative Investment Fund Management Agreement
may be terminated by the Company or the AIFM giving not
less than six manths’ written natice. In additian, it is terminable
on 30 days’ notice by either party in writing in the avent
that the other party is found liable for material breach of
duty, negligence, wilful default, fraud or a material breach of
applicable reguiremeants in connection with the performance
of its duties under this Agreement or a materizal or persistent
breach of this Agreement, which is either irremediable or, if
capable of remedy. not remedied within 30 days of receipt
by the defaulting party of a notice signed on behalf of the
non-defaulting party requiring such breach to be rectified

The Company is also entitled to terminate the agreement
with immediate effect in the event that the AIFM ceases to
maintain its permission to act as the AIFM or such permission
is suspended.
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The Group pays to the AIFM, exclusive of VAT, a fixed monthly
fee of £3,000 in respect of risk management and portfolio
management services, a fixed quarterly fee of £4,000 for the
provision of Annex IV AIFM Directive regulatory reporting
and other fees for the provision of additional ad hoc services
and maintaining the Key Information Documents ("KIDs").
The Group will also reimburse the AIFM for costs and
expensegs properly incurred by the AIFM in the performance
of its obligations under the A[FM Agreement.

Continuing appointment of

the Investment Adviser

The Board keeps the performance of the Investment Adviser
under continual review. The Management Engagement
Committee conducts an annual appraisal of the Investment
Adviser's performance and makes a recornmendation to the
Board about the continuing appointment of the Investment
Adviser. It is the opinion of the Directors that the continding
appointment of the Investment Adviser is in the interests of
shareholders as a whole. The reasons for this view are that
the Investrnent Adviser executed The investrnent strategy, at
this earily stage of the Group's development, according to the
Board's expectations and on terms in which the Board is of
the view continue to remain commercial and reasonable.

NMPL

On 1 January 2014, certain changes to the FCA rules regarding
the restrictions on the retail distribution of unregulated
collective investment schemes and close substitutes
{"non-mainstream pooled investments”, or "NMPIs™) came
into effect. Since the Company obtained approval as a UK
REIT, with effect from Admission to AIM on 18 November
2021, its ordinary shares of nomina! value of .01 pence each
(the “shares”) are excluded from these rules and therefore the
restrictions relating to NMPIs do not apply to its shares. Itis
the Board's intention that the Group will continue to conduct
its affairs in such a manner that it maintains its approved REIT
company status and that, accordingly, the Company's shares
will continue to be excluded from the FCA's rules relating to
NMPIs and can be recommended by financral advisers to retal
investors in accordance with the FCA's rules in relatior to
NMP| products,
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Related party transactions

On 19 May 2022, the Company sighed an agreement with
Chapel Road Farm Estates Limited, which is a company
assoclated with the Founder and Vice Chairman of Ironstone
and therefore a related party of the Company. Chapel Road
Farm Estates provided introduction and facilitation services in
relation to the acquisitions of the pipeline properties that the
Group has acquired since the Company’s IPO.

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company incurred a
fee and disbursernents of £635,593 (excluding VAT). This was
a one-off agreement, and the Board anticipates that future
investrment propoesitions, and thelr associated costs, will all be
conducted via the Group's Investment Adviser.

The agreement with Chapel Road Farm Estates constituted

a related party transaction under AIM Rule 13. Fellowing
consultation with the Group's Nominated Adviser (at the time
under the AIM listing rules), Panmure Gordon, the Directors
considered that the terms of the agreemeant were fair and
reasonable insofar as the Company's shareholders were
concerned.

Post balance sheet events
Disclosures relating to post balance sheel events can be found
i note 31 to the financial statements on page 136.

Directors’ indemnities and Directors’ and
Officers’ liability insurance

The Company’s agreement to indemnify each Director against
any liability incurred in the course of their tenure, to the extent
permitted by law, remains in place.

The Directors were covered throughout the year under review.

Greenhouse gas emissions

During the year under review, the Group met the criteria

for reporting greenhouse gas emissions as per SECR
disclosure requirements (see table on page 54). The Group
have developed a sustainability strategy and an action plan
for 2023. Please see pages 42 to 45 for our approach and
page b4 for greenhouse gas emissions disclosure in our EPRA
sBPR reporting.
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Auditor

The Directors holding office at the date of this Annual Report
confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Group's Auditor is unaware.
Each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Direcfor to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group's Auditor is
aware of that information.

Deloitte LLP has expressed its willingness to be appcinted as
Auditor of the Group and resolutions for its appointment and
to authorise the Audit and Risk Committee to determine its
remuneration will he proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Financial risk management

Please see note 24 to the financial staternents on pages

132 and 133 for informaticn ¢n financial risk management
obkjectives and policies in relation to the Group’'s market risk,
interest risk, credit risk and liguidity risk.

The Group's approach to hedging is included in the
investment policy on page 152.

Research and development activities

The Company and its subsidiaries did not carry out any
activities in the field of research and developrent over
the year.

Donations

The Company and its subsidiaries made £17,095 (period
ended 31 December 2021 £nil) of political cr charitable
donations during the year to organisations either within or
outside of the UK.

Annual General Meeting
The Company's AGM will be held on 25 May 2023. The Notice
of the AGM will be circulated to sharehoiders separately.

For and on behalf of the Board

[\/\Dc, ST
Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary
24 March 2023
Company number: 13532483
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Diractors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and United Kingdom adopted Financial Statements

in accordance with applicable UK law and in compliance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Company law
requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the Directors are reguired to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™)

as issued by the Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"). The Directors have chosen to prepare the parent
company financiai statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including
FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they present
fairly the financial pasition, financiat performance and cash
flows of the Group for that year. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies in accordance with |AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and apply them consistently;

» present information, including accounting policies, ina
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

- provide additional disciosures when compliance with
speafic requirements in IFRS s insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the Group's financial pasition and
financial performance;

- state that the Group has complied with [FRS, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in thea financial
statements;

« state whether the Company financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 101") subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
Company financial statements; and

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Group and hence for taking reascnable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are

also responsible for preparing a strategic report, Directors’
report, Directors' remuneration report and corporate
governance statement that comply with that law and those
regulations, and for ensuring that the Annual Report includes
information, where applicable, for the Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules of the FCA.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s website. The work carried out by the
Auditor does not involve consideration of the maintenance
and integrity of this website and, accordingly. the Auditor
accepts no responsibility for any changes that have occurred
to the financial statements since they were initially presented
on the website. Visitors to the website need to be aware

that legislation in the UK covering the preparation and
dissemination of the financial statements may differ from
legislation in their jurisdiction.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS
and in canformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the Company fand Group as
a whole); and

= this Annual Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position cf the Company (and Group as a whole), together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that it faces.

The Directors consider that the Annua! Repart and Financial
Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary

for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and
performance, business model and stratagy.

For and on bhehalf of the Board

Imalyfte

Claire Boyle
Chair

24 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFE SCIENCE REIT PLC

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

1. Opinion
in cur opinicn:

e Mngncial slateinenls of Life Science REIT Plo (Lhe
‘Company”) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group') give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s
affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the Group’s (oss for
the year then ended;

the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
internaticnal accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“[ASB");

« the Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086,

We have audited the financiai statements which comprise:

= the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other
camprehensive income;

+ the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position;

« the consolidated and Company statements of changes
in equity;

+ the consolidated statement of cash flows; and

« the related notes 1to 37.
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The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in
the preparation of the Group financial staterments is applicable
law, United Kingdem adopted internaticnal accounting
standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial
reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation
of the Company financial statements is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council's {(the ‘FRC's") Ethical Standard as
applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirerments. We confirm that we have not provided any
non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard
to the Group or the Cormpany.

Wae believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFE SCIENCE REIT PLC

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit The key audit matter that we identified in the current year was:

matters * Valuation of investment properties measdred at Farr Value through Profit or Loss ("FVTPL")

Wikhin this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

@ Similar level of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £3,195,000 which was determined
on the basis of 1% of total equity (net assetl value).

Further to net assets, we considered EPR A earnings to be critical financial perfarmance measure for the
Group and we applied a lower materiality of £74, 000 for items affecting EPRA earnings on the basis of
5% of EPRA earnings.

Scoping We have performed full scope audit procedures on all components which account for 100% of the
Group's revenue, profit before tax and net assats,

Significant We applied a lower materiality of £74,000 for 1items affecting EPRA performance measures. The Group
changes in our completed its first full year of business operations and Is able to provide key real estate specific
approach performance measures. The Group presented EPRA Best Practices Recommendations as Alternative

Performance Measures ("APM") to assist stakeholders in assessing performance alongside the Group’s
statutory accounts reported under IFRS. We consider it appropriate to apply 2 lower materiality in order
to assess consistency of the EPRA performance measures with the audited financial statements. Other
than the lower materiality, there is no other significant ¢change.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting included:

« challenging management’s going concern assessment by comparing this against our knowledge of the business, results of
our audif testing as well as prevailing macroeconomic canditions:

* assessing a forecast budget for the next 12 months including consideration of the Group's financing arrangements and
evaluating management’s stress testing and mitigating actions available to the Group; and

« assessing the appropriateness of going concern disclosures included in the financiat statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's and Company’s ability to continue as & going concern for
a pertod of at least 12 months fram when the financial statements are authorised far 1ssue.

In relation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add
or draw attention to in refation to the Directors' statement In the financial statements about whether the Directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report
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5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not
due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the ovearall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as a wholg, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Valuation of investment properties measured at FVTPL

Key audit matter
description

The Group's investment properties totalled £387.6 million (31 December 2021: £192.2 million). The Group
measures the invastment properties at FVTPL in accordance with [AS 40 and are classified as Level 3

in the fair value hierarchy in accordance with (FRS 13. The Group's accounting policy for the investment
properties is specified in Note 13 of the financial statements.

The valuation of the Group’s iInvestment properties, as explained in Note 23 of the financial statements.
Involves significant judgement and assumptions, for example applying capitalisation yields to current
and future rental streams that could materially affect the financial statements. Therefore, we identified
the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter.

Management appoints an external valuer, CBRE Limited; chartered surveyors, to perform the valuations
in accordance with the appropriate sections of the RICS Red Book and in line with the requirements of
IAS 40 Investment Properties. The valuer has 1ssued a valuation report on the entire property portfolic

5 at the year end. The property portfolio is valued on the basis of up-to-date tenancy informaticon
supplied by management and publicly available market information.

In determining the fair value, the external valuers make a number of key estimates and assumptions, in
particular assumptions in relation to market comparable yields and estimates in relation to increases or
decreases in future rental income. These estimates and assumptions require input fram management,
whilst others are subject to market forces and will change over time. Manipulation of these accounting
estimates could result In material misstatements, and therefore we identified a potential fraud risk in this
key audit matter.

How the scope
of our audit
responded to
the key audit
matter

In response to the above key audit matter, we:

- obtained an understanding and tested the relevant controls over investment property valuations;

+ invalved our real estate valuation specialists to assist us in independently evaluating the
appropriateness of the inputs and assumptions used in the valuation methodology (including yield
and estimated rental values) for the properties;

« benchmarked valuation assumptions to relevant market evidence including specific property
transactions and other external data;

assessed the accuracy and completeness of data provided by management to the Group's valuer;

- assessed other available market information to identify any contradictory evidence to assumptions
made;

assessed the independence, competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Group’s valuer by
assessing whether the valuers are RICS approved and that there are no conditions or specific
assumptions in the letter of engagement; and

assessed the adequacy and completeness of disclosures presented in the financial statements.

Key
observations

Based on the work performed we concluded that the valuation of investment properties measured at
FVTPL is appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFE SCIENCE REIT PLC

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it provable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie person would be changed or influenced. We use matenality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Company financial statements

Materiality £3,195,000 (2021: £3,391.000). £3172,000 (2021, £3,357,000).

Basis for 1% (2021 1%) of the Group's total equity (net asset 1% (2021 1%) of the Company’s total equity (net
determining value), assel value).

materiality

Rationale for
the benchmark
applied

We determined materiality based on total

eguity (et assets value), which is deemed
appropriate due to the nature of the Group’s
business. Investors are most likely to focus on the
performance of their investment and the returns
on the investments: this is represented by the net
assets value of the Group.

We determed materiality based on total equity
(net assets value), which is deemed appropriate
due to the nature of the Company's business.
Further, it does not generate any revenue in

its own capadcity, as this is done through the
investee cormpanies that are owned by it. Investors
are most likely to focus on the returns on the
Investments and this is represented by the net
assets value of the Company.

A lower materiality threshold of £74,000 (31 December 2021 £nil) based on 5% of EPRA earnings has also been used

We consider EPRA Earnings as a critical perfarmance measure for the Group and a measure which is widely used within the
Real Estate industry. This has been applied for testing all balances impacting that measure. Refer to pages 142 to 149 for the
Group's EPRA performance meaasures.

6.2. Performance materiality
We set perfarmance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and
undetected misstaternents exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.
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Group financial statements

Company financial statements

Performance 70% (2021: 70%) of Group materiality. 709% (2021 70%) of Company materiality.
materiality
Basis and In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

rationate for
determinin ;

g valuaticon; and
performance

materfality

a. the quality of the control environment; we were able to rely on contrals on investment property

b. low level of corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified in the prior year.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee (“Committee”)
that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in
excess of £160,000 (31 December 2021 £170,000), as well as
differences below that thrashold that, in cur view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the
Cormmittee on disclosure matters that we identified when
assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. ldentification and scoping of components

QOur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement

at the Group level, Audit work to respond to the risks of
material misstatement was performed directly by Group
audit engagement team. We have performed full scope audit
procedures on all components which acceunt for 100% of the
Group’s revenue, profit before tax and net assets.

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment
We did not take a controls reliance approach on the general
IT controls during the audit for the Group due ta the simple
control environment and financial reporting system. We
obtainad an understanding and tested the relevant controls
over the investment property valuation.
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7.3. Our consideration of climate-related risks

In planning our audit, we have considered the potential impact
of climate change on the Group's business and its financial
statements.

The Group continues to develop its assessment of the
potential impacts of ¢limate change, including physical and
transitional risks and is scenario-based, as explained in the
Strategic Report on pages 48 to 50.

As a part of our audit, we have obtained management’s
climate-related risk assessment and held discussions with
management to understand the process of identifying
climate-related risks, the determination of mitigating

actions and the impact an the Group's financial statements.
Management has assessed that there is currently no material
impact arising from climate change on the judgements and
estimates determining the valuations within the financial
statements.

We performed our own assessment of the potential impact
of climate change on the Group's account balances and
classes of transaction, and did not identify any reasonably
possible risks of material misstatement. Qur procedures also
included reading disclosures included in the strategic report
to consider whether they are materially consistent with the
financial statements and our knowledge obtained in the audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFE SCIENCE REIT PLC

8. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
Auditor's repart thereon. The Directors are responsible for the
other information contained within the annual report.

Qur opinian on the financial statements does nat cover

the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibiiity is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencias or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required o report that fact.

‘We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

A5 explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities
statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have no real stic alternative but to do so.
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10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the

audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an Auditor’'s report that inciudes our opinion,
Reascnable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UKD will always detect a material misstatement when
It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description

farms part of our Auditor's report.
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T1. Extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line

with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstaternents in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud i1s detailed below.

11.1. Identifying and assessing potential risks related
to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstaternent in
respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

» the nature of the industry and sector, control environment
and business performance including the design of the
Group's remuneration policies, key drivers for Directors’
remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

+ results of our enquiries of management, the Directors
and the Committee about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities, including those that
are specific to the Group's sector;

» any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed
the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures
relating to!
= identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and

regulations and whether they were aware of any instances
of non-compliance;

« detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and
wheather they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud;

« the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud
or non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

« the matters discussed among the audit engagement
team and relevant internal specialists, including valuations
spectalists regarding how and where fraud might occur
in the financial statemenits and any potential indicators
of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the
opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud, and identified the greatest potential for
fraud in the following area:

» Valuation of investrent properties measured at FVTPL.

In common with ali audits ynder 1SAs (UK), we are aiso
required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk
of management override.
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We also obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework that the Group operates in, focusing
on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a
direct effect on the determination of material amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws
and regulations we considered in this context included the
UK Companies Act, Listing Rules, REIT conditions and tax
legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and
regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may be fundamental
to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.
These included the Group's compliance with health and safety
matters, including fire safsty and fire cladding.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified valuation
of investment properties measured at FVTPL as a key
audit matter related to the potential risk of fraud. The key
audit matters section of our report explains the matter in
more detail and also describes the specific procedures we
performed in response to this key audit matter.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks
identified included the fellowing:

- raviewing the financial statement disclosuras and testing
to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and reguiations described as
having a direct effect on the financial statements;

- enguiring of management, the Committee and external
legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and
claims;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraudg;

+ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with
governance; and

« in addressing the risk of fraud through management
override of controls, testing the appropriateness of icurnal
entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting estimates are
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business
rationale of any significant transactions that are unusuai or
outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and
regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members including internal specialists, and remained alert
to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations throughout the audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFE SCIENCE REIT PLC

Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors' remuneration raport

tc be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of
the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the
Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial
statements; and

= the strategic report and the Oirectors' report have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Group and the Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have nat identified any material
misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

13. Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors' statement
in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Group’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code speacified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we

have concluded that each of the following elements of the
Corporate Governance Statement is materially consistent with
the financial statements and our knowledge abtained during
the audit

= the Directors’ statement with regards to the
appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of
accounting and any material uncertainties identified set cut
on page 96;

= the Directors’ explanation as o lts assessmaeant of the
Group's prospects, the period this assessment covers and
why the period is appropriate set out on pages 70 and 71;

+ the Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and
understandable set out on page 92;

+ the board’s confirmation that it has carried out a robust
assessment of the emerging and principal risks set cut on
pages 87 and 88;

« the section of the annual report that describes the review
of effectiveness of risk management and internal centrol
systems set out on page 87; and

= the section describing the work of the Committee set out
on pages 91to 93.
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14, Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and
accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion:

- we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recelved from branches not visited by us: or

- the Company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting recerds and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report
if in our cpinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
have not been made or the part of the Directors’ remuneration
report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns

We have nothing to repert in respect of these matters.

15. Other matters which we are required

to address

15.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Committee, we weare
appointed by the Board on 11 February 2022 to audit the
financial statements for the period ended 31 December

2021 and subsequent financial periods, The period of total
uninterrupted engagement including previcus renawals and
reappointments of the firm is two years, covering the periods
anded 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with

the additional report to the Committee

Gur audit opinion is consistent with the addifional report to
the Committee we are required to provide in accordance
with 1SAs (UKD
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16. Use of our report

This report is made sofely to the Company's members,

as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for
no othier purpuse. To he fullest extent parmitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company’'s members as a body, for cur
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

As required by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA")
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule (“DTR™) 4.1.14R,
these financial statements form park of the European Single
Electronic Format ("ESEF") prepared Annual Financial Report
filed on the National Storage Meachanism of the UK FCA Iin
accordance with the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard
("ESEF RTS™). This auditor's report provides no assurance
over whather the annual financial report has been prepared
using the single electronic format specified in the ESEF RTS.

== O

Siobhan Durcan, BA, ACA, FCCA
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Saint Helier, Jersey

24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Period from

1 August

Year ended 2021 to

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Continuing operations Notes £'000 £'000

Gross property iIncome 3 13,124 5322

Service charge income 3 2,582 —

532

Property operating expenses 4 (2,187) —

Gross profit 10,937 532
Administraticn experises 4 ¢(6,565) (834>

Operating gains/(lesses) before (losses)/gains oh investment properties 4,372 (302)

Fair value {losses)/gains on investment properties 13 (31,312) 8,036

Operating ¢loss)/profit (26,940) 7,734
Finance income 7 3,255 7

Finance expenses 8 (3,782) —

(Loss)/profit before tax (27,467) 7,741

Taxation ) . o 9 (146) —

(Loss)/profit after tax for the period and total comprehensive (loss)/
income attributable to equity holders (27,613) 7,741

(L.oss)/profit per share (basic and diluted) (pence) 12 (7.9) 2.2

Alliterns in the above statement derive from continuing operations. No operations were discontinued during the period

There is no other comprehensive income and as such a separate statement is not present. The profit after tax 1s therefore also
the total comprehensive profit.

The accompanying notes on pages 114 to 136 form an integrat part of these Financial Statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

31 December

31 December

2022 200
Notes E'000 £000
Assets
Non current assets B
\nVeStment property i 13 " 387 550 192170

I ﬂtereat rate derlvatlves

Trade and other recewables

16 3 871

14 2,701

394,122 192,170
Current assets
Trade and othef recewab‘es e e ot e < < 5 et e L ; 665 - 5 268
Cash cgmd cash equlvaJents o T i i5 45 606 ]55 962
Iﬂter85t rate der[VatIVeS T T ) u ) V 18 o 432 —
53,703 169,230
Total assets 447,825 361,400
iabilities )
Non- curreﬁt Ilabllltles 7‘ )
:lﬂterest bea r|ng |OanS and bOl’rOWIngS“m-" T ]7 N (74 088) B — -

(77,932)

CurrEnt |Iabl|ltIES

Other Dayab'es and aCC]’Ued expenses""'""“'" S N 18 o (14 699) ) —(}O.SZO)
(50,442) (10,820)

Total liabilities (128,374) (10,820)

MNet assets 319,451 350,580

Eq unty

Sha re cap;tai o 12 o 3,"500 3 EOO

Sha re prem\ur‘%ﬁ 20 T — o 339 339

CBD\taI reductlon reserve

Retalhed earnings

21 s, 872)

335 323 B

7,741

Total equity 319,451 350,580
Number of shares in issue (thousands) 350,000 350,000
Net asset value per share (basic and diluted) (pence) 22 91.3 100.2

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Life Science REIT plc on 24 March 2023 and signed on

its behalf by:

Il

Claire Boyfe
Company number: 13532483

The accompanying notes on pages 114 to 136 form an integra! part of these Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

MNotes

Capital
Share Share reduction Retained
capital premium reserve earpings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Balance at 1 January 2022

Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss

Crdinary shares issued

Cancellation of share premium

Share issue costs

Dividends paid

19 20 -

20

3,500 339,339 —_ 7741 350,580

. - _ (27,613)  (27,613)

- (339,32%) 339,323 - -
- (16) — - (16)
- - (3,500) - (3,500)

Balance at 31 December 2022

3,500 — 335,323 19,872) 319,451

Notes

Capital
Share Share reduction Retaned
capital premium reserve earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £°C00 £'0Q0 £°000

August 2027

Dividends paid

ar and total comprehensive profit

(716

1

Balance at 31 December 2021

3.500 339,339 - 774 350,580

The accompanying notes on pages 114 to 136 form an integral part of these Financial Staterments,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Year ended Period ended

31 December 31 December

2022 202

Notes E'Q00 £'000

Ca‘;h ﬂows from operatmg actrwtres

Operating profit e (26,940) 7,734

A(‘Ijl rf.rmpnts to rec@ncuo prof:t for thc perlod tu \‘:et L.dh|l ﬂuw::

Chemges in fa\r va!ue of mvestment properttes 13 31,312 (8,036)
Adjustment for non- cash itemns — (82)
8]

OWws <] movements in working capital

ayments

|ﬂCrease in other payables and accrued expenses

Net cash flow fused in)/generated from operating activities (1,088)

Cash flows from mvestmg actlvmes

Acqwsmon of investment oropertles (179 4'[4) (181,524
Canpital expendwture (7 641)

Interest received 677 7

Net cash used in investing activities (186,378) 181.517)

Cash fi'ows from fmancmg actwrtres
Proceeds from lssue of ordmary shares 19,20 — 350 OOO

Share issuance costs pald - (1 118) (6 059)
Bank Ioans drawn down 17 101 260 —

Bank loans T'E!Da d - 17 (25,260) . -

Loan mterest and other ﬁnance expenses paJd (2,069) —

Loan 155ue costs pand (‘l 203)
D|V|dends pald n the perfod (3 500) -

Net cash flow generated from financing activities 67,110 343941
(120,356

Cash amd cash equwalents at start of the perlod I - 7-565,962 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 15 45,606 165,962

NEt (decrease)/mcrease in ca

d cash equ'

165,962

The accompanying nates on pages 114 to 136 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1. General information

Life Science REIT ple (the “Company") is a closed-ended Real Estate Investment Trust ("REIT") incorporated in England and
Wales on 27 July 2021, The Company began trading on 19 November 2021 when the Comaany's shares were admitted to trading
on AIM, a market cperated by the London Stock Exchange. On 1 December 2022 the Company moved to the Main Market of the
London Stock Exchange. The reqisterad office of the Company is located at 65 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7NQG.

The Group's consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together constituting the "Group™) and were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 24 March 2023.
The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out in the strategic report an pages 2 to 71.

2. Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, The Financial Statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the revaluation of investment properties and financial instrumants that are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below
Histarical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The audited
Financial Statements are presented in Pound Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (E'CQ0),
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company was incorporated on 27 July 2021 and a set of accounts to 31 July 2021 were filed, therefore the five-month
periad from 1 August 2021 to 31 December 2021 has been presented as the comparative. The Company did not commence
trading until 19 Novemhber 2021, thus the comparative information may not present a representative comparative.

2.1 Going concern

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. They carefully considered areas
of potential financial risk and reviewed cash flow forecasts, evaluating a number of scenarios which included extreme downside
sensitivities in relation to rental cash collection, making no acquisitions or discretionary capital expenditure and minimum
dividend distributions under the REIT rules. Accordingly, based on this information, and in light of mitigating actions avallable
and the reasonable expectation that the Group refinancing will be available when required, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in business for a period at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financial Statements (see pages 70 and 71 for full details of the going
concern assessment).

Furthermore, the Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability
to continue a5 & going concern. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

2.2 New standards and interpretations effective in the current period

The following amendrents to existing standards that are required for the Group's accounting period beginning on

1January 2022, have been considered and applied:

= Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling 8 Contract (Amendments to |AS 377,

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to 1AS 16),

= Annual lmprovements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1 IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and 1AS 413, and

- References to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3).

Thare was no material effect from the adoption of the apove-mentioned amendments to 1FRS effective in tne period. Thay have

no significant impact to the Group as they are either not relevant to the Group's activities or require accounting which 1s already
consistent with the Group’s current accounting policies
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2.3 New and revised accounting standards not yvet effective

There are a number of new standards and amendments ta existing standards which have been published and are mandatory
for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 or later. The Group is not adonting these standards
early. The following are the most relevant to the Group:

= Amendments to IAS T Presentation of Financial Statements clarifies that liabilities are classified as either current or
non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period and not expectations of, or actual events
after, the reporting date. The amendments also give clarification to the definition of settlement of a liakility,

+ Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors clarifies the distinction between
accounting policies and accounting estimates and also replaces the definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
definition, estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”; and

= IFRS 17: Insurance contracts is a new requirement from 1 January 2023 covering insurance and re-insurance contracts and
will not be relevant to the Group.

The amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the preparation of the Financial Statements.

2.4 Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in accordance with [FRS requires the Directors of the Campany to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts recegnised in the Financial Statements.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment
te the carrying amount of the asset or liability in the future.

Judgements

In the course of preparing the Financial Statements, the Investment Adviser has made the following judgements in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies which have had a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial
Statements.

Business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own investrment properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether each
acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of an asset. Management considers the substance of the
assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acqguisition represents the acquisition of a business.

The Group accounts for an acquisition as a busingss combination whare an integrated set of activities is acquired in addition
to the property. Where such acquisitions are not judged to be the acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business
combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
entity based upon their relative fair values at the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

All corporate acquisitions made during the period have been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations
because no integrated set of activities was acquired.

Estimates
In the process of applying the Group's accounting pelicies, the Investment Adviser has made the following estimates which have
the most significant risk of material change te the carrying value of assets recognised in the consolidated Financial Statements:

Valuation of property

The valuations of the Group's investment property are at fair value as determined by the external valuer on the basis of market
value in accordance with the internaticnally accepted RICS Valuation - Professional Standards January 2022 {incorporating
the International Valuation Standards) and in accordance with [FRS 13. The key estimates made by the valuer are the ERV and
eguivalent yields of each investment property.

Onsite developments are valuad by applying the ‘residual method' of valuation, which is the investment method described
above with a deduction for all costs necessary to complete the development, with a further allowance for remaining risk and
developers’ profit. Praperties and land heid for future development are valued using the highest and best use method, by
adopting the residual method allowing for all associated risks, the investment method, or a value par acre methodology.

See notes 13 and 23 for further details.

Life Science REIT plc Annual Repart and Financia! Statements 2022 15




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. Basis of preparation continued

2.5 Surmmary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Financial Statements are stated in the notes to the
Financial Statements.

a) Basis of consolidation

The Company does not meet the definition of an investment entity and therefere does not qualify for the consclidation
exemption under IFRS 10. The consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtained control, and will continue to be consalidated untit the date that such control ceases, Aninvestar controls an
investee when the investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee. In prepanng these Financia! Statements, intra-group balances,
transactions and unrealised gains or losses have been eliminated in full. Ali subsidiaries have the same year end as the Company.
Uniform accounting policies are adopted in the Financial Statements for ike transactions and events in similar circumstances.

k) Functional and presentation currency

The overall cbiective of the Group is to generate returns in Pound Sterling and the Group's performance is evaluated in Pound
Sterling. Therefore, the Directors consider Pound Sterling as the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects
of the underlying transactions, events and conditions and have therefore adopted it as the functional and presentation currency.

All values are rounded to the nearest thausand pounds (£'000), except when otherwise stated.

c) Segmental reporting
The Diractors sre of the opinion that the Groug is engaged In a single segment of business, being the investment and
management of premises relating to the life science sector.

d) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial Instruments, comprising interest rate dervatives for mitigating interest rate risks, are initially recognised
at fair value and are subseguently measured at fair value, being the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay
to terminate the agreement at the period end date, taking into account current interest rate expectations and the current
credit rating of the Group and its counterparties. Premiums payable under such arrangements are initislly capitalised into the
statement of financial position.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservabie inputs significant
to the fair value measurement as 2 whole. Changes in fair value of interest rate derivatives are recognised within finance
expenses in profit or loss in the period 1n which they occur,

e) Exceptional costs

ltems are classified as exceptional by virtue of their size, nature or incidence, where their Inclusion would otherwise distort
the underiying recurring earnings of the Group. Examples include, but are not limited to, business transformation costs, eariy
redemption costs of financial instruments and tax charges specific to disposals. Excepticnal costs are excluded from the
Group's adjusted earnings.
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3. Revenue
Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December

2022 202
£'000 £'000
1,007 428

1,240 82
722 22

iy re(:hargecj e ek s S s e o Lt s e e e et 1 1 e e o e e -
Gross property income 13,124 532
Serwce Charge mcome e e e et s s e e e et e e R ————— e o it i s e~ 5,532 S
Total 15,706 532

Accounting policy

Rental income arising from operating leases an investment property is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and 1s included in gross rental incame in the Group statement of comprehensive income. Initial direct costs incurred

in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are recognised as an expense over the lease tarm on the sarme basis as the
tease income. Rental income is invoiced in advance and for all rental income that relates to a future period, this is deferred and
appears with current liabilities on the Group statement of financial position.

For leases which contain fixed or minimum uplifts, the rental income arising from such uplifts 1s recognised on a straight-line
hasis over the lease term.

Tenant lease incentives are recognised as an adjustment of rental revenue on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease.
The lease term is the nan-cancellable period of the lease together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to
continue the lease where, at the inception of the lease, the Directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option.

Armounts received from occupiers to terminate leases or to compensate for dilapidations are recognised in the Group statement
of comprehensive income when the right te receive them arises.

Service charge incore is recognised when the related recoverable expenses are incurred. The Group acts as the principal in service
charge transactions as it directly controls the delivery of the services at the point at which they are pravided to the occupier,

4. Property operating and administration expenses
Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 Decernber

2022 2021

£'000 E'000

Recoverable service charges 2,582 —_
Rates 526 —_—
Prem|sesexpemse§ e e ) i 1t 4 et 1+~ e e e 4+ e e i s < <o o2 oot e e 928 o

571

Service charge void costs

Insurance expense 162 —
Property operating expenses 2,187 -
investrment Adviser fees 3,787 455

Cther administration expenses 1,458 217

Cost associated with moving to Main Market 957 —

Directors' remuneration (see note 5) o -156 32
Au d| tf ees<see nOte 6) e e e e e e 2 e+ e s et < e o e 1;7 [ 130
Administration expenses 6,565 834
Totai 1,334 2834

1 Includes doubtful debts provided for as at 31 Decernber 2022 of £0.7 million (31 December 2021 £nil).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

4, Property operating and administration expenses continued
Accounting policy

All property operating expenses and administration expenses are charged to the consolidated staterment of comprehensive

income and are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Property expenses are costs incurred by the Group that are not directly recoverable from an occupler, as well as professiona!

fees relating to the letting of our estates.

Further information on the calculation of the Investment Adviser fees is set outin nate 28

5. Directors’ remuneration

Year ended Period ended

31 December 31 December

2022 202

£'000 £'000

Claire Boyle 55 2
Sally Ann Forsyth 42 10
Michael Taylor 40 8
Richard Howell 29 —
Employers’ National Insurance contributions 20 2
Total 186 32

A summary of the Directors’ emuoluments, including the disclosures reguired by the Cormpanies Act 2006, is set out in the

Directors’ remuneration report on pages 94 and 95. The Group had no employees in the period.

6. Auditor’s remuneration

Year ended Pericd ended

31 December 31 Decembper

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Audit fee 177 130
Total 177 120

The Group reviews the scope and nature of all proposed non-audit services before engagement, to ensure that the
independence and objectivity of the Auditor are safeguarded Audit fees are comprised of the following items.

Year ended Period ended

31 Decemhber 31 December

2022 2021

£'000 £000

Group Annual Report and Financiai Statements 77 130

Total 177 120
Non-audit fees pavable to the Group’s Auditor comprised of the following:

Yearended Perlad ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

E'QOO £'00C

Services provided as reporting accountant on equity raise — 171

Total —_ 171

The Auditor has not undertaken any non-audit services during the year. The Audit and Risk Committee has considered the
Independence and obiectivity of the Auditor and has conducied s review of services which the Auditor has pravided during
the period under review The Audit and Risk Committee receives an annual assurance from the Auditor that its independence

15 not compromised.

118 Life Science REIT ple Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022



7. Finance income
Year ended
31 December
2022
£'000

Period ended
3] December
2021

£'C00

Change In fair value of interest rate derivatives

2,047

Income from hand short-term dépo it ) 771 7
Interest rec interest rate derivatives o 329 -
Change in fair value of deferred consideration on interest rate derivatives S TTes -
Total 3,255 7

Accounting policy

interest income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis and shown within the Group statement of comprehensive

income as finance income,

8. Finance expenses
Year ended
31 December
2022
£'000

Period ended
31 Decamber
2021

£'000

Loan interest 4,961

Loan arrangement fees amortised

416 o

e o e e s e e e o R N o e
Gross interest costs 5,578 —
Cap1ta||sat|on0 ffmancecosts o s s e e et e e+ e i . (1,795 ) e
Total 3,782 -

Accounting policy

Any finance costs that are separately identifiable and directly attributable to an asset which takes a period of time to complete
are amortised as part of the cost of the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in the pariod in which they occur. Finance
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with bank and other borrowings. Finance costs have

been capitalised in the pericd in accordance with the accounting policy detalled in note 17
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conTiNUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

9. Taxation
Carporation tax has arisen as follows:

Year ended Period ended

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Corporation tax on residual income 146 —
Total 146 —

Rreconciliation of tax charge to profit before tax:

Year ended Period ended

3 December 31 December

2022 2021

£'000 £000

(Loss)/proﬁt before tax (27,467) 7,74]
(5,219) 1 471
Change m value of mvestmemt pr’opertles 5,949 ('l 527)
Change in value of interest rate deravatlves (389) —
Tax-exempt property rental business (195) 56
Total 146 —

The Company served notice to HM Revenue & Customs that the Company, and its Group subsidiaries, qualified as a Real Estate
Investment Trust with effect fram 30 November 2021, The Group did not have any taxable profits arising pricr to this date.

The United Kingdom Gavernment has announced that it intends to increase the main rate of corparation tax from 19% to 25%
from April 2023, As the Company is a RE!T i is not anticipated that the change in the corporation tax will have a material impact
on the Group, however tax charges ¢n any non-property income will increase

Accounting policy

Corporation tax is recognised in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income except where in certain circumstances
corporation tax may be recognised in other comprehensive income.

As a REIT, the Group is exempt from corporation tax on the profits and gains from 1ts property rental business, provided it

continues to meet certain conditions as per the REIT regulations.

Non-qualifying profits and gains of the Group continue to be subject to corporatian tax. Therefare, current tax is the expected
tax pavable on the non-qualifying taxable incorme for the period, if applicable, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

at the balance sheet date.

10. Operating leases

Operating lease commitments - as fessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases an its investment property portfolio. These non-canceilable ieases have

a remaining term of up to 22 years.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

As at Asg ar

31 December 31 Decerrber

2022 2021

BE'000 £'000

W:thsn one year 12,602 6 397
Between one and ﬁve years 41 784 27194
More than f\ve years 30 044 21 080
Total 84,430 54,671
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11, Dividends

Pence
For the year ended 31 December 2022 per share £'000
Firstinterim dividend for year ended 31 December 2022, paid on 31 Qctcber 2022 1.0 3,500
Total 1.0 3,500

Non-property income distribution 1.0 3,500
Total 1.0 3,500

Neo dividends were declared for the period to 31 December 2021,

A second interim dividend of 3.0 pence per share was declared on 27 March 2023 and is due to be paid on 15 May 2023,

Accounting policy
Dividends due to the Company's shareholders are recognised when they become payable.

12. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing profit for the period attributable to ordinary sharehotders of the Cormpany by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares during the period. As there are no dilutive instruments in issue, basic and diluted EPS are
identical.

Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 Decemnber

2022 2021
£'000 £000
IFRS earnings (27,613) 7,741
EPRA ings adjust ts:
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment properties 31,312 (8,036)
Changes in fair value of interest rate derivatives and deferred consideration (2,155) -
EPRA earnings 1,544 (295)
Group-specific earnings adjustments:
Cost associated with moving to Main Market 957 -
Adjusted earnings 2,501 (295)
Year ended Period ended
21 December 31 December
2022 2021
Pence Pence
Basic IFRS EPS (7.9 2.2
Diluted IFRS EPS (7.9) 22
EPRA EPS 0.4 (0N
Adjusted EPS 0.7 (0.5
Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Number Number
of shares of shares
Weighted average number of shares in issue (thousands) 350,000 350,000

Life Science REIT plc Annual Report and Financia! Statements 2022 121




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

13. UK investment property

Completed Development Total

investment property investment

property and land property

£'000 £000 £°000

192,170 - 192,170

Acquisitions in the year 130,971 82,440 213,411

Additional capital expenditure 641 9,565 10,206

Finance costs capitalised —_ 1,796 1,796
Fair value losses on investment property (15,060) (16,252) (31,312}

Movement in rent incentives 1,247 32 1,279

Fair value at 31 December 2022 309,969 77,581 387,550

Completed Development Total

investment property investrnent

property and land property

£'000 £'000 £°000

Investment property valuation brought forward as at 1 August 2021 —_ — —

Acguisitions in the year 184,052 — 184,052

Fair value gain on investment property 8036 — 8,036

Movement in rent incentives 82 — 82

Fair value at 31 December 2021 192,170 — 192170

Accounting policy

Investrment property comprises property held to earn rental iIncome or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment property
15 recegnised upon legal completion of the contract, where costs are reliably measured and future economic benefits that are
associated with the praperty flow to the entity. Investment property is measured nitially at cost inciuding transaction costs.
Transaction casts include transfer taxes and professional fees to bring the property to the condition necessary far it ta be
capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the
time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met

All corporate acquisitions made during the period have been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations
because no integrated set of activities was acguired.

Development property and land is where the whole or @ material part of an estate 1s identified as having potential for
development. Assets are classified as such unt!l development s completed, and they have the potential to be fully income
generating Development property and land is measured at fair value if the fair value is considered to be reliably determinable
Where the fair value cannot be determined religbly but where it is expected that the fair value of the property will be reliably
determined when construction is compieted, the property is measured at cost less any Impairment until the fair value becames
reliably determinable or construction is completed, whichever is earlier. It is the Group's policy not to capitalise overheads

or operating expenses and no such costs were capitaiised in either the year ended 31 December 2022 or the period ended

21 Decermber 2021, however £1,796,000 (2021: £n11) of finance costs have been capitalised in the period to 31 Decernber 2022,
Refer to note 17 for more details.

Subseguent to Initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value (see note 23). Gains or losses arising from changes
N the fair values are included in the consalidated statement of profit or loss and other comprenansive iIncoame in the period in
which they arise under |AS 40 Investment Property.

Investment properties cease to be recognised when they have been disposed of or withdrawn permanently from use and no
future economic benafit 15 exoectad. Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying value of the asset.

Mavements in rent incentives are presented within the tota! portfolio valuatian.
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14. Trade and other receivables
It December 31 December

2022 20
£’000 £'000
Prepayments and other receivables 3,531 362

nts due from/(d 2,200 5)

2;70'[
Rent and insurance receivable 1183 635
e e e
e e S
LR e e e e
s
Total 10,366 3,268

1. Tanmant deposits are reflected as non-current recevables.

Accounting policy
Rent and other receivables are recognised at their original invoiced value and become due based on the terms of the underlying
lease or at the date of invoice.

The Group carries out an assessment of expected credit losses at each period end, using the IFRS 9 simplified aporoach, where
a lifetime expected loss allowance is recognised over the expected life of the financial instrument. Adjustments are recognised
in the income statement as an impairment gain or loss. The rent and insurance receivablée represents gross receivables of

£1.9 million (31 December 2021: £0.6 milion) and a provision for doubtful debts of £0.8 miliion (31 December 2021 £nil).

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the barrower is unlikely o pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full. The Group writes off trade receivables when thera is no reasonable expactation of recovary.

15. Cash and cash equivalents
31 December 31 December

2022 202

£°000 £°Q00

10,606 21,962

Cash equivalents 35,000 144,000

Total 45,606 165,962

Cash equivalents includes £35.0 million (2021: £144.0 million) of cash held by various banks on short-term deposits.

Accounting policy
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and short-term deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
with an initigl maturity of three months or less.
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16. Interest rate derivatives
31 Decamber 3] December
2022 2021
£000 £'000

AL the start of the period - n

ional premiums paid and accrued =

Changes in fair value of interest rate derivatives

Balance at the end of the period

432 -
3,871 -
Balance at the end of the period 4,303 —

Curre

Non-current

To mitigate the interest rate risk that arises as a resuit of entering into variable rate linked loans, the Group entered into interest
rate derivatives.

The instrument entered into in August 2022 has a notional value of £75.0 million at a strike rate of 2.00% and a termination date
of 31 March 2025.

On 13 May 2022, the Company acguired the issued share capital of Oxford Technology Park Holdings Limited ("CTPHL™)
including its two subsidiaries, Oxford Technology Park Limited ("OTPL™ and Oxford Technology Park Investments Limited
C'OTPIL?). OTPL has an existing loan facility and SONIA interest rate cap in place at 0.75% until the loan expiry date for
£29.3 millien of the drawn facility. This cap is due to expire In June 2023 and 15 therefore shown in current liabilities.

Accounting policy

interest rate derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at fair value, being the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the agreement at the period end date, taking into account current
interest rate expectations and the current credit rating of the Group and its counterparties. Premiums payable under such
arrangements are intially capitalised into the statement of financial position.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole. Changes in fair value of interest rate derivatives are recognised within finance
expenses in profit or loss in the period 1IN which they occur.

124 Life Science REIT plc Annual Report and Financia! Statements 2022




17. interest-bearing loans and borrowings

31 December 31 Dacember

2022 2021
Non-current £000 £°000
At the beglnn\mg of the period - —
Drawn in the perlod V 7 101 260‘” I,
Repald in the perlod R ) (26 250) -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 75,000 -
Unamortised fees at the beginning of the period - -
Léan-arrangement fees pald m the perlod T h (1,203; T ~
Amortisation charge for the period 29'[ L
Unamortised loan arrangement fees (912) —
Loan balance less unamortised loan arrangement fees 74,088 —_

31 December 371 December

2022 2021
Current £'000 £'000
At the beglnnmg of the perlod e —
Acqu]red m the penod ) 33,582 —
Drawn m the penod e e S o i St o e e < e -
era‘d - the péf.od e e o e e AR 2 e o e et e - -
Interest and comm\tment fees mcurred in the perlod - 2,251 R
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 35,8353 —
Unamomsed fees at the begmnmg of the per|0d - —
l oan arrangement fees paid xn the perlod .(215) T
f\mortlsatlon charge for the perlod 125 T
Unamortised loan arrangement fees [¢:]9)] —
LLoan balance less unamortised loan arrangement fees 35,743 —

On 29 March 2022, a direct subsidiary of the Company, Ironstone Life Science Holdings Limited, entered into a £150.0 million
single currency term and revolving facility agreement ("HSBC facility™) with HSBC UK Bank plc, comprising a £75.0 million
three-year term loan facility and an equally sized revolving credit facility. The HSBC facility has an interest, rate in respect of

drawn amaounts of 225 basis paoirits over SONIA. As at 31 December 2022

 the £75.0 million three-year term loar facility was

fully drawn and there was £75 0 million available to draw on the revolving facility.

In August 2022, additiona! protection was secured against potential future interest rate rises through capping the SONIA rate at
2.0% until 31 March 2025 on the full amount of the HSBC term loan at a premium of £2.3 millien.

The MSBC facility is secured on Rolling Stock Yard, Cambourne Business Park, 7-11 Herbrand Streef, Lumen House and the
Merrifield Centre within the poertfolio.

On 13 May 2022, the Company acquired the issued share capital of Oxford Technology Fark Heoldings Limited ("OTPHL")
including its two subsidiaries, Oxford Technalogy Park Limited ("CTPL") and Oxford Technology Park Investments Limited
C"OTPIL"). OTPL has an existing lean facility with Fairfield REF £CS Il GEN No.2 Designated Activity Company ("Fairfield”) of
£53.4 million, of which £35.8 million is currently drawn. The Fairfield facility has an interest rate in respect of drawn amounts of
712 basis points over SONIA.

There is an existing SONIA interest rate cap in place at ©.75% until the loan expiry date for £29.3 millien of the drawn facility.
The Fairfield debt is due to expire in June 2023 and is therefore shown in current liabilities.

The debt facilities include LTV and interest cover covenants that are measured at entity level where the debt facilities have heen
drawn. The Group s in full compliance with all loan covenants as at 31 December 2022
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17. interest-bearing loans and borrowings continued

Accounting policy

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the proceeds received net of dirsctly attributable transaction costs. Loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Interest on the HSBC facility is charged to the consolidated
staterment of camprehensive income at the effective interest rate and shown within finance costs. Interest on the Fairfield
facility is capitalised as part of the loan principal at the effective interest rate and reflected within finance costs. The effective
interest rate is calculated as the daily SONIA rate plus the facility margin. Transaction costs are amortised over the term of
the {oan.

Where a property is being developad or undergoing major refurbishment, finance costs associated with direct expenditure on
the property are capitalised. Capitalisation commences when the activities to develop the property start and continues until the
property is substantially ready for its intended use, normally practical completion.

Capitalised finance costs are calculated at the Group's weighted average interest rate.

18. Other liabilities - other payvables and accrued expenses, provisions and deferred income

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Capital expenses payable 5,481 2628
e rredmcome e e e o e e v+ -+ it o+ s 369 2 - 4937 .

Deferred consideration on interest rate caps 820 —

VAT payable 759 —
Property operating expenses payable 332 92
Share issue costs payable - 1101

Current

posits payabie to tenant 2,701 633
Deferred consideration on interest rate caps 1143 -
Non-current other payables and accrued expenses 3,844 633
Total other payables and accrued expenses 18,543 10,820

Accounting policy
Other payables and accrued expenses are initially recognised at fair value and subseguently held at amortised cost,

Deferred income is rental income invoiced to the tenant but relates to future accounting periods. The income is deferred and is
unwound to revenue on a straight-line basis over the period in which it is earned.
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19. Share capital
Share capital is the nominal amount of the Company's ordinary shares in issue.

31 Daecember 31 December

2022 2021

Ordinary shares of £0.0]1 each Number £'000 Number £'000
Authorised, issued and fully paid:

Shares issusd 350,000,000 3,500 350,000,000 3,500

Balance at the end of the period 350,000,000 3,500 350,000,000 3,500

The share capital comprises one class of ardinary shares. At general meetings of the Company, ordinary shareholders
are entitled to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll, for every share held. There ara no restricticns on the size
of a sharehcolding or the transfer of shares, except for the UK REIT restrictions.

Accounting policy
Share capital is the nominal amount of the Company's ordinary shares in issue.

20. Share premium
Share premiurn comprises the following amounts:

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
£°000 £'000
339,339 -

At the start of th

Shares"iésued T o o -

Sharelss i L e - — (15) (7115{)
Transfer to capital recuction reserve N (339,323) ~
Share premium - 339,339

Accounting policy
Share premium represents the excess over nominal value of the fair value of the consideration received for equity shares net of
direct issue costs.

On 12 April 2022, the share premium account was cancelled in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 in
order to create distributable reserves, the capital reduction reserve. This is capable of being applied in any manner in which the
Company's profits available for distribution are able lawfully to be applied.

21. Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprise the following cumulative amounts:
31 December 31 December

2022 2021

£°000 £'000

Total unrealised (loss)/gain on investment properties N _(__23,276) _ 8036
Total unrealised gain on interest rate derivatives and deferred consideration 2185
Retained earnings (19,872) 7740

Accounting policy

Retained earnings represent the prafits of the Group less dividends pard from revenue prafits to date. Unrealised gains/(losses)
on the revaluation of investment properties, interest rate derivatives and deferred consideration contained within this reserve
are not distributable until any gains crystallise on the sale of the investment property and interest rate caps.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had distributable reserves availzble of £337.1 million (2021: £nil).
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22. Net asset value per share

Basic NAV per share amounts are calculated by dividing net assets attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company

in the staterment of financial position by the number of ordinary shares cutstanding at the end of the perod. As there are no
dilutive instruments in issue, basic and diluted NAV per share are identical.

EPRA nef tangible assets ("EPRA NTA™) is calculated using property values in line with IFRS, where values are net of real estate
transfer tax ("RETT") and other purchasers’ costs. EPRA NTA is considered to be the most relevant measure for the Group's
operating activities.

31 December 31 Decernber

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

IFRS net assets attributable to ordinary shareholders 319,451 350,580

|FR5: netassetsforcalcu\anonoﬂ\j AV i e s e+ e st e 1 A s o e A+ _319451350580
Adjustment to net assets:

Fair value of interest rate dervatives 77 asesy -

EPRA NTA 315,148 350,580

31 December 31 Decamber

2022 2021

Pence Fence

IFRS basic and diluted NAV per share (pence) 91.3 100.2
EPRA NTA per share (pence) 90.0 100.2

31 December 31 Cecember

2022 2021

Number Number

of shares of shares

Number of shares in issue (thousands) 350,000 350.000
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23. Fair value

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following metheds and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

The fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liakilities approximate their
carrying amounts due to the shori-ferm maturities of these instruments.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are disclosed at amortised cost. The carrying values of the loans and borrowings
approximate their fair value due to the contractual terms and conditions of the loan. The HSBC debt facility has an interest rate
of 225 basis points over SONIA in respect of drawn amounts. The Fairfield debt facility has an interest rate inrespect of drawn
amounts of 712 basis points over SONIA.

The fair value of the interest rate contracts s recardad in the statement of financial position and is revalued quarterly by an
independeant valuations specialist, Chatham Financial.

Six-rmonthiy valuations of investment property are performed by CBRE, accredited external valuers with recognised and
relevant professional qualifications and recent experience of the location and category of the investment property being
valued, on a variable fee basis. The valuations are the ultimate responsibility of the Directors however, who appraise these every
six months,

The valuation of the Group's investment property at fair value is determined by the external valuer on the basis of market value
in accordance with the internationally accepted RICS Valuation - Professional Standards January 2020 (incorporating the
International Valuation Standards).

Completed investment praperties are valued by adopting the 'incorne capitalisation’ method of valuation. This approach
involves applying capitalisation vields to current and future rental streams, net of income voids arising from vacancies ar
rent-free periods and associated running costs. These capitalisation yields and future rental values are based cn comparable
property and leasing transactions in the market using the valuer's professional judgement and market observations. Other
factors taken into account in the valuations include the tenure of the property. tenancy details and ground and structural
conditions

Onsite developrents are valued by applying the residual method’ of valuation, which is the investment method described
above with g deduction for all costs necessary to complete the development, with a further allowance for remaining risk and
developers’ profit. Properties and iand held for future development are valued using the highest and best use method, by
adopting the residual method allowing for all associated risks, the investment method, or a value per acre methodology.

The following table shows an analysis of the fair values of investment properties recognised in the statement of financial
position by level of the fair value hierarchy"
31 December 2022

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
I t t propertie — - 387,550 3%?1550
Interest rate derivatives - 4,303 T 4303
Deferred consideration on interest rate caps ) - aeen - (1,963)
Total — 2,340 387,550 389,890

31 December 2021

Level Level 2 lLevel 3 Total
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Investment properties — - 192,170 192,170
Total - — 192,170 192,170

1. Explanation of the fair value hierarchy:
Level 1~ guoted prices ¢unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurermnent date;
Level 2 - use of a madel with inputs (ather than guoted prices included in Level 1) that are directly ar indirectly observable market data, and
Level 3 - use of a model with iInputs that are not based an nhservable market data.
There have heen no transfers batween Levet 1 and Level 2 during either penod, nor have there been any transfers in or out of Level 3.
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23. Fair value continued

Sensitivity analysis to significant changes in unobservable inputs within the valuation of investment

properties
The following table analyses:

- the fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period;

- g description of the valuation techniques applied,;

» the inputs used 1n the fair value measuremeant, including the ranges of rent charged to different units within the same

building, and
« for Level 3 fair value measurements, quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement.
Key
Fair vaiue Valuation unabservable
31 December 2022 £'000 technigue inputs Range
Completed investment property £308,969 Income ERV £18.9-£110.0
capitalisation per sq ft
Equivalent 4.25%-7.00%
yield
Development property £41,241 Income ERV £20.0-£25.0
capitalisation per sq ft
/residual method
Equivalent 5.00%-5.05%
yield
Development land £36,340 Comparable Sales rate per sq ft £138.6
method/residual
method
Total £387,550
Kay
Fair value Valuation unobservable
21 Decamber 2021 £°000Q technique inputs Range
Completed investment propearty E182170 Income ERV E23.0-F67.9
capitalisation per sq ft
Equivaient 3.81%-7.00%
yviald
Total £132170
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Significant increases/decreases in the ERV (per sq ft per annum) and rental growth per annum in isolation would result in a
signuficantly higher/lower fair value measurement. Significant increases/decreases in the long-term vacancy rate and discount
rate (and exit yvield) in isolation would result in a significantly higher/lower fair value measurement.

Generally, 3 change in the assumptian made for the ERV (per sq ft per annum) is accompanied by:
« asimilar change in the rent growth per annum and discount rate (and exit yield); and
- an oppdosite change in the long-term vacanLy rale.

The table below sets out a sensitivity analysis for each of the key sources of estimation uncertainty with the resulting increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of completed investment property:

As at 31 December 2022 Increase in Decrease in
sensitivity sensitivity

Completed investment property £'000 £'000
Change in ERV of 10% 30,997 (30,997)
Change in het equivalent yvields of 50 basis points (31,177) 38,491
Increasein Decrease in

sensitivity sensitivity

Development property £000 £’000
Change [n ERV of 10% 4,124 (4,124}
Change in net equivalent vields of 50 basis points (4,632) 5,654
[ncrease in Decrease in

sensitivity sensitivity

Development land £000 £000
Change in sales rate per sq ft of 10% 3,634 (3,634)
Increase in Decreasein

sensitivity sensitivity

As at 31 December 2021 E'CCQ £000
Change in ERV of 10% 19.217 (19.217)
Change in het equivalent vields of 50 basis paints (20,207) 25,380

Galns and losses recardead in profit or loss for recurring fair value measurements categorisad within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy amount to a loss of £31.3 million (31 December 2021: gain of £8.0 million) and are presented in the consclidated
statement of comprehensive income in line item ‘fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties’,

All gains and losses recorded in profit or [oss for recurring fair value measurameants categorised within Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy are attributable ta changes In unrealised gains or losses relating to Investment property held at the end of the
reporting peried.

The carrying amount of the Group's other assets and liabilities is considered to be the same as their fair value.
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24, Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group has trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from
its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity nsk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk s the risk that future values of investments in property and related investments will fiuctuate due to ¢changes in
market prices. The total exposure at the statement of financial position date is £387.6 million and to manage this risk, the Group
diversifies its portfolic across 3 number of assets. The Group's investment policy is to Invest in UK-located life science assets.
The Group will invest and manage its portfolic with an objective of spreading risk and, in doing so, will maintain the following
investment restrictions:

« no individual building will represent more than 35% of gross asset value, reducing to 25% of gross asset value by
31 Decamber 2023,

= the Company will target a portfolio with no one tenant accounting for more than 20% (but subject to a maximum of 30%)
of the higher of either (i) gross contracted rents or (i) the valuer's ERV of the Company’s portfolio including developments
under forward-funding agreements, as calculated at the time of investing or leasing;

» the aggregate maximum exposure to assets under development, including forward fundings, will not exceed 50% of
gross asset value, reducing to 30% of gross asset value by 31 December 2023, Within this limit, the maximum exposure to
developments, as measured by the expected gross development cost, which are not under forward-funded arrangements,
will not exceed 15% of gross asset value at the commencement of the relevant development; and

» no more than 10% of gross asset value will be invested in properties that are not life science properties.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty or tenant will cause a financial loss to the Group by failing to meet a commitment it has
entered into with the Group.

All cash depaosits are placed with approved counterparties, all of whom have a credit rating of AA- or above. In respect of
property investments, in the event of a default by a tenant, the Group will suffer a shartfall and additional costs concerning
re-letting of the property. The Investment Adviser monitors the tenant arrears in order to anticipate and minimise the impact of
defaults by occupational occupiers.

The following table analyses the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk:

3t December 31 December

2022 202

£000 £000

Cash and cash eguivalents 45,606 165,962
Trade and other recevables 7 0027 2361
Total 55,633 168,323

1 Excludes prepayments and VAT receivable

[nterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of 3 financial instrurment will fluctuate because of changes in markat interest
rates The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates to its variable rate bank loans. To mitigate
the interest rate risk that arises as a result of entering into variable rate linked loans, the Group has entered into interest rate
derivatives. As at 31 Decermnber 2022 there were two interest rate derivatives in place. In August 2022 additional protection
was secured against potential future interest rate rises through capping the SONIA rate at 2.0% until 31 March 2025 on the full
amount of the HSBC term loan at a premium of £2.3 millon. In addition, there is an existing SONIA interest rate cap in place
relating tg the OTP acquired debt at 0.75% until the [can expiry date of June 2023 for £29.3 million of the drawn facility.
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Changes in interest rates may have an impact on consolidated earnings over the longer term. The table below provides

indicative sensitivity data.

2022 2021
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
interest rates  interest rates interest rates interest rates
by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
Effect on profit before tax £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Increase/(decrease) (1,554) 1,545 — —

Foreign exchange rate risk

Management have considered the risks but not deemed them material for the business as the Group's exposure to foreign
exchange rate risk as at 31 December 20227 and 31 Decermber 2021 was minimal.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liahilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Exposure to liguidity risk arises because of the possibility
that the Group could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance

between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank deposits and loans.

Set cut below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are

carried in the financial statements

2022 2021
Fair Carrying Fair Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value value value
hierarchy £600 £'000 hierarchy £'000 £'000
Held at amortised cost
Cashand cash equivalents 'n/a 45606 456068  n/a 165962 165962
frade and other receivabless ~~ n/a 10,027 10,027 s 2361 2,361
Other pavables and sccrued expenses?  n/a (14,850 (14,85)  n/a  (5883) (5883
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings ~ n/a (109,831 (109,83 - -
SR e e et i et < 1 s et o e o st S 1 1 s s o
Interest rate derivatives ‘na 4303 4303  — - —

1. Excludes prepayments.
2. Excludes deferred income

The table below summarises the maturity proefile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less Three
than three to 12 Cne to Two to More than
months months two years five years five years Total
Year ended 31 December 2022 £000 E'000 £'000 £'000 E'GOO E'CO0
Other payables and accrued expenses' 10,874 2,753 739 485 — 14,851
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 973 40,475 3,947 150,951 — 196,346
Total 11,847 43,228 4,686 151,436 — 211,197
Less Three
than three to 12 One to Two to Maore than
months manths two years five years five years Total
Year ended 31 December 2021 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000 £°'000
Other payables and accrued expenses' 5,883 — — —_ — 5,883
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings — - - — — -
Total 5,883 — - — — 5,883
1. Excludes deferred income.
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25. Subsidiaries

Country of Company Number and class
incorporation Registration of share held Group
Company and operation Number by the Group halding

0

lronstane Life Science Holdings Lim'\ted2

1,000 ordinary sha %

Iromstone Life Science Harwel[ le\ted‘ 26 UK 14047959 ) Tordinary share
Iromstone Life Science Camboume Two L|r-ﬁ|ted‘ 2 UK o 13779806 o T 1ordmary Share 100%
Ironstone Llfe 5c|ence Camboume lelted’ 2 UK 13763082 - Tordmarysfi’ware - 100%
irrrér::mstone Llfe SC|ence Oxford Lmﬂted‘ ? UK o 13467718 I "1 ordmary Si‘warerw»w 100%
lromstone Llfe Smence RSY Limited"? S UK -“"“13763(339 S 1 ordinary share "-100%
Iromstone L[fe Science Merr\ffeld L\mlted‘ E UK 13763037 lllllllll 1 ordmary share OO%
lronstone LS Camboume One lelted1 SR Jersey o 108784 - 3 599 80 ordmary sharesr - 100%
Deepdale mvestment Hold ngs l_\mited‘ 0 BvI 1824411 S 4OO A ardinary sharesw - 77”100%
100 B dli ry shares

Merr\ﬁeld Centre l_]mlted

UK ms3ag  21786.4%3ordinoryshares 100%
lronstone L:fe SCIence Herbrand leated‘ 27 o UK "”14044299 S lordmary share" o 100%
.Herbrand Properties leltedW 5 BVI 19078435 T 6 OOO ordinary Sharesr o 777”100%
Oxford Technotogy Park Holdmgs Lu‘mted2 UK 12434159 92 ordmary Sharesw WWIOO%
Oxford Technology Park le[ted‘ ? . UK " 68483449 - WOO ordmary shares o Mw]OO%

Oxford Technology Park mvestments le\ted‘ z UK 1244224@ 1 ordmary share 100%

1 Indirect subsidianes

2 Registered office: Radius House, 51 Clarendon Rozad, Watford, WD17 14P

3 Ragistered office’ S0 La Colomberie, St Helier, Jersey, JEZ 408,

4. Registered office: Geneva Place, P.O Box 3339, Road Town, Tortola, 8ntish Virgin [slands.

5 Registered office: Nerine Chamaers, PO. Box 905, Road Town, Tortola, 1110, British Virgin Islands
&, This entity was dissolved on 7 March 2023
7. This entity was dissolved on 28 February 2023

The principal activity of all the subsidiaries relates to property investment.

The subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by
virtue of section 4794 of the Act. The Company has provided a guarantee under s479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect
of the financial period endad 31 Dacember 2022 for a number of its subsidiary companies. The guarantee 1s over all outstanding
liabilities to which the subsidiary companies are subject at 31 Decermnber 2022 untill they are satisfied in full.

The Group consists of a parent company, Life Science REIT plc, incorporated in England and Wales, and a number of
subsidiaries held directly by Life Science REIT ple, which operate and are incorporated in the UK, Jersey and the British
Virgin tslands.

The Group owns 100% equity shares of all subsidiaries listed above and has the power to appoint and remove the majority of
the Board of Directors of those subsidiaries. The relevant activities of the above subsidiaries are determined by the Board of
Directors based on the purpose of each company.

Therefore, the Directors concluded that the Group has control over all tnese entities and all thase entities have bean
consolidated within the consclidated Financial Statements,

A list of all related undertakings included within these consolidated Financial Statements is noted above,
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Accounting policy
Where property is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or ctherwise, management considers the substance of the assets and
activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business.

Where such acquisitions are not judged to be an acqguisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations.
Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the identifiabie assets and liabilities of the entity based
an their relative fair values at the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additicnal deferred taxation arises. Otherwise,
acquisitivns are accounted for as business combinations.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acguisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value, and the armount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree,

f~or each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value of the
proportionate share of the acguiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs (except for casts of issue of debt or equity)
are expensed in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

Contingent consideration is deemed to be equity or a liability in accordance with |1AS 32.If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement shall be accounted for within equity. If the contingent
consideration is classified as a liability, subsequent changes to the fair value are recognised either in profit or 0ss or as a change
to other comprehensive income.

26, Capital management
The Group's capital is represented by share capital and reserves,

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it remains within its guantitative banking covenants
and maintains a strong credit rating. The Group's capital pclicies are as follows:

+ the Group will keep sufficient cash for working capital purposes with excess cash, should there be any, depasited at the best
interest rate available whilst maintaining flexibility to fund the Group's invaestment programme;

= borrowings will be managed in accordance with the loan agreements and covenants will be tested quarterly and reported to
the Directors. Additionally, quarterly lender reporting will be undertaken in line with the loan agreement; and

- new borrowings are subject to Rirector approval. Such borrowings will support the Group's investment programme but will
be subject to @ maximum 55% LTV. The intenticn is to maintain borrowings at an LTV of between 30% and 40%.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements

27. Capital commitments
At 31 December 2022, the Group had contracted capital expenditure of £24 4 million (3T December 2021 £nil)

28. Related party transactions

Directors

The Directors (all Non-Executive Directors) of the Company and its subsidiaries are considered to be the key management
personnel of the Group. Directors’ remuneration for the period totalled £186,450 (2021 £32,456) at 31 December 2022,
including £20.000 of employers National Insurance contributions; a balance of £nil (2021 £2,000} was outstanding relating
to employer NI, Further informaticn 1s given in note 5 and in the Directars’ remuneration report on pages 94 and 95.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conTinuED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

28. Related party transactions continued

Investment Adviser

The Company I1s party to an Investment Advisory Agreement with the AIFM and the (nvestment Adviser, pursuant to which
the Investrment Adviser has been appointed to provide investment advisory services relating to the respective assets ona
day-to-day basis in accordance with their respective investment objectives and policies, subject to the overall supervision and
direction by the AlFM and the Boerd of Directors.

For its services to the Company, the investment Adviser is entitled to a fee payable quarterly in arrears calculated at the rate
of one guarter of 1.1% per quarter on that part of the NAV up to and including £500 million: one quarter of 0.9% per guarter on
that part of the NAV in excess of £500 million and up to £1 billion; and one quarter of 0.75% per quarter on NAV in excess of
£1 billion. Refer to page 98 of the Directors’ report for further information.

During the year, the Group incurraed £3,787,421(2021 £454,3032) in respect of investment advisory fees. As at

31 December 2022, £888,174 (2021 £454,903) was outstanding.

29. Reconciliation of changes in liabilities to cash flows generated from financing activities’

Interest-bearing  Interest-bearing

loans and loans and
borrowings barrowings
current non-current Tetal
E'000 £'000 £'300
Balance as at 1 January 2022 - - —
Changes from finarcing cash flows:
Bank loans drawn down - 101,260 101,260
Bank loans repaid — (26,260) (26,260)
Loan arrangement fees paid in the year - (1,203)
Total changes from financing cash flows - 73,797

Loans acquired?

Additional loan arrangement fees in year capitalised

Additional interest and commitrment fees capitalised

Amortisation charge for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022 35,743 74,088 109,831

1. Comparative for the pertod end 31 December 2021 has not been shown as there were No loans :n the pnor per.ad
2. Acquired as part of the OTR acquisition in the year,

30. Ultimate controlling party
It is the view of the Directors that there is no ultimate controlling party.

31. Post balance sheet events

Refinancing

In February 2023 the OTP Farrfield facility was refinanced by drawing down £26.3 million from its existing £150.0 milticn HSBC
facility as well as utilising existing cash résources

Dividend
A second interim dividend of 3.0 pence per snare in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 will be paid on 15 May 2023,
This will be paid as an ordinary dividend with an ex-dividend date of 13 April 2023
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Assets

Non-current assets

Investment in subsidiary companies

Receivables

Notes

34

36

31 December 31 December

2022

214,505

£'000

65138

2021
£'000

1
177,827

279,643

177,828

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables N

36

35

1,421

39,614

229

41,035

166,191

Total assets

320,678

344,019

Liabilities

Current Iiabilriities 7 B

Other payables and accrued expenses ) 37 5,004 (1943
Taotal liabilities (5,004) (1,943
Met assets 315,674 342,076
Equity

Share capital ) 3,500 3,500
.S harep; o s e R = s — o 339339
Cepital reduction reserve 335,823 =

Retained earnings

(23,649)

783)

Total equity

315,674

342,076

Number of shares in issue {thousands)

350,000

350,000

Net asset value per share (basic and diluted) (pence)

90.2

a7.8

The Company reported a loss for the vear ended 31 December 2022 of £22,886,000 (periad ended 31 December 2021:

£763,000 loss).

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directers of Life Science REIT plc on 24 March 2023 and signed on

its beha'f by:

bulyle

Claire Boyle
Company number: 13532483

The accompanying notes on pages 132 to 141 form an integral part of these Company Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Capital
Share Share reduction Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
£000 £000Q £'000 £°000 £'000

Balance at ‘l January 2022 3,500 339,339 — (763) 342,076

Loss for the year and tota% comprehenswe ioss — — — (22 886) (22,886)

Ordmary shares |ssued — — — — —

Share ussue costs - (16) - - (18

Cancellation of share premlum " S ) — (339 323) 339 323 - -

Dx\ndends Dald - — (3, 500) —_ {3,500)
Balance at 31 December 2022 3,500 — 335,823 (23,649) 315,674

Capital
Share Share reduction Retained
capital premium reserve aarnings Total
£'0CC £000 £'000 £'0C0 £'000

Baiance at srart of penod — - — — —

Loss for the year and tota! comprehenswe !oss — — -— (763> C763)

Ordmary Shares fisued S WVVV},EOO 345 EOO — — 350 OOO
Share issue costs — (776?) — — (7?67)

DI\/IdeﬂdS pald T T - — 7; o " V‘* V —

Balance at 31 December 2021 32.5G0 339,339 — (763} 242,076
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

32. General information

Life Science REIT plcis a closed-ended REIT incorporated in England and Wales on 27 July 2021. The Company began
trading on 19 November 2021. The ragistered office of the Company is located at 65 Grasham Street, L.ondon, EC2V
7NQ. The Company's shares were admitted to trading on AIM, a market operated by the Landon Stock Exchange.
On1December 2022 the Company moved to the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange.

33. Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 101") and in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006. The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The audited
Financial Statements are presented in Pound Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000).
except when otherwise indicated.

In preparing these Financial Statermnents the Company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions conferred by FRS 101
Thereforg, these Financial Statements do not include:

= certain disclosures regarding the Company’s capital;

= astatement of cash flows;

- the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted;

« the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel; and

« disclosure of related party transactions with ather wholly owned members of Life Science REIT plc.

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disciosure exemptions have been adopted because equivalent disclosures
are included in the Company's consolidated Financial Staterments. These Financial Statements do not include certain disclosures
in respect of:

» share-hased payrents;

= financial instruments; and

» fair value measurement.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its own
statement of comprehensive income.

The Financial Statements of the Company follow the accounting policies laid out on pages 114 to 116.

The key source of estimation uncertainty relates to the Company's investment in Group companigs and is stated in the
Company's saparate financial statements at cost less impairment losses, if any. Impairment losses are determined with reference
to the investment's fair value less estimated selling costs. Fair value is derived from the subsidiaries, and their subsidiaries’,

net assets at the balance sheet date. Investment properties held by the subsidiary ccmpanies are supported by independent
valuation. Judgements and assumptions assoclated with the property values of the investments held by the subsidiary
companies are detailled in the Group financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

34. Investment in subsidiary companies

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
£000 £'000

Investment in subsidiary companies
Total carrying vatue 65,138 1

Total

65,128 1

31 December 31 Decemnber
2022 2024
£'000 £'000

Investments in subsidiary companies

lronstone Life Science Holdings Limited

1 1
Oxford Technology Park Holdings Limited ' 65,137 —
65,138 1

Following a review comparing cost of investments to the underlying net assets of subsidiary companies, an impairment

provision has been made of £21.3 million.

See note 25 for full list of subsidiary companies.

Accounting policy

Investments in subsidiary companies ara included in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment. For a list of

subsidiary companies, see note 25

35. Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 December

2022 2071
£'000 E'Q00
4,614 144000

35000 21962
39,614 166,962

Accounting policy

Cash equivalents include cash at bank and short-tarm deposits with banks and other financial institutions, with an initiat

maturity of three months or less.
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36. Trade and other receivables
A, Receivables: non-current assets

31 December

31 December

Total

2022 202

£'000 £000

Amounts due from subsidiary companies 214,505 177,827
214,505 177827

Loans due from subsidiary companies are unsecured, interest free and repavable on demand.

B. Receivables: current assets

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Prepayments and other receivableas 1,421 229
1,421 229

Tatal

37. Other payables and accrued expenses

31 December
2022
£'000

31 December
2021
F'O00

Capital exp ayable
Administration expenses payable

Other expenses payable

Provision for corporation tax

tnsurance payable

Total
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES NOT PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Group is @ member of the European Public Real Estate Association ("EPRA"). EPRA has developed and defined the
following performance measures to give transparency, comparability, and relevance of financial reporting across entities which
may use different accounting standards. The foliowing measures are calculated in accordance with EPRA guidance. These are

not intended as a substitute for IFRS measures.

Table T: EPRA performance measures summary

Notes

Year to
31 December
2022

Period from
1 August
2021to

31 December
200

EPRA earnings (£'000)
EPRA EPS (pence)
EPRA cost ratio (including direct vacancy cost)

EPRA cost ratio {excluding direct vacancy cost)

o Ta t;le 6

Table 2
Table 2

0.4

56.3%
Table &

57.8%

1,544

(295)
~w@n
163.5%
183.5%

31 December
2022

EPRA NDV per share {pence)

EPRA NRV per shere (pence)
EPRA NTA per share (pence)
EPRA topped-up’ net intial yield

EPRA vacancy rate N )

EPRA loan to vaiue

" Table 3

Table 3 N

Table 4

Table 4
Table 5

Table 10

Table 3

91.3

95.9
80.0
3.4%

3.6%

18.9%

18.0% h

31 December
20

100.2
1039
002
a.4%
4.5%

19.1%
/s
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Table 2: EPRA income statement

Year to

31 December

2022

Periad from
1 August
2021t0

31 December
2021

Revenue 3

Less: insurance recharged 3

Less: service charge income 3

15,706

' (2,582)

532

Rental income

12,969

»

Property operating expenses (including recoverable service charges)

( e

Insurance recharged 3

Add back: service charge income

Ny

2,582

155

Gr fit

10,937

532

Administration expenses 4

(6,565)

(8343

QOperating profit/(loss) before interest and tax

4,372

(302>

3,235

7

Finance expenses

Less change in fair value of interest rate derivatives

o

(3,782)

Adjusted profit/(Joss) before tax

Tex on adjusted loss 9

1,690

(295)

(148>

EPRA earnings

1,544

(295)

Company-specific adjustments:

EPRA earnings

Cost associated with moving to Main Market 4

957

1,544

295

Adjusted earnings

2,501

(295)

Weighted average number of srhares inissue (thousands) 19

350,000

250,000

EPRA EPS {(pence) 12

0.4

O

Adjusted EPS {pence) 12

0.7

Adjusted earnings represents earnings from operational activities. It is a key measure of the Group’s underlying operational

results and an indication of the extent to which dividend payments are supported by earnings.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES NOT PART OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION conTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Table 3: EPRA balance sheet and net asset value performance measures

EPRA net disposal value ("NDV™), EPRA net reinstatemeant value ("NRV") and EPRA net tangibie assets ("NTA™). A reconciliation
of the three new EPRA NAV metrics from IFRS NAV is shown in the table below. Total accounting return will now be calculated
based on EPRA NTA.

EPRA NDV EFRA NRV EPRA NTA

As at 31 December 2022 Notes £'000 £°000 £'000
Total properties' 13 387,550 387,550 387,550
Othernetnabm—tTes_ e e e i e et e a1 s i s (2372) e o ( 2,872 , e (2,872)
IFRS NAV 22 319,451 319,451 319,451
Include: real estate transfer tax® - 20,621 -
Exclude: fair value of interest rate derivatives 16 — (4,303) (4,303)
NAV used in per share calculations 319,451 335,769 315,148
Number of shares in lssue (thousands) 12 350,000 350,000 350,000
NAV per share (pence) 22 a91.3 95.9 90.0
EPRA NDV EPRA NRV EPRA NTA
As at 31 December 2021 Notes £'000 £'000 E'QOO0
Total properties! 13 192,370 192,170 192,170
Mot eaghs T T e e T T e 7 165962 165962 165.962
othernethamhn es e e e 1 i+ i et s s et 0~ e e e o e - (7552) (75 52) S (7552)
IFRS NAV 22 350,580 350,580 350.580
Include: real estate transfer tax? — 13,068 —
NAY used in per share calculations 350,580 363,648 350,580
Number of shares inissue (thousands) 19 350,000 350,000 350,000
NAV per share {(pence) 22 100.2 1039 100.2

1. Professronal valuation af investment property.
2. Comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings (excluding unamortised loan arrangement fees) of £110,833,000 net of cash of £45609,000.
3 EPRA NTA and ERRA NDV reflect IFRS values which are net of real estate trans’er tax. Redl estate transfer tax is added back when calculzting ZPRA NRV.

EPRA NDV details the full extent of liabilities and resulting shareholder value if Company assets are sold and/or if liabilities are
not held untit maturity. Deferred tax and financial instruments are calculated as to the full extent of their liability, including tax
exposure not reflected in the statement of financial position, net of any resulting tax.

EPRA NTA assumes entities buy and sell assets, thereby crystallising certain levels of deferred tax liability.

EPRA NRY highlights the value of net assets on a long-term basis and reflects what would be needed to recreate the Company
through the investment markets based on its current capital and financing structure. Assets and liabilties that are not expected
to crystaliise in normal circumstances, such as the far value movements on financial derivatives and deferred taxes on property
valuation surpluses, are excluded. Costs such as real estate transfer taxes are included.
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Table 4: EPRA net initial vield

31 December 21 December

2022 2021

Notes £'000 E'000

TOta\DfODertwes per external valuers' repert 13 387,550 192,170
o dévelopment Dmpertg and Iand‘ e s s e 1 e et et e 4 et e s 13(77,581) s
.E_Et valuation of campleted properties 309,969 192,170
Aédestlmat_edp urchaserg‘ Cogtgl e e o S o i = s e 50,521 ]3068
Gross valuation of completed properties including estimated purchasers’ costs (A) 330,590 205,238
Gross passing rents? (annualised) 12,423 9,124
P OR e — cost52 e e e s e e s e <+ s 5 i e e e (_11104)(179)
Net annualised rents (B) 11,319 8,945
Add notional rent on expiry of rent-free periods or other lease incentives® 540 291
‘Topped-up’ net annualised rents (C) 11,859 9,236
EPRA NIY (B/A) 3.4% 4.4%
EPRA ‘topped-up’ net initial yield (C/A) 3.6% 4.5%

1. Estimated purchasers’ costs estirnated at 6.7% (31 December 2021 6.8%).

2. Gross passing rents and rrecoverable property costs assessed as at the balance sheet date for completed investment properhes excluding development property
and land.

2. Adjustment for unexpired lease incentives such as rent-free pericds, discounted rent period and step rents. The adjustment includes the annualised cash rent that will
apply at the expiry of the lease incentive Rent-frees expire over a weighted average period of 12 months (31 December 2021, three months).

EPRA NIY represents annualised rantal income based on the cash rents passing at the balance sheetf date, less non-recoverable

property operating expenses, divided by the market value of the property, increased with (estimated) purchasers' costs. It is a

comparable measure for pertfolio valuations designed to make it easier for investors to judge themselves how the valuation of

portfolio X compares with portfolio .

EPRA ‘topped-up’ NIY incorporates an adjustment to the EPRA NIY in respect of the expiration of rent-free pericds (or other
unexpired lease incentives such as discounted rent periods and step rents).

NIY as stated in the Investment Adviser's report calculates net initial yield on topped-up annualised rents but does not deduct
non-recoverable property costs.

Table 5: EPRA vacancy rate

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Annualised ERV of vacant premises (D} 3,024 1937
Annualised ERV for the investment portfolio (€3 o O Tam 02
EPRA vacancy rate (D/E) 18.0% 19.1%

EPRA vacancy rate represents ERV of vacant space divided by ERV of the completed investment portfolio, excluding
development property and land. It is a pure measure of investment property space that is vacant, based on ERV.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES NOT PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION coNTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Table 6: Total cost ratio/EPRA cost ratio

Perind from

1 August

Year to 2021 to

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Notes £'000 £°000

Property operating expenses {(excluding service charge expenses) 4 1,616 —

Service charge expenses 4 3,153 —

Add back: h 3 (2,582) -

Add back: insurance recharged 3 (155) —

Net property operating expehses 2,032 —

Administraticn expenses 4 6,565 834

Deduct: costs associated with move to Main Market 4 (957) -

Total cost including direct vacancy cost (F) 7,640 834

Direct vacancy cost (1,104) —

Total cost excluding direct vacancy cost (G) 6,536 834

Rental income! 3 12,969 510

Gross rental income (H) 3 12,969 510

Less direct vacancy cost (1,104 —

MNet rental income 1,865 510

Total cost ratio including direct vacangy cost (F/H) 58.9% 163.5%

Total cost ratio exciuding direct vacancy cost (G/H) 50.4% 163.5%
1 Includes renta!l incame, rental income straight-line adjustment and other income as per note 3

Periad from

1 August

Year to 201 to

31 December 31 December

2022 2028

Notas £'000 £'G00

Total cost including direct vacancy cost (F} 7,640 834

Add back: costs associated with move to Main Market 4 957 -

EPRA total cost (1) 8,557 834

Direct vacancy cost (1,104) —

EPRA total cost excluding direct vacancy cost (J) 7,493 834

EPRA cost ratio inciuding direct vacancy cost (I/H) 66.3% i63.5%

EFRA cost ratio excluding direct vacancy cost (J/H) 57.8% 163 5%

EPRA cost ratios represent administrative and operating costs (including and excluding costs of direct vacancy) divided by
gross rental income. They are a key measure to enable meaningful measurement of the changes in the Group's operating costs.

Itis the Group's policy not to capitalise overheads or operating expenses and no such costs were capitalised in the year ended

31 December 2022
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Table 7: Lease data

Year1 Year 2 Years 3-5 Year 5+ Total
As at 31 December 2022 E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Passing rent of leases expiring in: 524 — 6,007 5,892 12,423
ERV of leases expiring in: 809 — 6,352 6,925 14,086
Passing rent subject to review in: 1,481 — 10,855 a7 12,423
ERV subject to review in: 1,827 — 12,158 E[) 14,086

Year Year 2 Years 3-5 Year 5+ Tatal
As at 31 December 2021 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000
Passing rent of leases expiring in: — 2,351 1,603 5170 9,124
ERV of leases expiring in: — 3,570 1,884 4,675 10,129
Passing rent subject to review in: 428 1,753 3,264 3,679 9,124
LRV subject to review in: 439 2,653 4.08] 2,956 10,122

WALILT to expiry is 6.2 years (31 December 2021: 6.6 years) and to break is 4.7 years (31 Decermnber 2021: 4.1 years).

Table 8: Capital expenditure

Period fram

1 August

Year to 2021 to

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Notes £000 £000

Acduisitions? 13 213,41 184,052

Development spend? 9,565 —
Completed investment properties:?

No incremental lettable space - like-for-like portfolio 13 641 —

No incremental lettable space - other - -

Tenant incentives 13 1,279 —

Total capital expenditure 224,896

184,052

Debt d-OTP* 17 (33,582)
Conversion from accruals to cash basis {4,259) (2,528)
Total capital expenditure on a ¢ash basis Page 113 187,055 181,524

1. Acquisitions melude £131.0 milhion (31 Decamber 2021: £181.5 million) completed investment property and £82.4 milion (31 Decemter 2021" £nil) development

property and land.
2. Expenditure on development property and fand.
- Expenditure on completed investment properties.
. On acquisiton of QTP in May 2022, £33.6 million of debt was acquired See note 17 for further details

oW
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES NOT PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION conNTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Table 9: EPRA like-for-like rental income

Period from

1 August

Year to 2021t

31 December 31December

2022 2021

Notes £'000 jpelele]

EPRA like-for-like rental income - —
Cther' — —
Adjusted like-for-like rental income - —
Devetopment letting - —
Properties acauired in current and pricr period 3 532
Rental income 532
Service charge income 3 —
Insurance recharge 3 —
Revenue 532

1. Includes back rent and other tems,

Table 10: Loan to value (“LTV"”) and EPRA LTV

Gross debt less cash, short-term deposits and liquid investrments, divided by the aggregate value of properties and investments
The Group has also opted to present the EPRA LTV which is defined as net borrowings divided by total property market value.

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

Notes £000 £000

interest-bearing loans and borrowings’ 17 110,833 n/a
CaSh e i o e e i e e 15 P (4560 e) n/a
Net barrowings (A) 65,227 n/a
Investment property at fair value (B) 13 387,550 n/a
LTV (A/B) 16.8% n/as

EPRA LTV

31 December 31 December
2022 2027

Notes £'000 E'000

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings* 17 110,833 n/a
Netpayables® S 8wy wa
cash 15 (45,608)  n/a
Net borrowings (A) 73,404 n/a
Investment properties at fair value 13 387,550 n/a
Total property value (B) 387,550 n/a
EPRA LTV (A/B) 18.9% n/a

1 Excludes unamart’sed loan arrangement fees asset of £'.0 millior (see note 173

2 Net payables ncludes trade and other receivables, other payabies and accrued experses See page 111 for a full breakdown
3 Camparative figures for 31 Dacemper 2021 neve been excluced as the Group had ro intergst-bear~g ioans and barrow:ngs as at this date.
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Table 11: Total accounting return
The movement in EPRA NTA over a period plus dividends paid in the period, expressed as a percentage of the EPRA NTA at the
start of the period.

Period from

1 August

Year ended 2021to

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

Pence Pence

Notes per share per share

Opening EPRA NTA (A) 22 100.2 -

Movement (B 02 1002
Cio g 22 90.0 100.2"
Dividand per share (C) - o o -
Total accounting return (B+C)/A (9.N% n/a

Table 12: Interest cover
Adjusted operating profit before gains on investment properties, interest and tax, divided by the underlying net interest expense.

Period from

1 August

Year to 2021to

21 December 31 December

2022 2021

Notes £000 £'000

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) before gains on investment properties (A) 5,329 n/a
Adjusted interest expenses 3,782 o .
Add bhack: capitatised finance costs 1,796 - —
Less: adjusted interest income 7 (1,100) -
Lean interest (B) 4,478 n/a
Interest cover (A/B) 119.0% n/a

Comparative figures for 31 December 2021 have been excluded as the Group had no interest-bearing loans and borrewings at
this date.

Table 13: Ongoing charges ratio
Ongoing charges ratio represants the costs of running the REIT as a percentage of NAV as prescribed by the Association of
Investment Companies.

Period from

1 August

Year to 2027 to

31 December 3] December

2022 2021

Notes £000 £:000

Administration expenses 4 6,565 834
Less: cost associated with moving to Main Market 4 (957) —
Annualised ongoing charges (A) 5,608 834
Opening NAV as at start of period 350,580 —
NAVY as at 30 June 7 357,461 - —
Closing NAV as at 31 December 319,451 350,580
Average undiluted NAV during the period (B) 342,497 350,580
Ondeing charges ratio (A/B) 1.6% 0.2%
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Property Town Postcode Area (sq ft)
Lumen House Oxl‘ord OXH‘ OSG T7600

Tha Memﬁeld Centre o I Cambmdge CEﬂ SLQ 12 600

Rollmg Stock Yard Lomdom N7 9AS 53 9OO
Cambou rne Busmess Park Cambrldge CBZZ GDW 231 7OO
7 TT Herbrand Street Lcmdcn WClN TEX 68 GOO

Oxford Technology Park‘ o Oxford OXS lGN 492 400

1. Fult build-out area. Area practically complete as at 31 December 2022 was 104,300 sg ft.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 27 July 2021 This
Annual Report and Financial Statements covers the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022,

The Company's ordinary shares were admitted to trading
on AlM on 19 November 2021 following [P0 and the Group's
operations therefore commenced on this date. Following
the Company's migraticn to the premium segment of the
London Stock Exchange ("LSE"), its shares were cancelled
from AIM on 1 December 2022 and admitted to trading on
the premium segment of the LSE.

Capital structure

The Company’s share capttal consists of ordinary shares
of £0.01 each. At shareholder meetings, members present
in parson or by proxy have one vote on a show of hands
and on a poll have one vote for each ordinary share held.
Shareholders are entitled to receive such dividends as the
Directors resolve to pay out of the assets attributable to
ordinary shares. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
participate in the assets of the Compamy attributable to
the ordinary shares in a winding up of the Company. The
ordinary shares are not redeemable. As at the date of this
report, there were 350,000,000 ordinary shares inissue,
none of which are held in treasury.

Investment cbjective

The Company’s investment objective is to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of total return,

The focus will be capital growth whilst also providing a
growing level of income by investing primarily in a diversified
portfolio of UK properties that are leased or intended to be
leased to tenants operating in the life science sector.

Investment policy

The Company seeks to achieve its investment objective

by investing in a diversified portfolio of properties across
the UK which are typically leased or intended to be leased
to tenants operating in, or providing a benefit to, the life
science sector ("life science properties”). Life science is the
branch of sciences concerned with all processes affecting
living organisms. This encompasses servicing and the
study of the breadth of life systems, and the structure

and hehaviour of living things.

Companies operating in the life science sector include,
but are not limited to, those involved in the innovation,
development and/or production of assets directly or
indirectly for human health purposes. These assets include
compounds, products and devices derived and designed
for application in numerous fields.
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The Company does not limit itself in relation to the types
of properties it acquires or develcps, but examples may
include wet and dry laboratories, offices, incubators and
co-working space, manufacturing and testing facilities and
data centres, The Company retains flexibility to acquire
individual buildings, a group of buildings across a single
science park or the entirety of a science park.

This may include purchasing or developing buildings that
are leased or intended to be leased to tenants providing
ancillary services to employees of companies operating in,
or providing a benefit to, the life science sector.

The Company typically invests in income-producing assets.
The Company focuses an investing where it believes that
the underlying property is consistent with the overarching
objective of providing shareholders with capital growth
whilst also providing a growing level of income. Investment
decisions are based on analysis and due diligence,
including, but not limited to, location, tenant profile and
demand, rental growth prospects, lease terms and/or asset
management/anhancarnent opportunities.

The Cempany may acquire properties efther directly or
through corporate structures (whether onshore or offshore)
and &also through joint venture or other shared ownership or
co-investment arrangements. In circumstances where the
Company does not hold a controlling interest in the relevant
investment, the Company will seek, through contractual
and other arrangements to, inter alia, ensure that each
investment is operated and managed in a manner that is
consistent with the Company's investrnent policy.

Any asset management or development opportunities

that the Company pursues are conducted in such a way

as to minimise any development risk, typically through

the use of forward funding or similar arrangements.

Asset management opportunities may include, but are not
limited to, refurbishing or extending existing assets or where
the Company may seek to maximise or change alternative
use values of existing operational assets. The Company
may from time to time invest in development opportunities
without a forward-funding arrangement including
pre-developed land cr land where planning permission
may be required, subject to a restriction that maximum
exposure to these developments will not exceed 15% of
gross asset value.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Investment policy continued

It is anticipated that properties will be held for the long
term. However, the Company may undertake cpportunistic
disposals of properties considered to be in the best interests
of shareholiders

The Company invests in and actively manages its assets with
the objective of reducing and diversifying risk and, in doing so,
maintains the following imvestrment restrictions:

« no individua! building will represent more than 35% of
Qross asset value, reducing to 25% of gross asset value by
31 Dacember 2023;

- the Company targets a portfolio with no one tenant
accounting for more than 20% (but subject to @ maximum
of 30%) of the higher of either (1) gross contracted rents or
(i) the valuer's ERY of the Company's portfolic including
developments under forward-funding agreements, as
calculated at the time of investing or leasing:

« the aggregate maximum exposure to assets under
development, including forward fundings, will not exceed
50% of gross asset value, reducing to 30% of gross
agsset value by 31 December 2023, Within this limit, the
maximum exposure to developments, as measured by the
expected gross deveiopment cost, which are not under
forward-funded arrangements, will not exceed 15% of
gross asset value at the commencement of the relevant
development; and

+ no more than 10% of gross asset value will be invested in
properties that are not life science properties.

In addition, the Company will not invest more than 10% of

gross asset value in other alternative investment funds or

closed-ended investment companies.

Compliance with the above restrictions is calculated
immaeadiately following investment and non-compliance
resulting from changes in the price or value of assets following
investment is not considered as a breach of the Investment
restriction.

The Company defines: (1) "gross asset value” as "the value of
the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries from time to
time, determined in accardance with the accounting policies
adopted by the Company”; (i) "gross contracted rents” as
“the total rent receivable on a property plus rent contracted
from expiry of rent-free periods and uplifts agreed under the
leases contracted on the Company's portfalio of properties”;
and (i) "ERV" as "the estimated annual open rrarket rental
value of lettable space”

Gearing

The level of gearing is on a prudent basis for the asset class,
and seeks to achieve a low cost of funds, whilst maintaining
flexibility in the underlying security requirements and the
structure of the Company. It is envisaged that a gross loan

to value ("LTV") ratio of between 30% and 40% would be
the optimal capital structure for the Company over the
longer term. However, in order to finance value-enhancing
opportunities, the Company may temporarily incur additional
gearing, subject to a maximum LTV ratio of $5% at the time of
an arrangement.

Debt is secured at asset level and potentially at Company
ar special purpose vehicle lavel, depending on the optimal
structure for the Company and having consideration to key
rmetrics including lender diversity, debt type and maturity
profiles.

Use of derivatives

The Company rnay utilise derivatives for efficient portfolio
managerment only. In particular, the Company may engage
in full or partial interest rate hedging or otherwise seek to
mitigate the risk of interest rate increases on barrowings
incurred in accordance with the gearing limits as part of
tha Company's portfolio managemaeant.

Cash management policy

The Company may hold cash on deposit and may investin
cash eqguivalent investments, which may include short-term
investments in money market type funds ("cash and cash
equivalents").

There is no restriction on the amount of cash and cash
eguivalents that the Company may hold and there may
be times when it is appropriate for the Company to have a
significant cash and cash equivalents position.

REIT status

The Company intends to continue conducting its affairs so as
to enable it to ramain quahfied as the principal company of a

REIT group for the purpose of Part 12 of the Corporation Tax

Act 2010 (and the regulations made thereunder).

Changes to, and breach of, the investment palicy
Any material change to the Company's investment policy set
out above will require the prior approva! of sharenclders by
way of an ordinary resolution at a ganeral meeting.

In the event of a breach of the investment guidelings and the
investment restrictions set agut above, the AIFM shall inform
the Board upon becoming aware of the same and if the Board
considers the breach to be material, notification will be made
10 a Regulatory Information Service.
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Share dealing and share prices
Shares can be traded through your usual stockbroker.
The Company's shares are admitted to trading on the LSE.

Share register enquiries

The register for the ordinary shares is maintained by Link
Groug. in the event of queries regarding your holding, plcase
contact the Registrar on 0371 664 0300. You can also email
enguiries@linkgroup.co.uk. Changes of address and mandate
details can be made over the telephone, but all other changes
to the register must be notified in writing to the Registrar:
Link Group. Sharehclder Services, 10th Floor, Central Square,
29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 4DL.

Electronic communications from the Company
Shareholders have the opportunity to be notified by email
when the Company's Annual Report, Ha!f-yearly Report and
other formal communications are available on the Company's
website, instead of receiving printed copies by post. This has
enviranmental benefits in the reduction of paper, printing,
energy and water usage, as well as reducing costs to the
Company, If you have not already elected to receive electronic
communications from the Company and wish te do so, please
contact the Registrar using the details shown on the inner
back cover. Please have your investor code to hand.

Share capital and net asset value information

Ordinary 1p shares 350,000,000
SEDGL Number BPSX4G2
ISIN GROOBP5X4Q29
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Sources of further information

Copies of the Company’s Annual and Half-yearly Reports are
available from the Company Secretary, who can be contacted
at LABS_CoSec@Linkgroup.co.uk and, together with stock
exchange announcements and further information on the
Company, are also available on the Company's website,

www lifesciencereit.co.uk.

Association of Investment Companies
The Company is a member of the AIC.

Financial calendar
27 March 2023
Announcement of final results

15 May 2023
Proposed payment of second interirm 2022 dividend

25 May 2023

Annual General Meeting

30 June 2023
Half-year end

September 2023

Announcement of half-yearly results

31 December 2023

Year end
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

GLOSSARY

Adjusted earnings per share (“Adjusted EPS”)
EPRA EPS adjusted to exclude one-off costs, divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the period

Admission
The admission of Life Science REIT plc onto the AIM of the
London Stock Exchange on 19 Novermber 2021

AGM
Annual General Meeting

AlC

The Association of investment Companies

AlFM

Alternative Investment Fund Manager

AlM
A market operated by the London Stock Exchange

BREEAM
Building research establishment environmental
assessmeant method

Company
Life Science REIT plc

Contracted rent

Gross annual rental income currently receivable on a property
plus rent contracted fram expiry of rant-free periods and
uplifis agreed at the balance sheet date less any ground rents
pavable under head leases

Development property and land

Whole or a material part of an estate identified as having
potential for development. Such assets are classified as
development property and land until development is
completed and they have the potential to be fully income
generating

ERPC

Energy performance certificate

EPRA
The European Public Real Estate Assaciation, the industry
body for European REITs

EPRA cost ratio

The sum of property expenses and administration expenses as
a percentage of gross rental income calculated both including
and exciuding direct vacancy cost
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EPRA earnings

IFRS profit after tax excluding movements relating to
changes in fair value of investment properties, gains/losses
on property disposals, changes in fair value of financial
instruments and the related tax effects

EPRA earnings per share ("EPRA EPS™)

A measure of EPS on EPRA earnings designed to present
underlying earnings from core operating activities based
on the weighted average number of shares in issue during
the period

EPRA guidelines
The EPRA Best Practices Recomrmencdlations Guidelines
October 2019

EPRA like-far-like rental income

The increase/decrease inrental income on properties owned
throughout the current and previous year under review.

This growth rate includes revenue recognition and lease
accounting adjustments but excludes development property
and land in either year and properties acquired or disposed of
it either yaar

EPRA NAV/EPRA NDV/EPRA NRV/EPRA NTA
per share

The EPRA net asset value measures figures divided by the
number of shares cutstanding at the balance sheet date

EPRA net asset value (“EPRA NAV")

The value of net assets, adjusted to inciude properties and
other investment interests at fair value and to exclude items
not expected to be realised in a long-term property businass,
such as the fair value of any financial derivatives and deferred
taxes on property valuation surpluses

EPRA net disposal value (“EPRA NDV™)

The net asset value measure detailing the full extent of
hiabilities and resulting shareholder value if company assets
are sold and/or if habilities are nat held untd maturity. Deferred
tax and financial instrarments are calculated as to the full
extent of their value or liability, net of any resulting tax

EPRA net initial yield ("EPRA NIY™)

The annualised passing rent generated by the portfolio,

less estimaied non-recoverable property cperating expenses,
expressed as a percentage of the portfolic valuation (adding
notional purchasers’ costs), excluding development property
and land
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EPRA net reinstatement value ("EPRA NRV")
The net asset value measure to highlight the value of net
assets on a long-term basis and reflect what would be
needed to recreate the Company through the investment
markets based on its current capital and financing structure.
Assets and liabilities that are not expected to crystallise in
normal circumstances, such as the fair valiie mavements on
financial derivatives and deferred taxes on property valuation
surpluses, are excluded. Costs such as real estate transfer
taxes are included

EPRA net tangible assets (“"EPRA NTA™)

The net asset value measure assuming entities buy and sell
assets, thereby crystallising certain levels of deferred tax
liakility. Adjustments are alse made for the fair value of certain
financial derivatives

EPRA sBPR
European public real estate association sustainable best
practice recommendations

EPRA ‘topped-up’ net initial yield

The annualised passing rent generated by the portfolio,
topped up for contracted uplifts, less estimated
non-recoverable property operating expenses, expressed

as a percentage of the portfolio valuation (adding noticnal
purchasers’ costs), excluding devalopment property and land

EPRA vacancy rate

Total open market rental value of vacant units divided by
total open market rental value of the portfolio excluding
development property and land

EPS
Earnings per share

Equivalent yield

The weighted average rental income return expressed as

a percentage of the investment property valuation, plus
purchasers' costs, excluding development property and land

ERV
The estimated annual open market rental value of lettable
space as assessed by the external valuer

EU taxonomy

A classification system that aims to provide a clear definition
of what should be considered as 'sustainable” economic
activity

FCA
Financial Conduct Authority
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Fitwell
A real estate certification that measures a building against
seven health impact categories

GAV

Gross asset value

GHG

Greenhouse gas

GRESB

Global real estate sustainability benchmark

Group
Life Science REIT plc and its subsidiaries

1ASB
International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS earnings per share (“EPS™)
IFRS earnings after tax for the year divided by the weighted
average nuimber af shares ir issue during the period

IFRS NAV per share
IFRS net asset value divided by the number of shares
outstanding at the balance sheet date

Interest cover

Adjusted operating profit before gains on investment
properties, interest and tax divided by the underlying net
Interest expense

Investment portfolio
Completed buildings excluding development property
and land

1PO
Initial public offering

Like-for-like rental income movement

The increase/decrease in contracted rent of properties
owned throughout the pericd under review, expressed

as a percentage of the contracted rent at the start of the
period, excluding development property and land and units
undergoeing refurbishment

Like-for-like valuation movement

The increase/decrease in the valuation of properties

owned throughout the period under review, expressed as a
percentage of the valuation at the start of the period, net of
capital expenditure

155




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

GLOSSARY conTINUED

Laan to value ratio (“LTV”)

Gross debt less cash, short-term deposits and liguid
investments, divided by the aggregate value of praperties
and investments

Main Market
The premium segment of the London Stock Exchange's
Main Market

MEES legislation
Minimum Eneray Efficrency Standards Legistation

NAV

Nef asset value

Net initial yield ("NIY")

Contracted rent at the balance sheet date, expressed as

a percentage of the investment property valuation, plus
purchasers' costs, excluding development property and land

Net rental income

Gross annual rental incorme receivable after deduction of
ground rents and other net property outgoings including void
costs and net service charge expenses

Net reversionary yield (“NRY")
The anticipated vield ta which the net initial yvield will rise
(or fall) once the rent reaches the ERV

Occupancy

Total open market rental value of the units leased divided
by total open market rental value excluding development
property and land, equivalent to one minus the EPRA
vacancy rate

Ongoing charges ratio

Ongeing charges ratio represents the costs of running the
Group as @ percentage of IFRS NAV as prescribed by the
Association of Investment Companies

Passing rent

Gross annual rental incorne currently receivable on a property
as at the balance sheet date less any ground rents payable
under head ieases

Property income distribution (“PID")

Profits distributed to sharenolders which are subject to tax

in the hands of the shareholders as property income P1Ds
are usually paid net of withholding tax (except for certain
types of tax-exempt shareholders), REITs also pay out normal
dividends called non-PiDs
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RCF

Revolving credit facility

Real Estate investment Trust (“REITY)

A listed property company which qualifies for, and has elected
into, a tax regime which is exempt from corporation tax on
profits from property rental iIncome and UK capital gains on
the sale of investment properties

Scope 1 and 2 emissions

GHGs released directly and indirectly from the Group e.g.
company offices, company vehicles and energy purchased
by the Group

Scope 3 emissions
All other GHGs released indirectly by the Group, upstream
and downstream of the Group’s business

SECR

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

SFDR

Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation

SONIA
Sterling Overnight Index Average

Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD”)

An organisation established with the goal of developing a
set of voluntary climate-related financial risk disclosures to
be adopted by companies to inform invastors and the public
about the risks they face relating to climate change

Total accounting return

The movement in EPRA NTA over a period plus dividends paid
in the period, expressed as a percentage of the EPRA NTA at
the start of the pericd

Total cost ratio
EPRA cost ratio excluding one-off costs calculated both
including and excluding vacant property costs

UK AIFM Regime

The Alternative Investment Fund Managers Regulations 2013
(as amended by The Alternative Investrment Fund Managers
(Amendment etc ) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019) and the
investment Funds Sourcebook forming part of the FCA
Handbook

Weighted average unexpired lease term (“WAULT"”)

Average unexpired lease term to first break or expiry
welghted by contracted rent across the portfolio, excluding
development property and land
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CONTACT DETAILS OF THE ADVISERS

Alternative Investment Fund Manager
G10 Capital Limited

(part of IQ-EQ)

4th Floor, 3 More London Riverside

London SE12AQ

Investment Adviser

fronstone Asset Management Limited
Registered office

First Flocor Radius House

51 Clarenden Road

Watford

Hertfordshire WD17 1HP

London office
55 Welis Street
London WIT 3PT

Investor enguiries: investments@lifesciencereit.co.uk

Company website
www. lifesciencereit.co.uk

Administrator

Link Alternative Fund Administrators Limited
(trading as Link Asset Services)

Broadwalk House, Scuthernhay West

Exeter EX11TS

Auditor

Deloitte LLP

Gaspe House, 66-72 Esplanade
St Heller, Jersey

Channel Islands JE4 8BWA

Joint Corporate Broker and Financial Adviser
Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited

New Change

London EC4M 9AF

Joint Corporate Broker and Financial Adviser
Jefferies International Limited

100 Bishopsgate

London ECZN 4JL
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Financial PR and IR Adviser
Buchanan Communications Limited
107 Cheapside

London EC2V 60N

Legal Adviser

Gowling WLG (UK) LLP
4 More London Riverside
London SE12AU

Property Manager
Savills plc

33 Margaret Street
London WI1G 04D

Registrar

Link Asset Services
Shareholder Services Departrment
10th Floor, Central Square

29 Wellington Street

Leeds 1.514DL

Email: enguiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Website: www. linkgroup.com

Company Secretary and registered office
Link Company Matters Limited

Bth Floor, 65 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7NQ

Email: LABS_ CoSec@Linkgroup.co.uk

Depositary

Crestbridge Property Partnerships Limited
8 Sackville Street

London W15 3DG

Valuer

CBRE Limited
St Martins Court

10 Paternoster Row
London EC4M 7HP

Designed and produced by

FSC®-certified forests and other contraolled sources, All pulps used are elermental

chlorine free and manufactured at a mill that has been awarded the ISC 14001 and

www, lyonsbennett.com

EMAS certificates for environimental management. The use of the FSC® logo identifies
products which contain wood from well-managed forests and other controlled
sources certified in accordance with tha rules of tha Forasl Slewardship Council®

Printed by an FSC* and (5O 14001 certified company.



LIFE
SCIENCE
REIT

Life Science REIT plc
investments@lifesciencereit.co.uk
contact@lifesciencereit.co.uk
D20 3102 9465

www.lifesciencereit.co.uk



